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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

B 5 4 22

Year ended Year ended
29 February 28 February
2024 2023
BZ BHE
ZE-MEF —T-=F
—A=thB ZA=+NH
HFEE EFE
RMB million RMB million Change
ARBBERT AREKBER -
Profit and Loss Highlights AERBE
Revenue o 2 401.4 413.2 (2.9%)
Consolidated Loss Attributable to KRR EmFE ARG
Owners of the Company mAEE (23.5) (50.3)
Basic Losses per Share FREXNEE
(RMB Cents) (AR®ESD) (3.34) (7.12)
Balance Sheet Highlights EEEEBERRE
Total Equity 1 % 618.1 663.6 (6.9%)
Net Cash Balances b o e 364.7 371.6 (1.9%)
Net Assets Value per Share (RMB) BREEFEARET) 0.88 0.94 (6.9%)
Net Cash per Share (RMB) FRELFEARET) 0.52 0.53 (1.9%)
Other Key Ratios HthFEbE
Stock Turnover (Days) FERBXE(RA) 432 480
Quick Ratio (Times) RELLE(1F) 4.0 3.9
Gearing Ratio (%) BEEBELE (%) N/A N/A
AER TiE A
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
KA ER
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HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Units 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai, Hong Kong

LISTING INFORMATION

Listing: The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 00738
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Email address: ir@lesaunda.com.hk

WEBSITE ADDRESS
http://www.lesaunda.com.hk
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

S HE

FINANCIAL CALENDAR B B 1TEE

2023/24 Interim Results Announcement

TR/ MERHEERM

30 October 2023

—E-=%+A=+H

Payments of 2023/24 Interim Special Dividend
RN ZTZ= /ZOF P HRERR

— =

=

24 November 2023
=%+—A=-+WmH

2023/24 Annual Results Announcement

TR/ CMERFEER/M

27 May 2024

—E-_NMFRAZ-Z+LEH

Closure of Register of Members for Annual General Meeting
(both days inclusive)

EEmERMBPELTFEULERRAFAS)(EREEMA)

10-15 July 2024

—EME+LA+HEETRRA

Annual General Meeting

BEREFKE

15 July 2024
—E-mMELA+TREA

Closure of Register of Members for Proposed 2023/24 Final Special

Dividend (both days inclusive)
EEHERMBFPERLFE

(RWB -2 = /“NFERZERPFRHIRER)BEEREMA)

22-23 July 2024

“ECNMELAZ+ZRE

e

H

Payment of Proposed 2023/24 Final Special Dividend
N —ZTZ= /ZNFREZRBAERIRE

1 Augu

—E-mMFENA—H

st 2024

SHAREHOLDER SERVICES

For enquires about share transfer and registration, please
contact the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong:

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Units 1712—1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2862 8555
Facsimile: (852) 2865 0990

Holders of the Company’s ordinary shares should notify

the above registrar promptly of any change of their
address.
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Jit R R
INVESTOR RELATIONS REERE
For enquiries relating to investor relations, please emailto FRIBEHEREEB R EH BEHE
ir@lesaunda.com.hk or write to the Company at: ir@lesaunda.com.hk * B¢ 2% K B2 78 A &) B
A AR
Le Saunda Holdings Limited KEBHT T IEREB R A A
Suites 1104-11086, 11th Floor EEH 28
1063 King’s Road I 2 E10635%
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong 111110421106 =
Telephone: (852) 3678 3200 T 5 1 (852) 3678 3200
Facsimile: (852) 2554 9304 {5 5 : (852) 2554 9304
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KEY MILESTONES
HEAHFL

APR mH/ 2023

Since 2019, the Group had demonstrated
outstanding accomplishments in manpower training
and development and being repeatedly accredited
as “Manpower Developer” under the “ERB
Manpower Developer Award Scheme”, launched by
the Employees Retraining Board of Hong Kong. The
Group was further commended for exemplary and
continuous achievements in manpower training and
development and had been promoted as “Super
MD” this year.

H2019F i AEEEAS B RERNTERR
S BEEEZBEEBSEIBETNIERBAT L
EEAAIFIBETIATEXRINER - RAFE -
AEBEAABIRERNSEXNAESE—Z
MARF - MWE T8 S [Super MDJ (b % ©

sV

5

v

P

4

4

X

NITIESE

BEBIZIRE

MANPOWER
DEVELOPER

An ERB Credit

MAY # H/ 2023

One subsidiary of the Group was consecutively
appointed as the executive director unit of the
Guangdong Electronic Commerce Association (“the
Association”).

AEEET-HANEAREACARELETH
BHe(He)z s BeERl -

le saunda holdings Itd. @ &7 FHER G R A A



KEY MILESTONES
EEAFL

AUGN H/ 2023

As the executive director unit of the Association,
the subsidiary actively performed its obligations and
was enthusiastic about the affairs of the Association.
As a result of its outstanding works performed, the
subsidiary was rated as an “Outstanding Member
Enterprise” by the Association in August 2023 and
awarded an honour certificate.

ERMEZEBREFELML AMNBARERETS
BEBLAONHEITIE - ARNKRREL - AHE
REAE—Z-_=F \ARHeIRIEFTSEENL]

WEREREBEE -

SEP A/ 2003

The Group’s 4T season theme “Heart Traveller” has
carried out the cross-border artistic cooperation
with mentor Zhang Yingying, a master of intangible
cultural heritage paper-cutting skills, and utilised
environmentally-friendly paper from le saunda brand
shoe boxes for artistic creation, and also apply the
floral elements of paper-cut works to this season’s
window booth props to strengthen customers’
visual perception and enhance brand appeal.

AEENATFEEMWMKRA)EFFETARERSE
ARBEZMETEMBERSE ERAKBHH
mEESNRERERETEMENE  THTRNE
MEETREMAINAFTHEREEET A
EPHNBRERBRRIBITMMERERS -
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KEY MILESTONES
EEAFL

SEP A/ 2003

In September of 2023, LINEA ROSA joins forces
with HAPPY ANGEL of the original trend IP DAYA
family to spread fashion and happy energy.
Simultaneously, this crossover campaign is showing
the youthfulness of the brand.

N-ZZT = =% A% ' LINEA ROSAE:A R Al # 7
IP DAYAZ & HJHAPPY ANGEL{E1E B i BlR 44 4E 8 o
R WA EERIBLE MR FERK -

SEP LA/ 2023

In the same month, an IP joint static display was
held at Chengdu MIXC, with the theme of “Happy
Angel’s Garden”. Combining the infinite imagination
of fashion and trends, we created a fantasy and
interesting dream garden, with scene-like art and
fairy-tale colors. Cast a little cute magic in modern
urban spaces to extract fashionable and happy
inspiration.

BA IPHAFEREXEERMKETT - LU(Happy
Angel’s Garden) B8 + 44 s B8R ER 8K -
BRMTEFTOBEBNEFRTE U S &l H
EERNEY  AERETERHER—HAEEE
IRENF MR EEERK o

12 le saunda holdings Itd. @ &7 FHER G R A A



KEY MILESTONES
EEAFL

OCTHH/ 2023

In October 2023, LINEA ROSA was collaborated
with DAYA YOU JIAO DAI held an IP joint static
display at Shenzhen Uniwalk Qianhai, by using
fantasy flowers and DAYA’'s plastic bag-shaped
vest, to create a sweet, cute and unique
trendy image, thus unlocking a young and
attitude-oriented, comfortable, fashionable and
energetic life style.

MZZTZ=F1tH  LINEA ROSAK & R &% %
IP DAYAE R RN E 7 WMEITIPE R EFRER -
& )76 2 EEDAYAR) B &R B/ VB0 - 2B 3
XA ENFANBHNHBER  BREFEARE -
BERE KRENEXKNEERSE -

FEB = A/ 2004

The Group is committed to providing a pleasant
working environment and enhancing employees’
happiness at work. As before, the Group had continued
to be honoured as a “Happy Company” under
“Happiness-at-work Promotional Scheme 2024”. The
Group wishes for each employee to be happy in their
work, to pursue their passions and to be fulfilled in it!

AEBRORE-—FEMROIERE BABINT

VElR BN o — Bl - ANE @O T /ER Bt HAPPY B & 5
Blo024 | E EREHABLOLE | AEBBHEE —fI Compﬂﬂl
BT/ T RS B EE « IA % SRR 3 | 5years
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMEN'T

Y
_

i

bbb

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | am
pleased to present the annual report on the results of Le
Saunda Holdings Limited (“Le Saunda” or the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the
financial year ended 29 February 2024 (the “year under
review”).

Last year was a challenging year. Macroeconomic
development dynamics further slowed down due to high
interest rate and uncertain external risks. Meanwhile,
the recovery progress of China’s economy had its ups
and downs. While the economic activities in Mainland
China grew and consumer confidence rebounded in the
early stage of post-pandemic normalcy, domestic real
estate debts, deflation risk, rising unemployment rate
among young people and other issues have hindered the
momentum of market recovery, and hence, the overall
recovery pace was slower than expected. Despite such
unfavorable retail market conditions, as a brand owner
with over 47 years of history, the Group still adheres to the
corporate strategy of “striving for progress while ensuring
stability”, with a view to consolidating its core advantages
in shoe-making and further developing its brands. The
Group actively formulates and implements a series of
new marketing plans to meet the diversified demands
for products and services from its target customer base,
improve the trendy and innovative images of its brands,
raise customer loyalty and its expand market share.

BEBR:

AANERREZSG(EZTS)IMARE
B AERBERAR (B AR
RADEEMBRAR(AEENDBEE_T
TME_AZTABIEOMERFE(ERE
FEDZEZERS -

EZFERE—BATEIN—F ZELKEHR
RNAXBRRE LSRN HEE D INER
REmiEsERE R HELHEER
ERNERETZZ LMK FERR - #R
FREAMHEEESEET T HHGE
RMBEEEOMEEMEA  AMBERA
MEMERBY BRERRBIFEAKRE
REASHEEMER T ™5 DR R
25 FAit > ERERSRRAELRESE -
BEmUZE T LENTET R AKH
ERRBBATFNRERDA - EER
(B REINREERE  ZEEBHH
HEZLED  HEMBTEHER - X
SERGRSRER - RIIFOEHETE
XmeBEEPEZEALNEME RS
TR CBEARBORHEFEZR BN
FRBERTZMDE -
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
VRS

BUSINESS REVIEW

With the implementation of various national measures to
revitalise the post-recovery economy, maintain liquidity
in the capital market, stabilise market confidence and
encourage public consumption, the Group also seized
the opportunity to carry out crossover collaborations
with intangible heritages and joint promotional activities
with original trendy IP. The Group also rewarded its VIP
members for their loyalty to the brand by organising VIP
member exclusive events and producing and giving away
peripheral gifts, in order to enrich membership experience
and improve brand loyalty. During the year under review,
the number of VIP members spending increased by 10.1%
as compared to that of last year.

After the pandemic, competition among retailers have
intensified. For consumers, the impression for brands
not only depends on the comments on the functionality
and quality of products, but also on seamless and
convenient online and offline shopping experience. As
such, consumers have become increasingly interested
in shopping on e-commerce platform. Not only could
they obtain product information at ease, but also enjoy
entertainment from such platforms. In this regard, the
Group has strengthened its online and offline sales
channels. The Group also operated its e-commerce
business on Douyin, Youzan, Pinduoduo and WeChat
video, and has now focused on improving its Xiaohongshu
platform to reach more potential consumers.

T

le saunda holdings Itd. % H7 /2% A R A R
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

During the year under review, the Group continuously
evaluated its shop retail network and its cost
effectiveness. On one hand, the Group were aware that
due to changes in the consumption ecology, there are
many traditional medium-and small-sized department
stores with declining customer traffic and business
turnover, which in turn affected the performance of the
Group’s shops in those department stores. On the other
hand, shopping malls and large outlets provide convenient
and fast shopping experience to all types of consumers,
such as family consumers group and young consumers.
During the year under review, the Group reduced the
number of shops at department stores and considered on
opening stores in shopping malls and large outlets which
allow the Group to easily reach out to its target customers
and increase sales conversion rate. In addition, the Group
scrutinised the business performance of its existing
stores. While stores with substandard performance might
be closed, the Group will also renew for the lease of those
stores are promising and profitable for longer lease terms,
such that in the long run the Group could maintain a
stable stream of operating revenue without increase in the
rate of concession fee.

The Group also actively prepared for the enhancement of
its internal operational efficiencies. System development
can enhance the Group’s online and offline synergies,
which will facilitate the expansion of the customer base of
loyal member. The Group also expanded its member base
through its corporate WeChat account. In order to manage
customer relationship, especially in terms of interaction
with VIP members and fulfilling their consumption needs,
the Group will invest more resources in CRM system,
mini app store and new retail department to attract
return customers. This ecosystem can help the Group to
communicate and interact with its users more directly and
precisely, so that its operation strategies and engagement
to its members can become more efficient so as to raise
the loyalty of its VIP members and encourage them to
repurchase its products.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
VLS
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
VRS

SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE STRATEGIES

In summary, the year under review was more challenging
than anticipated. The dampening economic activities,
sluggish retail industry and geopolitical conflicts will
still pose uncertainties and challenges to the retail
environment in the coming years. To cope with these
prolonged economic challenges and complex business
environment, the Group has, therefore, reformulated its
sustainable corporate strategies by constantly reviewing
its ongoing business strategies and repositioning its
competitive advantages, with an aim of achieving
our vision and purpose as well as seeking for a more
satisfactory and sustainable financial performance and
shareholders’ return.

The Group has, with the consideration of the corporate
culture that evolves with its core values and factors
such as the Board’s view, stakeholders’ analysis and
development trends, formulated four main sustainable
corporate strategies, namely, green growth philosophy,
technology development, innovative operational
management and staff development.

Green growth philosophy

To support the national carbon peak policy and achieve
carbon neutrality by 2050, the Group began its plan
to set energy saving, emission reduction and waste
reduction targets, and took environmental protection
as its responsibility. The Group has established an
evaluation process for new suppliers, making sustainable
development an important evaluation criterion for
selecting suppliers with compatible green philosophies.
In addition, the Group has further optimised its criteria of
product procurement and started to gradually purchase
products containing environmentally-friendly materials. It
aims at improving resource utilization, adopting practical
and measurable measures to manage and further reduce
its carbon footprint, encouraging employees to save
energy, reducing pollutant emissions and regulating waste
disposal, so as to contribute to a greener society.

T
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SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE STRATEGIES
(CONTINUED)

Technology development

The Group, as a fashion retailer, needs to keep exploring
new technology to improve the efficiency of its operations
and to increase its sales performance especially in
the ever-changing retail market and ever-evolving
e-commence business environment. The Group has
been allocating resources on the integration of its offline
and online business so as to enhance the shopping
experience of, and interactions with, existing customers
as well as to attract potential new customers. Recently,
a new project team has been formed which comprises
key personnel from various departments and is led by
executive director. This team will not only work closely
together in marketing through omni-channels, but will
also cooperate on other technological reform project or
system that would improve the efficiency of the Group’s
operation. The Group will continue to leverage technology
to enhance and strengthen every existing aspect, such
as product design, marketing campaign, day-to-day
management, network data, etc. The Group believes that
digital development ensures its sustainable growth and
successful development in the future.

Innovative operational management

The Group believes that innovation is the driving force
behind the development of a business, encouraging
innovation is a key part of the Group’s corporate culture,
and that providing employees and teams with the room
and platform to innovate is also a responsibility of the
Group. Although many problems may inevitably arise in
the process of innovation, the Group believes that the
process of having these problems clarified and developing
and implementing solutions will lead to the growth of
the Company and its employees. As a well-known brand
operator with its leading position in the female footwear
market, the Group strives to pursue innovation so as to
fulfill the ever-changing design needs of customers as well
as to strengthen the brand influence.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
VRS

SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE STRATEGIES
(CONTINUED)

Staff development

“Human-oriented Philosophy and Mutual Respect” is one
of the core values of the Group. We regard our employees
as the most valuable asset of the Company. The Group
respects each and every employee, believes in the
integrity of employees, and actively cultivates a culture
of encouragement and support to create a good working
environment for employees. The Group has established
a framework of occupational health management that
includes systems, trainings and measures to protect the
physical and mental health of employees. The Group
has set up a comprehensive promotion system and
designed customised training programs with the view to
providing adequate career development for employees.
The Group has been reviewing its recruitment plan,
offering competitive remuneration package and promoting
corporate culture to attract innovative talents. The Group
values employee welfare, pays attention to the needs of
employees and interacts with them in a positive manner
for mutual growth. Cultivating employees to become
professional and diverse team members is also one of the
Group’s ways to retain talents. Additional incentives and
rewards are offered to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations.

The Board strongly believes that as long as Le Saunda
adheres to its vision and mission coupled with the
implementation of the above sustainable corporate
strategies, constant strengthening of the effectiveness
of marketing management and optimisation of operation
efficiency, it will surely be able to cope with the
challenging external environment and achieve a stable
and positive development.
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS AND APPRECIATION

[t is believed that 2024 will be full of challenges and
opportunities. All members of the Group are well-prepared
for the coming year, hoping to see the improvement
in performance and better results of the Group. | will
cooperate with other members of the Board to seize
opportunities in this complex and ever-changing retail
market and make continuous innovations, in order to bring
sustainable and satisfactory returns for shareholders.
Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like
to express my deepest gratitude to all shareholders and
customers for their long-term trust and support, and to all
employees for their valuable contributions.

James Ngai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 May 2024
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
I e 2 a3

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Operating Results

The Group is engaged in the design, development and
retailing of ladies’ and men’s footwear, handbags and
fashionable accessories in Mainland China and engaged
in the retail business of cosmetic products in Hong Kong.
The major proprietary brands of the Group include le
saunda, le saunda MEN, LINEA ROSA and PITTI DONNA,
which aim to appeal to diversified target customer groups
with their distinctive product lines.

For the financial year 2023/24, total revenue of the Group
decreased by 2.9% year-on-year to RMB401,400,000
(2022/23: RMB413,200,000). Consolidated gross profit
decreased by 6.8% year-on-year to RMB250,800,000
(2022/23: RMB269,200,000), and an overall gross
profit margin of 62.5% was recorded, representing a
decrease of 2.7 percentage points as compared to the
corresponding period in the previous financial year. For
the financial year 2023/24, consolidated loss attributable
to owners of the Company was RMB23,500,000 (2022/23:
consolidated loss of RMB50,300,000).

B % [E] &

REBEPHKRERERT  AEUK
Fi=h %ﬁzﬁﬂfg FRMEMEERN
EEE INEEHERZISTEE
7% o EﬁTEZzQM LB FEle saunda -
le saunda MEN - LINEA ROSA % PITTI
DONNA ' AT R ENMER BEZERM
MEZEFE -

B R
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED) B 7 B B (4])
Operating Results (Continued) ReExE (&)
2023/24 2022/23 Change
RMB (million) AR (BB R) B-=/-@m —T--/-= &
Revenue T 401.4 413.2 (2.9%)
Gross profit EH 250.8 269.2 (6.8%)
Gross profit margin EF=E 62.5% 65.2% (2.7 percentage
points)
7EE )
Consolidated loss attributable BEaBaARGREER (23.5) (50.3)
to owners
Final dividend (HK cents) RHIRR S (B - -
Final special dividend (HK cents) A H R R AR B OB L) 5.0 —
Annual dividend pay-out ratio FEREXE N/A N/A
rER TiE A
Profitability Analysis B RAR R D

During the year under review, the recovery progress of
the retail markets in Mainland China and Hong Kong was
not as satisfactory as expected. Economic activities and
consumer confidence continued to be volatile, and the
upward momentum was not sustainable. Hence, the total
revenue of the Group decreased by 2.9% year-on-year to
RMB401,400,000. Meanwhile, the Group recorded a gross
profit of RMB250,800,000 (2022/23: RMB269,200,000),
representing a year-on-year decrease of 6.8%. The gross
profit margin decreased by 2.7 percentage points to
62.5%, as compared to last year.

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses for the year
decreased by 14.7% vyear-on-year to RMB204,800,000
(2022/23: RMB240,200,000). During the year under
review, overall selling and distribution expenses
decreased, mainly because the Group actively optimised
the physical store network in Mainland China to save
further fixed selling and distribution expenses and the
closure of cosmetic business in Hong Kong during
the year under review also reduced the related selling
expenses. Overall, the ratio of selling and distribution
expenses to total revenue decreased by 7.1 percentage
points to 51.0% (2022/23: 58.1%).
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Profitability Analysis (Continued)

The Group continued to strictly control the costs of
back office and save unnecessary expenditures in
order to achieve operational efficiency. General and
administrative expenses for the year decreased by 3.3%
to RMB84,000,000 as compared to the corresponding
period of last year (2022/23: RMB86,900,000). However,
as a result of the decline in total revenue, the ratio of
general and administrative expenses to total revenue
decreased by 0.1 percentage point to 20.9%. (2022/23:
21.0%).

Other income comprised property rental income
of RMB900,000 and local government subsidies of
RMB1,400,000. Local government subsidies decreased,
compared with last year, mainly because the retail market
remained sluggish during the year under review, which
reduced the Group’s revenue and contribution made
to certain regions in Mainland China. Other income
decreased by 58.1% year-on-year to RMB2,300,000
(2022/23: RMB5,500,000).

Other gains or losses recorded a net gain of
RMB3,200,000 (2022/23: loss of RMB7,800,000).
During the year under review, the Group has closed its
cosmetics business in Hong Kong. As a result of the early
surrender of leases for retail stores, an one-off gains
on early termination of leases of RMB7,400,000 were
recorded, and on the other hand the compensations of
RMB1,800,000 were paid to landlords for early termination
of such leases. In addition, the Group’s other losses
was exchange losses of approximately RMB2,500,000
(2022/23: RMB8,200,000) because Renminbi continued to
depreciate whereas the magnitude was lower than that of
last year.

The consolidated loss attributable to owners of the
Company amounted to RMB23,500,000 (2022/23: loss
of RMB50,300,000). Basic losses per share amounted
to RMB3.34 cents (2022/23: losses of RMB7.12 cents).
In return for shareholders’ longstanding support, the
Board has recommended to declare the payment of a
final special dividend of HK5.0 cents per ordinary share
(2022/23: Nil).

B B ) s M o3

Bt % B B8 (48)
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Income Tax

During the year under review, income tax expenses
amounted to approximately RMB2,900,000 (2022/23:
credit of RMB1,900,000). Income tax expenses for the
year under review was mainly attributable to deferred tax
expenses made for the reversal of expenses provision.
Since 2012, all business entities of the Group in Mainland
China are subject to an income tax rate of 25%, while
the profit tax rate for operations in Hong Kong remains
at 16.5%. Pursuant to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of
Mainland China, a withholding income tax of 5% to 10%
shall be levied on the dividends remitted by a Chinese
subsidiary to its foreign parent company starting from 1
January 2008.

Inventory Management

As at 29 February 2024, the Group’s inventory balance,
net of provision for impairment, was RMB164,500,000,
representing an decrease of 14.5% as compared to that
of last year.

B 7% 5 B (4)

FrEs

MREREFE - FFH AL AKEE2900,000
T(ZEBEZZ/Z = 1K AR

1,900,0007C) - ARBEFEMEMEER
Bl E AFHRMIELAEEMEHIBRX
RZFE—ZF8 AKEMERPE A
EE R E IR R25% R T R B TS/
BBEBH TS TR 4 15 1516.5% 8 7K
FoREBEPRAM I CEMBERE - A
—EENF—A—HE PEANMHTEAR
AIAEINT R E] TR B R A R5% E
10% B TEH AT o

FEEHE

“TE-NMFEF-_A-thH AEEMT
EEBRTBRBREEBENFEAARKE
164,500,0007T * B EF T #14.5% °

=

N

Details of inventory balance were as follows: FEHESBMAESHOT
As at As at
29 February 28 February Changes Changes
2024 2023 in value in %
R-ZZB-OFE R-T_=F
RMB (million) AR® (BB “A=t+hB ZA=t+AR 2HLE 2HEMHL
Finished goods 2 X mh 164.5 192.4 (27.9) (14.5%)
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Inventory Management (Continued)

The Group has been strictly planning and implementing
inventory management in order to prevent excessive
inventory balance. During the year under review,
Mainland China’s retail market had yet to show a growth
momentum, and the Group had significantly reduced
its purchases of finished goods for the current season.
Accordingly, the proportion of the inventory of footwear
aged less than one year decreased by 12.9 percentage
points to 44.4% as at 29 February 2024 (28 February
2023: 57.3%). In addition, all cosmetic inventories had
been cleared due to the closure of the cosmetic business
and the value of footwear inventories had also decreased
as compared to that of last year, inventory turnover of
finished goods had therefore decreased by 48 days to
432 days (2023: 480 days).

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group’s financial position remained very strong
and healthy. As at 29 February 2024, the Group’s cash
and bank balances amounted to RMB364,700,000 (28
February 2023: RMB371,600,000), representing a slight
decrease of 1.9% year-on-year. Even though being in
a sluggish retail environment, the Group still maintains
sufficient cash. If necessary, the Group can maintain
sufficient working capital through banking facilities
provided by its major banks in Hong Kong and Mainland
China, including but not limited to revolving loans and
trade finance, mainly at floating interest rates. At the end
of the financial year, the quick ratio was 4.0 times (28
February 2023: 3.9 times). During the year under review,
the Group did not borrow any bank loans. As at 29
February 2024, the Group has no outstanding bank loan
(28 February 2023:Nil). Forward contracts will be used, if
necessary, to hedge related debts and bank borrowings
arising from overseas purchases. In addition, the Group
did not enter into any forward contracts to hedge its
foreign exchange risks during the year under review.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Liquidity and Financial Resources (Continued)

During the year ended 29 February 2024, the Group’s
cash and bank balances were held in Hong Kong dollars,
United States dollars and Renminbi, respectively and all
deposits maturing within one year were placed in leading
banks. With the Group’s steady cash inflow from its
operations, coupled with its existing cash and banking
facilities, it has adequate financial resources to fund its
future needs in development.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Overview

The World Bank pointed out that although high interest
rates can suppress inflation, they may also weaken the
momentum of global economic growth in January 2024.
It was estimated that the overall global economic growth
would continue to slow down for the third consecutive
year to 2.4% in 2024. As for Mainland China, despite the
short-term uplift in economic activities after the Chinese
government lifted the pandemic control measures,
the effects of economic resurgence faded faster than
expected, the pace of economic recovery is weak, and
consumer confidence is still lower than pre-pandemic
level. To cope with the uncertainties arising from the
external environment and achieve the tasks and goals of
domestic economic reform, various regions and segments
in Mainland China have adopted the work principle
of “seeking changes while maintaining stability” and
implemented the concept of comprehensive development
in order to pursue for national economic rebound with
solid progress towards high-quality development. The
annual gross domestic product (“GDP”) increased by 5.2%
year-on-year in 2023, which was higher than the growth
rate of 3.0% for last year.

T
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Overview (Continued)

During the year under review, the Group actively
responded to the sluggish retail market and increased
consumers’ consumption sentiments. In addition to
optimising the logistics supply chain, integrating the
retail network and decisively streamlining the Company’s
operating structure, and striving to enhance the Group’s
internal operation efficiency, the Group also invested
resources in publicity and promotions and improved
its membership system, with the goal to strengthen Le
Saunda’s popularity in the female footwear market and
maintaining customers’ loyalty to the Group’s products
and services. Since consumers have become more
cautious in their spending due to the lack of significant
improvement in domestic consumption activities, slow
growth in household income and high unemployment rate
among young people, the Group’s overall retail revenue
was negatively affected. However, annual same store sales
of the year under review recorded an increase of 11.7%
(2022/23: a decline of 27.7%). The significant improvement
in same store sales of the year, as compared to last year,
reflects the Group’s flexible marketing strategy in response
to the weak market environment, and the performances of
individual stores had successfully improved. Nevertheless,
the Group’s overall retail revenue for the year under review
decreased by 2.9% to RMB401,400,000 as compared to
that of last year (2022/23: RMB413,200,000).

Retail Network

Mainland China is currently the key market of the Group’s
retail business. As at the end of the year under review,
the Group had a total of 283 physical stores in Mainland
China. The number of self-owned stored dropped by 38,
while the number of franchised stores decreased by 5
during the year under review.

As at 29 February 2024, there were 202 stores under the
core brand le saunda, representing a net decrease of
41 stores as compared to the end of last financial year.
The high-end fashion brand, LINEA ROSA, saw a net
reduction of 1 store, bringing the total number of stores
to 26, as compared to the end of last financial year. 2
cosmetic stores in Hong Kong were closed during the
year under review.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED) X% EREGE)
Retail Network (Continued) SEERKZHM(E)
As at 29 February 2024, the breakdown of the Group’s R_-_ZE-_WNE_-_A_-+hH XEBHE
retail network was as follows: TEEPBOMINT
Self-owned Franchise Total
(Year-on-year (Year-on-year (Year-on-year
change) change) change)
Number of Outlets BBEEAN EH EEE @it
by Region EHEYE (RE2D) (RE29) (BE28)
Mainland China NS 257 (-38) 26 (-5) 283 (-43)
+ Northern, Northeastern & o - RIARAEL
Northwestern Regions 66 (-14) 24 (-5) 90 (-19)
* Eastern Region o B 86 (1) 0 (1) 86 (12)
¢ Central and Southwestern Regions ¢ R KA 51 (-6) 2 (+1) 53 (-5)
+ Southem Region o B 54 () 0 0) 54 (7)
Hong Kong and Macau BARRM 0 (2) - - 0 (2)
Total By 257 (-40) 26 (-5) 283 (-45)
Mainland China FhER K BE
Retail Business FEEXK

The Ministry of Commerce of Mainland China, together
with the relevant departments, have organised a series of
“Consumption-Boosting Year” activities at the beginning
of 2023, launching different policies and measures
to promote consumption in various sectors, such as
automobiles, electronic products, and home furnishings.
As a results, the overall total retail sales of consumer
goods in Mainland China in 2023 recorded a year-on-year
growth of 7.2% to RMB47.1 trillion. Among which, the retail
sales of consumer goods in garments, footwear, hats
and knitwear category also recorded a growth of 10.8%.
However, the effectiveness of those policies failed to last,
and public consumption sentiments gradually declined.
During the period from January to February 2024, the
retail sales of consumer goods in garments, footwear,
hats and knitwear category only increased by 1.9%
period-on-period, which demonstrated that the current
footwear retail market has not yet reached a positive
momentum. During the year under review, the Group’s
retail business in Mainland China was affected by the
unexpected slow recovery in consumption, resulting in a
drop in retail sales of 4.0% to RMB394,200,000 (2022/23:
RMB410,400,000).

T
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Mainland China (Continued)
Retail Business (Continued)

Since the government implemented return-to-normal
measures and issued several policies last year,
consumption potential has been stimulated, and the
consumer market has shown both qualitative improvement
and quantitative growth. To prepare for the next potential
growth momentum, the Group has carried out cross-IP
collaboration during such period to enhance brand
appeal and increase brand exposure, increase consumer
awareness and create a youthful image for its brands.
Through the artistic crossover cooperation with Ms. Zhang
Yingying (5K #8 &), an instructor of intangible cultural
heritage paper-cutting technique, the Group made use
of the environmentally-friendly papers from shoe boxes
of the le saunda brand to present the infinite glamour
of modern women by combining the intangible cultural
technique and environmental protection concept, and
highlight the Group’s ingenuity in footwear craftsmanship
and pursuit of creativity in fashion.

Besides, the Group has applied the paper-cutting
artworks as props for the current season’s window
displays, bringing an artistic atmosphere, visual sense
and unique shopping experience to customers visiting
the stores. In addition, the Group’s light luxury female
footwear brand LINEA ROSA collaborated with “YOU
JIAO DAl (BR%£R)” and “HAPPY ANGEL’ of the DAYA
family, an original trendy IP, to hold static exhibitions in
Shenzhen Uniwalk Qianhai and Chengdu MIXC to create a
check-in hotspot and topic buzz, and attract the attention
of potential consumers, thereby penetrating the brands
deeply into the young consumer market. The Group also
organised special events for VIP members, as well as
produced and gave away gifts, such as greeting cards,
three-dimensional paper-engraved night lights, etc. as
exclusive rewards for VIP members, enriching member
experience and enhancing members’ loyalty. The Group
believes that crossovers and IP co-branding collaboration
programs and member appreciation activities would
reflect the Group’s philosophy of keeping abreast of
market trends and adopting various marketing strategies
to maintain the sustainable development of the Group’s
retail business.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B B i B o3 T

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Mainland China (Continued)
Retail Business (Continued)

Furthermore, the Group constantly reviews the distribution
and locations of its store network. The store optimisation
policy still focuses on traditional department stores
because most of the customer traffic of traditional
department stores in the past has been replaced by online
stores, shopping malls and outlets. The young generation
has become the major consumer group in Mainland China,
and these consumers focus on convenience, experience,
and the pursuit of cost effectiveness. Many traditional
department stores can no longer meet their needs. On
the contrary, shopping malls and large outlets can better
meet the diversified needs and the shopping experience
of consumers. Nowadays, consumers are shifting from
“product-centered” to “experience-oriented”, so the
results of traditional marketing strategies are limited. In an
increasingly competitive retail environment, constructing
a sales network in the private traffic is another new
development trend. The Group believes that such strategy
can encourage our VIP members to spend continuously
on its products, which will become a new driving force
for the steady development of the brand. Therefore, the
Group is now strengthening its CRM system, reforming
the existing VIP membership program and establishing
new department to support new marketing strategies.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Mainland China (Continued)
E-Commerce Business

According to the data released by the National Bureau
of Statistics of Mainland China, the overall national
online retail sales increased by 11.0% year-on-year
in 2023. Among which, online retail sales of physical
goods increased by 8.4%, accounting for 27.6% of the
total retail sales of consumer goods and representing
an increase of only 0.1 percentage point from last year.
Competition in the e-commerce market is becoming
increasingly fierce, and different retailers have adopted
diversified promotional strategies to increase market
share. At present, the most popular approach is for
retailers to interact more closely with consumers through
live streaming e-commerce, which can arouse consumers’
consumption desire, and allow them to understand
product features in real time and gain a great online
shopping experience. With a great variety of e-commerce
channels in the market, consumers have a wide range of
online shopping options, therefore their loyalty to brands
has become less persistent. As a result, retailers may
need to continue to invest more resources and increase
their e-commerce operating expenses. The Group actively
reviewed e-commerce business expenses, controlled
costs based on its revenue, and deployed more resources
on e-commerce platforms with higher traffic and sales
volume. In summary, the Group’s promotion expenses
and other selling expenses on e-commerce business as
a percentage of sales during the year under review were
similar to last year.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B B i B o3 T

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Mainland China (Continued)
E-Commerce Business (Continued)

The Group allocates resources in a timely manner to
consolidate its traditional e-commerce platform and social
media e-commerce platform business. The Group also
works more closely with traditional e-commerce platforms
to establish a co-prosperity business relationship for both
parties. The Group provides the platform with diversified
and cost-effective high-quality products to meet the
needs of different consumer groups and continuously
increase traffic for the e-commerce platform at the same
time. Among which, the Group’s long-term cooperation
with JD.com has not only achieved mutual benefit and
win-win results, but also set a good example within the
industry in terms of innovation and strategic synergy, and
thus won the “2023 Big Brand Outlet Award (2023%F €
A HE B H H)” from JD.com’s fashion division. In terms
of social media, the Group has gradually expanded its
membership base through WeChat Corporate Account.
On the other hand, the Group has successively carried
out live streaming e-commerce activities to communicate
with target customer groups in real time, publish the
latest brand information and continuously promote the Y
series online to further meet the needs of young female
customers with personalised products. The Group also
focuses on establishing brand image and enhancing
brand influence as well as maintaining its leading position
in the e-commerce field. One of the Group’s subsidiaries
had been re-elected as the executive director unit of The
Guangdong Electronic Commerce Association since May
2023, and has been actively performing its obligations
and devoting its resources and time for the affairs of
the association on behalf of the Group. In recognition
of its outstanding achievements, such subsidiary was
accredited as an “Outstanding Member Enterprise” in
August 2023 and was awarded an honour certificate in
recognition of the Group’s contribution to the e-commerce
field.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Mainland China (Continued)
E-Commerce Business (Continued)

During the year under review, various issues such as
volatile performance of domestic economy, consistently
sluggish consumer sentiment, fierce competition among
online brands, and rising product return rates within the
industry have affected the Group’s e-commerce business,
causing its overall revenue to record a year-on-year
decline of 8.6%. Despite such difficult times, the Group
still emphasises the spirit of striving for progress while
ensuring stability. To strengthen the integration of online
and offline operations and consolidate e-commerce and
physical store retail business, the Group is investing
great efforts to construct a new CRM system that can
be connected with the mini app stores, with a view to
enhancing the Group’s operating efficiency and effectively
managing relationships and interactions with existing
and potential customers so that consumers can have a
convenient and fast shopping experience.

Hong Kong and Macau

In 2023, although Hong Kong’s actual GDP grew by 3.2%
year-on-year, and it seems that Hong Kong’s economy
has been gradually getting rid of the impact of the
pandemic and has been ushering in an overall recovery,
the pace of recovery in different aspects was not in sync.
Factors such as uncertain external environment and high
interest rates in Hong Kong have stifled local domestic
demand. Therefore, Hong Kong’s retail environment has
not yet recovered. Moreover, the consumption pattern
of Mainland China tourists visiting Hong Kong has also
changed, hence even though the sales of the Group’s
cosmetic business recorded a significant year-on-year
increase, it still failed to reach the sales target. After
thorough consideration of the current business
environment in Hong Kong and the Group’s allocation of
resources, the management decided to close its cosmetic
business and concentrate resources on the footwear
business in Mainland China. The Group’s sales in Hong
Kong and Macau increased by 159.3% year-on-year to
RMB7,300,000 (2022/23: RMB2,800,000).
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OUTLOOK AND LONG-TERM STRATEGIES OF THE
GROUP

Moving forward, the retail market is expected to remain
in a very challenging economic environment. Consumer
confidence continues to be undermined by high interest
rate monetary policy and uncertain economic growth
momentum. It is believed that the Chinese government
will launch various measures to stimulate domestic
demand, but the growth in domestic demand may not
be sustainable due to other adverse economic factors.
The Group remains cautiously optimistic about the future
economic growth in Mainland China and will pay extra
attention to domestic policy trends, decisively adjust its
marketing strategies and internal structure, seize every
opportunity in the market, and strive to achieve its growth
targets. As a pure brand retailer, the Group will continue
to leverage the core advantages of its brands, including
but not limited to continuously improving the quality of its
supply chain, focusing on details of craftsmanship, and
striving to design fashionable and comfortable products
for customers.

The Group has consolidated resources to optimise
every aspect of the supply chain, coordinate multiple
online and offline distribution channels, and meet the
diversified consumer needs of customers in a speedy
manner. It is expected that the Group could provide a
consistent and seamless shopping experience to enhance
customer’s loyalty, thereby further strengthening the
Group’s competitiveness in the retail market. In addition,
to effectively manage and strengthen the interactive
relationship with the target customer groups, the Group
will soon launch a new CRM system to manage the new
VIP membership program. Such system is designed to
effectively identify target members, precisely promote to
them with personalised shoes and related products, and
seamlessly assist these members in placing orders. This
will not only improve the sales success rate, but will also
provide members with satisfactory and convenient sales
services.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OUTLOOK AND LONG-TERM STRATEGIES OF THE
GROUP (CONTINUED)

In addition, the Group will soon utilise and combine offline
and online resources with its existing VIP membership
database to build its own traffic system that can be freely
controlled and managed, and become an important
channel for enhancing brand values. The Group will also
launch a mini app store, which will automatically and
accurately push notifications on exclusive activities to
customers based on different categories such as new
customers, existing customers, consumption habits and
social identities to improve sales conversion. Moreover,
the exclusive series will also be released in the mini app
store and draw VIP members’ attention to products of this
exclusive series. The Group firmly believes that planning
and implementing a series of new marketing plans will
increase brand exposure and enhance brand influence.

In terms of operations, the Group will continue to focus
on optimising the network of physical retail stores by
eliminating those physical stores with substandard
performance with a view to reaching target customer
groups more effectively and thereby improving single-store
performance. In addition to stores located in traditional
small- and medium-sized department stores that have
been closed due to poor operation, some stores located
in shopping malls which are not well developed and have
declining customer traffic will also be considered in its
network optimisation. The contract renewal or withdrawal
of existing stores will be based on profitability assessment
and operating conditions, together with the stores’ sales
ranking in the department stores and shopping malls. To
cope with the challenging business environment ahead,
the Group’s resource will not merely focus on the sales
channels at physical store and e-commerce business,
but will also devote more resources on its new business
model, Direct Sales model. The mixture of existing sales
channel and direct sales channel will facilitate the Group
to optimise its sales operations, so as to reduce selling
costs and increase sales contribution in the long run. If
necessary, the Group will also explore new product types
and introduce them into existing product mix with an aim
to meet the diversified needs of consumable market.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B B i B o3 T

OUTLOOK AND LONG-TERM STRATEGIES OF THE
GROUP (CONTINUED)

Last but not least, human resources have always been
a key part of the Group’s development. The Group will
search for talents with more experience, innovative
operational mindset and proficient special skills in the
market, where necessary, to help the Group to gain a
higher corporate competitive advantage. Moreover, the
Group will retain and further cultivate existing outstanding
employees who are motivated and creative to achieve
continuous progress and sustainable development of the
entire team.

As in the past, the Group continues to keep abreast of
trends, understands the latest consumer preferences,
combines its core advantages and implements business
strategies that adapt to the changing environments. The
Group is confident that it can overcome any difficulties
and gain a foothold in the highly competitive footwear
market.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 29 February 2024, the Group had no pledge of
assets (28 February 2023: Nil).

CORPORATE GUARANTEES

The Company has given corporate guarantees in favour of
banks for banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries
of the Company on letters of credit and bank loans
to the extent of RMB101,400,000 (28 February 2023:
RMB70,800,000), of which approximately RMB100,000
was utilised as at 29 February 2024 (28 February 2023:
Nil).

le saunda holdings Itd. Z&EHTFHER AR A7)

SERERRHERE A

REERKEEN  ANWBER-—BERAE
EEEROBESD WAFTE  AEEH
Ems LS EALR BH2ERSE
LARBBERENAS  BHEPDAE
EESESHNLERFED MAYHR
FABGEMBIENNESFSET ~A&H
KRB NE—FIEE - AE R EMEEK
THEEN  AIHEER -

REBE—WMNUNTFEREMBR THHEE
EETNEN BREROVEBRETHE
B ENEmER AEBEELER
RREMENE  EHRFHUNZTEMS
H—F -

3 M

EHEE

RZZB-WNF-_A-+NAH AEEDR

BEWEECT_=ZF-_A=-t/N\A:
&) -

AAE R
ARBERETHBERARMER ZEA
MEBITERZBRITREZESREBEAR
#101,400,000(ZZE - =F - =+ N
E-/\E?ﬁ%msooooo%)&ﬁfﬁﬁ}%{
NEIER  RZZEZOF_A=Z+NHE
A A RK100,000(ZE-=F_A
—+NB: &)



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended to declare a final special
dividend of HK5.0 cents (the “Final Special Dividend”)
per ordinary share for the year ended 29 February 2024
(28 February 2023: no final dividend and final special
dividend) to the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on Tuesday, 23 July 2024.
The proposed Final Special Dividend is subject to the
approval of the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting (the “AGM”) of the Company. If approved,
the Final Special Dividend is expected to be paid on
or around Thursday, 1 August 2024, while a circular
containing further details and notice of the AGM will be
published as soon as practicable.

The Board has resolved to pay an interim special dividend
of HK5.0 cents per ordinary share for the six months
ended 31 August 2023 (six months ended 31 August
2022: no interim dividend and interim special dividend).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 29 February 2024, the Group had a full-time staff
force of 927 people (28 February 2023: 1,120 people),
of which 17 and 910 were based in Hong Kong and
Mainland China respectively. The remuneration level of
the Group’s employees was in line with market trends
and commensurate to the levels of pay in the industry.
Remuneration of the Group’s employees comprised
basic salaries, bonuses and long-term incentives. Total
employee benefit expenses for the twelve months ended
29 February 2024, including Directors’ emoluments and
net pension contributions, amounted to RMB121,700,000
(2022/23: RMB135,900,000). The Group has all along
organised structured and diversified training programmes
for staff at different levels. External consultants will
be invited to broaden the contents of the training
programmes.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

HERTARETHEAR

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky, aged 60, first joined the Group
in 1981 and was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Company in September 1992 and left the Group
in September 2010. She re-joined the Group in April
2016. She is an Executive Director of the Company
and acts as a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Ms. Chui is responsible for the Group’s supply
chain management, product design and development,
retail, e-commerce and franchise operation, business
development and brand management. She has over 30
years of experience on retail and product management.
Prior to re-joining the Group, she was the chief executive
officer in a renowned handbag company in Mainland
China and was responsible for footwear products
development, manufacturing management and retail
operations.

Li Wing Yeung, Peter, aged 65, joined the Group in
January 2000 and was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company in January 2020. He is responsible for the
development and quality control of the Group’s products.
He also acts as a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Li has over 18 years of experience in
product management. He is the son of Mr. Lee Tze Bun,
Marces, a controlling shareholder of the Company and the
brother-in-law of Ms. Liu Tsz Yan, an executive director of
the Company.

Liu Tsz Yan, aged 38, joined the Group in April 2022
and is responsible for the Group’s cosmetics business,
human resources and administration functions. Ms. Liu
graduated from University of Adelaide with a Bachelor’s
degree in Economics and a Master’s degree in Wine
Business. She is a member of Rotary Club Central. Ms.
Liu has over 10 years of experience in marketing and
human resources areas. Prior to joining the Group, Ms.
Liu was the marketing manager of a catering company
in Hong Kong. She is the daughter-in-law of Mr. Lee Tze
Bun, Marces, a controlling shareholder of the Company
and the sister-in-law of Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter, an
executive director of the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

James Ngai, aged 61, joined the Group in March
2011. He is a Non-Executive Director of the Company,
the Chairman of the board of the Company (the
“Board”) and a member of the remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination
committee (the “Nomination Committee”) of the Board.
He is responsible for the Group’s leadership and
management of the Board and the Group’s strategy.
Mr. Ngai graduated from University of Toronto with a
Bachelor’s degree in Economics. He is a Certified Public
Accountant (Practising) in Hong Kong and a member of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is
also a fellow member of The Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong. He has over 30 years of experience in accounting,
auditing and taxation matters. Mr. Ngai is a director of
Stable Gain Holdings Limited (“Stable Gain”) which has
an interest in the shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”). He is also an independent
non-executive director of Max Sight Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 08483), the shares of which are listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ERGTLAREEHAR

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Lam Siu Lun, Simon, aged 75, joined the Group in
January 2006. He is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company, the chairman of the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”) of the Board and
the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee. Mr. Lam graduated from The
University of Hong Kong in 1973. After graduation, he
worked at KPMG London and Hong Kong and obtained
his qualification as a chartered accountant and certified
public accountant from The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants respectively. Mr.
Lam has been a practising accountant for over 30 years
and is the proprietor of Messrs. S. L. Lam & Company.
He has served as a member of Insider Dealing Tribunal on
a number of occasions. Mr. Lam is also an independent
non-executive director of Lifestyle International Holdings
Limited, a privatised company, the shares of which
were previously listed on the Stock Exchange. He was
previously an independent non-executive director of
Sansheng Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd. (formerly known as
Lifestyle Properties Development Limited), the shares of
which were previously listed on the Stock Exchange.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Leung Wai Ki, George, aged 66, joined the Group in
September 2004. He is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company and a member of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee. Mr. Leung has over 30 years of
experience in accounting, financial management, auditing
and receivership. He is a director and financial controller
of a real estate development company in Hong Kong.

Hui Chi Kwan, aged 75, joined the Group in November
2007. He is an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company, the chairman of the Nomination Committee and
a member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. Mr. Hui graduated from The University of
Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s degree in Laws in 1980
and has been a solicitor practicing in Hong Kong since
1988. Before joining the Group, Mr. Hui was a partner of
a law firm in Hong Kong. He retired from the partnership
in 2007 and has remained as a consultant of the said law
firm. Ms. Chan Kit Yin, an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company, is also a partner of that law firm.
Mr. Hui is also an independent non-executive director of
Max Sight Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 08483),
the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Chan Kit Yin, aged 51, joined the Group in August
2023. She is an Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company and a member of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.
Ms. Chan has been a solicitor practising in Hong Kong for
over 25 years and is a partner of a law firm in Hong Kong,
of which Mr. Hui Chi Kwan, an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company, had been a partner before he
retired from the partnership in 2007 and currently remains
as a consultant. Ms. Chan graduated from The University
of Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s degree in Laws in 1994
and obtained a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from The
University of Hong Kong in 1996. Ms. Chan is a member
of The Law Society of Hong Kong.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ERGTLAREEHAR

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Chan Tsz Lok, aged 48, joined the Group in August
2009. He is the Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary of the Company and is responsible for the
Group’s financial control and accounting, treasury, tax,
legal and company secretarial matters. Mr. Chan holds
a Master degree of Science in Financial Management
from Heriot Watt University, UK and is a fellow member
of Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the
United Kingdom. He has over 26 years of experience in
internal control, financial management and accounting.
Prior to joining the Group, he has held senior positions
in a multinational corporation and manufacturing groups
listed on Stock Exchange.

Li Ying Ying, aged 55, joined the Group in September
1997. She is the General Manager (Southern China) of the
Group and is responsible for the Group’s retail business
operations in the southern region of Mainland China.
Ms. Li has over 27 years of retail experience in Mainland
China.

Xiao Kun Min, aged 49, joined the Group in March
2004. She is the General Manager (Southwestern China)
of the Group and is responsible for the Group’s retail
business operations in southwestern region of Mainland
China. Ms. Xiao has over 28 years of retail experience in
Mainland China.

Cheng Dong Xue, aged 57, joined the Group in October
2018. He is the General Manager (Northern China) of the
Group and is responsible for the Group’s retail business
operations in Northern, Northeastern and Northwestern
of Mainland China. Mr. Cheng has over 30 years of retail
experience in Mainland China.

Huang Li Han, aged 52, joined the Group in July
2000. She is the General Manager (Eastern China) of the
Group and is responsible for the Group’s retail business
operations in Eastern region of Mainland China. Ms.
Huang has over 24 years of retail experience in Mainland
China.

le saunda holdings Itd. K@ & FHER AR A 7

SEEBAE
BRFE W+ N\ RZZEZNF/\AM
AREE - BRARAIZERUMBHE
RARIME TEEARENMBEE
au+ ME BB EZABRATWES
o PRI HE B R R E G FLF KE
ﬂ‘“%ﬁfﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁifﬁﬁ&%ﬁ.fF-irEfF”D\EL\
LHMAEEREE - BRALEE
PRERELE ui’ﬁﬁ%ﬁi-‘f‘/\i%&%ﬁ °
RMAREER > FEREBEAFLRER
REBXAEMzRBECEEEEETSR
B % e

ZHB - A+AR R AAEFAAN
AREE - WRRNEE 2 BEE(hEE

ME) AEASEEAETERAEERE L
TEXBLE FRINFTEAETE

EHEA -+ EEER -

Hig WtAR R-SZTWNF=AMN
AREE - WRAEE 2 BKEFER
ME) BEAKREETRERERERZ
TEXBEE BHLXIRTBERKREZTESE
BREE_TN\F&®-

BREZ Ottm R-ZT—-AF+TAM
$§.‘%l°f)§27%zl§'§l2?@%%i¥(¢l%ﬁ
ite) AEAEEERERNEEIL R
EhAltE cTEXHES - 2LE
RPBEAEZEEERTRA=TF&ER -

BENE A tm RZZEZEZTFLAM
AREE BAASE 2 BEE(FEHE
%IE) BEASBEEPBEAEEZERRE 2

%ﬂ‘i EoBmBZLITRPBRKRKESTE
*‘fﬁ THINFE LR -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Le Saunda Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) is committed
to achieving and maintaining the highest standard of
corporate governance. The Board and its management
understand that it is their responsibility to establish a
good corporate management system and practice and
strictly comply with the principles of independence,
accountability, responsibility and impartiality so as to
improve the operation transparency of the Company,
protect the interests of shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) and create value for the Shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate practices are in line with the
principles of good corporate governance and the code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) as set out in Part 2 of Appendix C1 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The Company confirms that for
the year ended 29 February 2024, it has fully complied
with the code provisions of the CG Code save for the
deviation described below. Since October 2019, the
position of Chief Executive Officer of the Company has
been vacant. To ensure the roles of the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer not to be performed by the
same individual, the responsibilities of the Chief Executive
Officer for the conduct of the business of the Company
have been taken up by other executive Directors of the
Company, who have extensive knowledge of the Group’s
operations and business issues, particularly on corporate
strategy matters, that they can exercise the appropriate
judgement and make proposal to the Board.

While the Company intended to appoint a new
independent non-executive Director, Dr. Lui Tsz Wai (“Dr.
Lui”), at its annual general meeting on 18 July 2023 (“2023
AGM”) in accordance with Code Provision B.2.4(b) of
the CG Code, subsequent to the despatch of the notice
of 2023 AGM, the Board received a notice from Dr. Lui
notifying the Company that she had decided to withdraw
her consent to act as an independent non-executive
Director. Since the proposed appointment at the 2023
AGM did not materialise, the Board appointed Ms. Chan
Kit Yin as a new independent non-executive Director with
effect from 28 August 2023.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
(CONTINUED)

The Board will continue to enhance the Group’s corporate
governance practices appropriate to the conduct and
growth of the Group’s business and to review such
practices from time to time to ensure that they comply
with statutory and professional standards and align with
the latest developments.

CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY

In order to achieve long-term goals and carry out a
sustainable business model, the Group cultivates four
main corporate cultures, namely teamwork culture,
respective culture, ethical culture and innovation culture,
through its three core values, namely Supreme Quality,
Innovative Thinking and Mutual Respect. With the Group’s
purpose and corporate culture, the Board leads all levels
of the Group to act in a legal, ethical and responsible
manner to protect the relevant rights and interests of
customers, partners, investors, suppliers, employees and
other stakeholders.

The management is responsible for formulating the
Group’s corporate culture to ensure that its core values
and purpose are reflected. By taking into account factors
such as the Board’s view, stakeholders’ analysis and
development trends, the management has formulated
four main sustainable corporate strategies, namely green
growth philosophy, technology development, innovative
operational management and staff development, which
are then subsequently reviewed and approved by the
Board.

Various circumstances such as staff engagement,
employee retention and training, whistleblowing, data
privacy and anti-corruption policies, and compliance
with laws, rules and regulations have comprehensively
reflected our corporate culture. Accordingly, the Board
believes that the Group’s purpose, values and strategies
are aligned with the Group’s culture.

For the details of the Group’s corporate strategies, please
refer to the Chairman’s statement on pages 15 to 22 of
this report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is committed to providing effective and
responsible leadership for the Company. The Directors,
individually and collectively, must act in good faith in the
best interests of the Company and its Shareholders.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises three Executive Directors,
one Non-Executive Director and four Independent
Non-Executive Directors. The Board has established three
board committees, namely the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”), remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”), to oversee different areas of the Company’s
affairs. The composition of the Board and the board
committees are set out below and their respective
responsibilities and work performed during the year are
discussed elsewhere in this report.

During the year ended 29 February 2024 and up to the
date of this report, the Board comprises the following
members:

Executive Directors

Ms. Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky
Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter
Ms. Liu Tsz Yan

Non-Executive Director
Mr. James Ngai (Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon
Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George
Mr. Hui Chi Kwan
Ms. Chan Kit Yin
(appointed with effect from 28 August 2023)

Ms. Chan Kit Yin confirms that she (i) has obtained the
legal advice referred to in Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules
on 6 September 2023 and (i) understands her obligations
as a director of a listed issuer.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Board Composition (Continued)

There is no relationship (including financial, business,
family or other material relationships) among members of
the Board, except that:

(@)

Mr. James Ngai is a director of an accounting firm
which provides advisory and audit services to private
companies owned by Mr. Lee Tze Bun, Marces, a
controlling Shareholder, the father of Mr. Li Wing
Yeung, Peter and the father-in-law of Ms. Liu Tsz Yan;

Both Mr. Lee Tze Bun, Marces and Mr. James Ngai
are the directors of Stable Gain Holdings Limited
(“Stable Gain”), a controlling Shareholder. The entire
issued share capital of Stable Gain was registered
in the name of Stable Profit Holdings Limited
(“Stable Profit”), a company wholly-owned by HSBC
International Trustee Limited (“HSBC Trustee”) which
acted as trustee of Lee Tze Bun Family Trust (the
“LTB Family Trust”), a discretionary trust, of which Mr.
Lee Tze Bun, Marces was the founder and an eligible
beneficiary thereunder. Mr. Lee Tze Bun, Marces was
also the sole director of Stable Profit;

Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter, the son of Mr. Lee Tze
Bun, Marces and brother-in-law of Ms. Liu Tsz Yan,
is a trustee of The Lee Keung Charitable Foundation
(“Charitable Foundation”), of which Mr. Lee Tze Bun,
Marces is the founder;

Ms. Liu Tsz Yan is the daughter-in-law of Mr. Lee
Tze Bun, Marces and the sister-in-law of Mr. Li Wing
Yeung, Peter;

Both Mr. James Ngai and Mr. Hui Chi Kwan are
independent non-executive directors of Max Sight
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 08483); and

Ms. Chan Kit Yin is a partner of a law firm in Hong
Kong, of which Mr. Hui Chi Kwan had been a partner
before he retired from the partnership in 2007 and
currently remains as a consultant.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Board Composition (Continued)

The biographical details of each Director are set out
in the section headed “Board of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 40 to 44 of this report.

Each Director possesses the necessary expertise
and experience and provides checks and balances
for safeguarding the interests of the Group and
the Shareholders as a whole. During the year, the
Independent Non-Executive Directors have brought
independent judgment on issues relating to the Group’s
strategy, performance and management process,
taking into account the interests of all Shareholders.
Notwithstanding the fact that each of Mr. Lam Siu Lun,
Simon, Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George and Mr. Hui Chi Kwan
has served as an independent non-executive Director for
more than 9 years, the Board is satisfied that they are still
independent in discharging their duties as required. Their
active participation in the Board and committee meetings
in the past have demonstrated their abilities to exercise
independent judgement and to provide an objective and
balanced view in relation to the affairs of the Company.
Their individual expertise and extensive experience in their
respective fields have continued to provide diverse and
valuable advice to the Board from different perspectives.
In addition, all of them possess the required character,
integrity and familiarity with the Group’s business and
culture to safeguard the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Board Composition (Continued)

During the year under review and up to the date of this
report, the Company has four Independent Non-Executive
Directors representing not less than one-third of the
Board. Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon, one of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors, has the appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules. The Company has received from
each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors a
written confirmation of his/her independence and has
satisfied itself of such independence in accordance with
the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. Whilst Mr. James Ngai and Mr. Hui Chi
Kwan are directors of both the Company and Max Sight
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 08483) and thus
hold cross-directorships, the Board determines that Mr.
Hui Chi Kwan is nevertheless independent with respect
to his directorship at the Company since Mr. James Ngai
and Mr. Hui Chi Kwan hold only non-executive roles at
both companies and have no interest in both companies
as disclosed under Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

Board Meetings

The Board conducts meetings on a regular basis and on
an ad hoc basis of at least four times a year to discuss
the overall strategy as well as the operational and financial
performance of the Group, and to review and approve
the Group’s annual and interim results. The Board
members are served with notices of at least 14 days and
provided with all agendas and adequate information for
their review at least 3 days before the meetings. After
the meetings, draft minutes are circulated to all Directors
for comments before confirmation and sign-off. Minutes
of board meetings and meetings of board committees
are kept by the company secretary of the Company (the
“Company Secretary”) and are available for inspection by
any Director at any reasonable time on reasonable notice.
Each Director is entitled to seek independent professional
advice under appropriate circumstances at the expense
of the Company. During the year ended 29 February
2024, the Board held 6 physical meetings and 5 written
resolutions were signed and passed by all Directors.
The attendance records of each Director at the Board
meetings are set out on page 65 of this report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board is accountable to the Shareholders for the
development of the Group with the goal of maximising
Shareholders’ value in the long run. The Board also takes
the responsibility for the overall strategies and policies
of the Group, approves and monitors the strategic
plans, investment and funding decisions, and reviews
the Group’s financial and operational performance and
internal controls. The Group’s day-to-day operations and
administration are overseen by the Executive Directors
and the management.

The Board is responsible for setting the strategic
direction and policies of the Group and supervising the
management of the Company. Some functions including
the monitoring and approval of material transactions,
matters involving a conflict of interest for a substantial
Shareholder or Director of the Company, the approval
of interim and annual results, declaration of interim
dividends and proposal of final dividends and other
disclosures to the public or regulators are reserved by
the Board for consideration and approval. Matters not
specifically reserved to the Board and necessary for the
daily management and operation of the Company are
delegated to the Executive Directors and the management
of the Company. The management team of the Company
is accountable to the Board for the daily management and
operation of the Company.

Directors’ Training

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Company would provide a
comprehensive induction package covering the summary
of the operations and business, constitutional documents,
the latest published financial reports of the Company,
“A Guide on Directors’ Duties” issued by the Companies
Registry of Hong Kong and the Guidelines for Directors
and the Guide for Independent Non-Executive Directors
published by the Hong Kong Institute of Directors to
each newly appointed Director to ensure that he/she is
sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Directors’ Training (Continued)

EEg(H)
EEHIGE)

The Company Secretary reports from time to time the ARMWEAHRAESZTER -mHI - B
latest changes and development of the Listing Rules, &8 &% 8  &EHE e kE)5((ESG))
corporate governance practices, environmental, social FEBULKEMEESHEZ SHEFHNERE
and governance (“ESG”) issues and other regulatory WiIRHHBEEEE R » ML B8 B E R
regime to the Directors with written materials, as wellas FHESFTEBHELABE T EXZENHLES
organises seminars on the professional knowledge and RERHZEHIBEN ©

latest development of regulatory requirements related to

Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

During the year under review and up to the date of this HREBEEREEAREHE  FEESE
report, all Directors pursued continuous professional HAEZRXHFEFZELRER LB HEBEE R
development and the relevant details are set out below: Flatan T

Types of training

Name of Directors EEHR =3I 58 A
Executive Directors: HITESE:

Ms. Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky TR L L B
Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter FxBEE B
Ms. Liu Tsz Yan BIFEAZ LT B
Non-Executive Director: FEHITESE:

Mr. James Ngai {57 JE & 5 & A, B
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BIFHTEE:

Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon MROK B o £ A, B
Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George REELEE B
Mr. Hui Chi Kwan N =g A
Ms. Chan Kit Yin (Note) bR R I 2+ (K7 2F) A
Remarks: FAE -

A — Attending seminars/conferences/forums
B — Reading journals/updates/articles/materials

Note:

A—HERNE @% WiE
B— MEHT &MEN/XE/EH

Ky et

Ms. Chan Kit Yin was appointed as Independent Non-Executive Director BmEN ALt —E-——ENB-+\BREEEAESE

with effect from 28 August 2023.

T
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance coverage for indemnifying the
Directors and officers of the Company against costs,
charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred arising
out of the corporate activities.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Board is responsible for selecting and appointing
individuals with integrity, experience and caliber to act as
Directors. The Board reviews the profiles of the candidates
and seeks recommendations from the Nomination
Committee on the appointment and re-election of the
Directors.

According to bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-Laws”),
each Director so appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy on or as an addition to the Board shall hold office
only until the first annual general meeting (the “AGM”)
of the Company after his appointment and shall then be
eligible for re-election. Moreover, one-third of the Directors
for the time being, (or, if their number is not a multiple
of three, then the number nearest to but not less than
one-third), shall retire from office by rotation, provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement at least once
every three years. The rotating Directors who are subject
to retirement and re-election at the forthcoming AGM are
set out on page 128 of this report.

All Non-Executive Directors (including the Independent
Non-Executive Directors) of the Company were appointed
for a specific term of 2 years but subject to the relevant
provisions of the Bye-Laws or any other applicable laws
whereby the Directors shall vacate or retire from their
office but be eligible for re-election.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

In order to maintain a balance of power and authority, the
roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company are segregated and assumed by separate
individuals who have no relationship with each other.
During the year, Mr. James Ngai, being the Chairman
of the Board, is responsible for overseeing the function
of the Board and formulating overall strategies and
policies of the Company and ensuring that all Directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at the Board
meetings and receive adequate information, which must
be complete and reliable, in a timely manner. On the
other hand, the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for
the implementation of the Company’s overall strategies
and coordination of overall business operation. Since
October 2019, the position of Chief Executive Officer has
been vacant. To ensure the roles of the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer not to be performed by the
same individual, the responsibilities of the Chief Executive
Officer for the conduct of the business of the Company
have been taken up by other executive Directors of the
Company, who have extensive knowledge of the Group’s
operations and business issues, particularly on corporate
strategy matters, that they can exercise the appropriate
judgement and make proposal to the Board.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has established three board committees,
namely the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee, to oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and to
assist in the execution of the Board’s responsibilities. All
board committees have clear and specific written terms
of reference, report their work to the Board after each
meeting and are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their respective duties. Copies of minutes of
all meetings and written resolutions passed at the board
committees are kept by the Company Secretary.

T
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established with written
terms of reference (as amended) since 1999. As at 29
February 2024 and up to the date of this report, the Audit
Committee comprises four Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon (chairman of
the Audit Committee), Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George, Mr. Hui
Chi Kwan and Ms. Chan Kit Yin. Mr. Lam has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise as required under Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules.

The primary functions and duties of the Audit Committee
are to recommend the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the Company’s external auditor, oversee
the integrity of financial information of the Company
and its disclosure, provide independent review of the
effectiveness of the financial controls, risk management
and internal control systems of the Group, and review
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group. The full terms of reference of the Audit Committee
are posted on the respective websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

During the year, the Audit Committee held 6 physical
meetings with the external auditor, internal auditor and
independent consultants. The Chairman of the Board
and the Chief Financial Officer were invited to attend the
meetings. The attendance records of each member of the
Audit Committee are set out on page 65 of this report.
A summary of work performed by the Audit Committee
during the year was as follows:

(i) review of the audit plan, terms of engagement,
independence and qualification of the external auditor
and the remuneration paid to the external auditor;

(i) review of the financial information of the Group
including the annual and interim financial statements
and related documents before submission to the
Board for approval;

(i) review of the management letters and reports issued
by the external auditor;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Audit Committee (Continued)

(iv) review of accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and the potential impacts of
the change in accounting standards to the Group’s
financial statements;

(v) review of the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group; and

(vi) review of the internal audit reports prepared by
an independent consulting firm in respect of the
effectiveness of the financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management of the
Group twice a year.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established with
written terms of reference (as amended) since 2005. As
at 29 February 2024 and up to the date of this report, the
Remuneration Committee comprises four Independent
Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon
(chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Leung
Wai Ki, George, Mr. Hui Chi Kwan and Ms. Chan Kit Yin,
and one Non-Executive Director, namely Mr. James Ngai.

The primary functions and duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to make recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policy and structure for remuneration
of all Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy, determine the terms
of specific remuneration package of the Executive
Directors and senior management, and review and
approve the performance-based remuneration proposals
with reference to the corporate goals and objectives
resolved by the Board from time to time. The full terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee are posted on
the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Remuneration Committee (Continued)

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held 1
physical meeting. In addition, 2 written resolutions were
signed and passed by all members of the Remuneration
Committee. The attendance records of each member of
the Remuneration Committee are set out on page 65 of
this report. In the meeting, the Remuneration Committee
(i) reviewed the remuneration of the Executive Directors
and senior management of the Company; (i) assessed
the performance of the Executive Directors, (i) approved
performance-based remuneration with reference to the
corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board
and/or the senior management from time to time; and (iv)
ensured that no Director or senior management or any of
his/her associates was involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration. Details of the emoluments for Directors,
chief executive and five highest paid individuals, and
senior management remuneration by band during the
year are set out in notes 10 and 11 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established with written
terms of reference (as amended) since 19 March 2012.
As at 29 February 2024 and up to the date of this report,
the Nomination Committee comprises four Independent
Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Hui Chi Kwan
(chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Lam Siu
Lun, Simon, Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George and Ms. Chan Kit
Yin, and one Non-Executive Director, namely Mr. James
Ngai.

The primary functions and duties of the Nomination
Committee are to review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategies, and
identify individuals suitably qualified to become Directors
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships. The
full terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
posted on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

During the year, the Nomination Committee held 1
physical meeting. In addition, 2 written resolutions were
signed and passed by all members of the Nomination
Committee. The attendance records of each member
of the Nomination Committee are set out on page 65 of
this report. In the meeting, the Nomination Committee (i)
reviewed the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board;
(i) assessed the independence of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors; (iii) made recommendations
to the Board on the proposed re-election of the retiring
Directors at the forthcoming annual general meeting; and
(iv) reviewed the diversity of the Board’s composition.

Board Diversity Policy
Purpose

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (as
amended) with the aim of achieving diversity on the
Board since August 2013. The Company recognises the
benefits of having a diverse Board, and sees diversity of
perspectives at the Board level as essential in achieving a
sustainable and balanced development.

Summary of Policy

In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has
been considered from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge, industry
experience and expertise. All Board appointments are
based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against a variety of criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board. The Nomination
Committee reviews this policy, on an annual basis, to
ensure the effectiveness of this policy. The Nomination
Committee will discuss any revisions that may be required
(including the need to identify potential successors to the
Board to achieve gender diversity), and recommend any
such revisions to the Board for examination and approval.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Nomination Committee (Continued)
Board Diversity Policy (Continued)
Summary of Policy (Continued)

The Board contains individuals who have diverse
educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge, industry experience and expertise. Coming
from diverse business and professional backgrounds,
the Non-Executive Directors (including the Independent
Non-Executive Directors) actively bring their valuable
experience to the Board for promoting the best interests
of the Company and the Shareholders. Further, the
Independent Non-Executive Directors contribute to
ensuring that the interests of all Shareholders are taken
into account by the Board and that relevant issues are
subject to objective and dispassionate consideration by
the Board. The biographical details of the Directors are
set out on pages 40 to 43 of this report. In implementing
the board diversity policy, the Board aims to have a
balanced composition in each of the relevant areas, but
recognising at the same time that all Board appointments
must be based on meritocracy having regard to the best
interests of the Company and the Shareholders.

Measurable Objectives

Targets have been set to maintain the Board with at
least 50% of members being made up of Non-Executive
Directors and Independent Non-Executive Directors,
together with an appropriate level of female member,
which shall be at least one female member.

The Board has achieved the aforementioned targets
during the year ended 29 February 2024. As at the date
of this report, the Board comprises eight directors, four of
which are independent non-executive directors and one
of which is non-executive director and has three female
members.

Monitoring and Reporting

The Board sets measurable objectives to implement the
Board Diversity Policy and review such objectives from
time to time and at least once per year to ensure their
appropriateness and ascertain the progress made towards
achieving those objectives. The Nomination Committee
will review the Board Diversity Policy from time to time to
ensure its continued effectiveness.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Nomination Committee (Continued)
Board Diversity Policy (Continued)
Gender Diversity of Workforce

During the year ended 29 February 2024, the gender
diversity in workforce levels was generally in line with
the diversity philosophy of the Group. As at 29 February
2024, 93% of our total workforce were female (including
our senior management). We consider this gender ratio
is an appropriate level for a fashion brand operator with
principally offering ladies’ footwear products and we will
continue to review it and make appropriate adjustment in
staff recruitment, if necessary.

Nomination Policy

In December 2018, the Board adopted a nomination
policy (the “Nomination Policy”) with the aim to set out
the criteria and procedures for the Nomination Committee
when considering candidates to be appointed or
re-appointed as the Directors.

(1) The factors listed below will be considered in
assessing the suitability of a candidate:

(@) age, skills, knowledge, experience, expertise,
professional and educational qualifications,
background and other personal qualities of the
candidate;

(b) effect on the Board’s composition and diversity;

(¢ commitment of the candidate to devote
sufficient time to effectively discharge his/her
duties as a member of the Board and/or board
committee(s) of the Company. In this regard,
the number and nature of offices held by the
candidate in public companies or organisations,
and other executive appointments or significant
commitments will be considered;

(d) scrutinising the Company’s performance
in achieving agreed corporate goals and
objectives, and monitoring the reporting of
performance;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Nomination Committee (Continued)
Nomination Policy (Continued)

(1) The factors listed below will be considered in
assessing the suitability of a candidate: (Continued)

(e) independence of the candidate in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules subject to its
amendments from time to time;

(f) potential/actual conflicts of interest that may
arise if the candidate is selected,;

(9) in the case of a proposed re-appointment of
an Independent Non-Executive Director, the
number of years he/she has already served;

(hy conforming to any requirement, direction
and regulation that may from time to time be
prescribed by the Board or contained in the
constitutional documents of the Company or
imposed by legislation or the Listing Rules,
where appropriate; and

()  other factors considered to be relevant by the
Nomination Committee on a case by case basis.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Nomination Committee (Continued)
Nomination Policy (Continued)

(2) Process of appointment of a new Director:

(@) the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
may select candidates for directorship from
various channels, including but not limited
to internal promotion, re-designation, referral
by other members of the management and
external recruitment agents, and should, upon
receipt of the proposal on appointment of a
new Director and the biographical information
(or relevant details) of the candidate, evaluate
such candidate based on the criteria as set out
above to determine whether such candidate
is qualified for directorship. If an Independent
Non-Executive Director is to be appointed, the
Nomination Committee and/or the Board will
also assess and consider whether the candidate
can satisfy the independence requirements as
set out in the Listing Rules;

(b) If the process yields one or more desirable
candidates, the Nomination Committee and/
or the Board should rank them by order of
preference based on the needs of the Company
and reference check of each candidate (where
applicable);

(¢ The Nomination Committee should then
recommend to the Board to appoint the
appropriate candidate for directorship, as
applicable; and

(d For any person that is nominated by
Shareholders for election as a Director at
the general meeting of the Company, the
Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
evaluate such candidate based on the criteria
as set out above to determine whether such
candidate is qualified for directorship.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Nomination Committee (Continued)
Nomination Policy (Continued)

(3) Re-election of Director at General Meeting:

(@ The Nomination Committee and/or the
Board should review the overall contribution
and service to the Company of the retiring
Director and his/her level of participation and
performance on the Board,

(b) The Nomination Committee and/or the Board
should also review and determine whether
the retiring Director continues to meet the
criteria as set out above. If an Independent
Non-Executive Director is subject to the
re-election, the Nomination Committee and/or
the Board will also assess and consider whether
the Independent Non-Executive Director
will continue to satisfy the independence
requirements as set out in the Listing Rules; and

(¢ The Nomination Committee and/or the
Board should then make recommendation
to Shareholders in respect of the proposed
re-election of Director at the general meeting.

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect or re-elect
a candidate as Director at the general meeting, the
relevant information of the candidate will be disclosed in
the circular to Shareholders and/or explanatory statement
accompanying the notice of the relevant general meeting
in accordance with the Listing Rules and/or applicable
laws and regulations.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Nomination Committee (Continued)
Nomination Policy (Continued)

The following graph provides an analysis on the
composition of the Board as at the date of this report:

Number of Directors

EXHA

9

EDs Female

e poglis

Designation

v

Gender
MR

Remarks:

EDs — Executive Directors

NEDs — Non-Executive Directors
INEDs — Independent Non-Executive Directors
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Attendance Records

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The individual attendance records of each Director at
the physical meetings of the Board, Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee and
the 2023 annual general meeting of the Company (“2023
AGM”) during the year ended 29 February 2024 are set

out below:
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Number of physical meetings attended/held during his/her tenure

fitE/ RERHAET2EREA

Audit Remuneration  Nomination
Note Board ~ Committee ~ Committee  Committee 2023 AGM
—E-=F
i E32 ERKZET HMZEe REZEe REAFAe
Executive Directors: HITES:
Ms. Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky REHTT 5/6 N/A N/A N/A 1/1
FER TEH TEm
Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter FXBEE 6/6 N/A N/A N/A 0/1
TEH TR T
Ms. Liu Tsz Yan BIEEXT 6/6 N/A N/A N/A 11
TEH TiEA TR
Non-Executive Director: FYTES:
Mr. James Ngai RAEELE 1 5/6 5/5 1/1 1/1 1/1
Independent Non-Executive BUFHTEE:
Directors:
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon MKBELE 6/6 6/6 11 11 11
Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George PRELE 6/6 6/6 1 1 11
Mr. Hui Chi Kwan FRBAE 6/6 6/6 11 1A 1/1
Ms. Chan Kit Yin BZELT 2 3/3 4/4 N/A N/A N/A
TEH T T H
Notes: it -
1. Mr. James Ngai attended the Audit Committee meetings as an invitee. 1. REEFEEAZBEEHEEELEZRT SR -
2. Ms. Chan Kit Yin was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive 2. RERLLTAE-F-ZFN\A-TN\BEEERE

Director with effect from 28 August 2023.

REILIFWTES -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Company is committed to enhancing its corporate
governance practices relevant to the model and growth of
its business. In order to achieve a right balance between
governance and performance, the Board is responsible for
ensuring the application of the principles in the CG Code
and introducing and proposing other relevant principles
concerning corporate governance so as to enhance the
standard of corporate governance of the Company. The
Board is primarily responsible for performing the following
corporate governance functions adopted with written
terms of reference (as amended) on 19 March 2012:

()  to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management of the Group;

(i) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees of the Group and the Directors; and

(v) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and Environmental, Social and Governance
reporting Guide and disclosure in the corporate
governance report and ESG report.

The details of the corporate governance functions
reviewed and performed by the Board during the year are
further disclosed and explained elsewhere in this report.

T
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 29 February 2024, in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Listing Rules.
In preparing the financial statements, the Directors have
adopted HKFRSs and suitable accounting policies and
applied them consistently, made judgments and estimates
that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the
financial statements on a going concern basis. The Board
is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to any
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern
in the course of preparing and reviewing the financial
statements for the year under review.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditor of the
Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers, on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group are set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditor's Report” on pages
141 to 151 of this report.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee on the re-appointment of the external
auditor of the Company.

Auditor’s Remuneration

For the year ended 29 February 2024, the fees in respect
of audit and non-audit services (the non-audit services
comprised of professional services and tax advisory
services only) provided to the Group by the external
auditor of the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers,
amounted to approximately HK$1,550,000 (2022/23:
HK$1,860,000) and HK$42,234 (2022/23: HK$44,502)
respectively. The Audit Committee was of the view that
the non-audit services provided by the external auditor
of the Company did not impair its independence and
objectivity.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Tsz Lok (“Mr. Chan”) was appointed as the
Company Secretary of the Company on 1 September
2021. Mr. Chan is a fellow member of Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom. In
his capacity as the Company Secretary, Mr. Chan reports
to the Board and is responsible for advising the Board on
corporate governance matters. In compliance with Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Chan took not less than 15
hours of relevant professional training during the year.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules
as its own code of conduct (the “Code of Conduct”)
regarding securities transactions by the Directors since
4 Qctober 2005. The terms of the Code of Conduct are
no less exacting than the required standard in the Model
Code, and the Code of Conduct applies to all the relevant
persons as defined in the Code of Conduct, including the
Directors, any employee of the Company, or a Director
or employee of a subsidiary or holding company of the
Company, who, by reason of such office or employment,
are likely to be in possession of unpublished price
sensitive information in relation to the Company or its
securities.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Code of
Conduct and the required standard set out in the Model
Code during the year ended 29 February 2024 and up to
the date of this report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has developed the Group’s internal control,
risk assessment and management systems (including
environmental, social and governance risks) and has
overall responsibility for reviewing and maintaining
adequate and effective risk management and internal
control systems to safeguard the interests of the
Shareholders and the assets of the Group. It reviews and
evaluates the effectiveness of the said systems at least
annually (and has done so during the year under review)
to ensure the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Group’s accounting, internal audit, financial reporting
functions as well as those relating to the Group’s ESG
performance and reporting.

Risk Management and Internal Control Systems

The Company’s risk management and internal control
systems are designed to manage and mitigate risks,
rather than eliminate risks, of failure to achieve the
business objectives of the Company, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. We have employed a bottom-up
approach for identification, assessment and mitigation of
risk at all business unit levels and across functional areas.

Main Features of Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The key elements of the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems include the establishment of a risk
register to keep track of and document identified risks, the
assessment and evaluation of risks, the development and
continuous updating of responsive procedures, and the
ongoing testing of internal control procedures to ensure
their effectiveness.

An ongoing risk management approach is adopted by the
Company for identifying and assessing the key inherent
risks that affect the achievements of its objectives. A
risk matrix is adopted by the Company to determine risk
rating (L = low risk, M = medium risk, H = high risk) after
evaluation of the risk by the likelihood and the impact of
the risk event. The risk ratings reflect the level of attention
of the management and the effort of risk treatment
required.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(CONTINUED)

Process used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks

During the process of risk assessment, each of the risk
owners of departments and major subsidiaries is required
to capture and identify the key inherent risks that affect
the achievement of its objectives. Each inherent risk
is evaluated according to the risk matrix. After taking
into consideration of the risk response, such as control
measures in place to mitigate the risk, the residual risk
of each inherent risk is evaluated again. The risk register
with the risk responses and residual risks is reported to
the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee evaluates the
effectiveness of the systems and reports to the Board.
The highest category of residual risks is subject to the
Board’s oversight.

Process used to review the effectiveness of the
Risk Management and Internal Control Systems
and to resolve material internal control defects

In view of the Company’s business and scale of
operations, the Group set up an internal audit
department (the “Internal Auditor”) in August 2017 with
an aim to continuously improve the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control of the Group. The
Internal Auditor is required to prepare a risk oriented
annual audit plan, and on the basis of risk assessment
results, determine the work focus of internal audit that is in
line with the organisation objective. The annual audit plan
should be subject to approval by the Audit Committee.

Further, the Board has engaged an independent
consulting firm (the “Consultant”) to conduct a
thorough review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems for the period
from 1 March 2023 to 29 February 2024 in accordance
with the requirements under Code Provision D.2 of the
CG Code, according to the scope of review agreed and
approved by the Audit Committee.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(CONTINUED)

Process used to review the effectiveness of the
Risk Management and Internal Control Systems
and to resolve material internal control defects
(Continued)

After conducting a review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group
during the year, the Internal Auditor and the Consultant
reported to the Audit Committee and the Audit Committee
was satisfied that there had been no major deficiency
noted in the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems after implementation of the recommendations
of the Internal Auditor and the Consultant with regard
to internal control defects. The Audit Committee
reviews annually, and has reviewed during the year, the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures and
has access to information necessary to fulfil its duties
and responsibilities with respect to risk assessment
and risk management. Based on the foregoing review,
the Audit Committee and the Board considered the risk
management and internal control systems to be effective
and adequate during the year.

Procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information

The Board has established a policy on the procedures
and internal controls for the handling and dissemination
of inside information. The policy stipulates the duty
and responsibility of inside information announcement,
restriction on sharing non-public information, handling of
rumours, unintentional selective disclosure, exemption
and waiver to the disclosure of inside information, and
also compliance and reporting procedures. Every member
of the senior management of the Company must take all
reasonable measures to ensure that proper safeguards
exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure requirement in
relation to the Company from time to time. They must
promptly bring any possible leakage or divulgence of
inside information to the attention of the Chief Financial
Officer, who will notify the Board accordingly for taking the
appropriate action promptly. For any material violation of
this policy, the Board will decide, or designate appropriate
persons to decide, on a course of actions for rectifying
the problem and avoiding recurrence.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company intends to create long-term value for the
Shareholders through maintaining a balance between
dividend distribution, preserving adequate liquidity and
reserve to meet its working capital requirements and
capturing future growth opportunities. The Board has
sole discretion to declare and distribute dividends to
the Shareholders subject to any restrictions under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
Memorandum of Association and the Bye-Laws of the
Company and any other applicable laws, rules and
regulations.

The Board adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”) to provide guidance on whether to propose a
dividend and to guide the Board to consider, inter alia, the
following factors in determining the dividend amount:

° the Group’s actual earnings performance;

o retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the subsidiaries of the Group;

e the Group’s expected working capital requirements,
capital expenditure requirements and future
expansion plans;

e the Group’s liquidity position;

e general economic conditions, business cycle of the
Group’s business and internal or external factors that
may have an impact on the business, financial results
and position of the Company; and

° other factors that the Board may deem appropriate
and relevant.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to
time and may exercise its sole and absolute discretion to
update, amend and/or modify the Dividend Policy at any
time as it deems fit and necessary. There is no assurance
that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for
any given period. The Dividend Policy shall in no way
constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company
that any dividend will be paid in any particular amount
and/or in no way obligate the Company to declare a
dividend at any time or from time to time.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company treats all Shareholders equally and ensures
that the Shareholders’ rights are protected and every
convenience is provided to them where practicable to
enable the exercise of their rights.

1. Procedures for convening a special general
meeting (“SGM”)

Pursuant to Bye-Law 58 of the Bye-Laws,
Shareholders (the “Requisitionists”) holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company may request the Board to call a SGM
by a written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary. The objects of the meeting must be stated
in the written requisition. The requisition must be
signed by the Requisitionists and deposited with
the Company Secretary at the Company’s head
office and principal place of business in Hong Kong
at Suites 1104-1106, 11th Floor, 1063 King's Road,
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong. Before convening the SGM
of the Company, the requisition will be verified with
the Company’s Share Registrars in Bermuda or Hong
Kong to obtain their confirmation that the request is
proper and in order. The SGM shall be held within
2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
within 21 days of such deposit, the Requisitionists
themselves may convene such physical meeting in
the same manner in accordance with Section 74 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended).
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

2.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
Shareholders’ meetings

Pursuant to Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), (i) the
shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth
of the total voting rights; or (i) not less than 100
shareholders, are entitled to request the Company
to give shareholders notice of a resolution which
is intended to be moved at the next AGM or
SGM. A written notice to that effect signed by the
Requisitionist(s) with contact information must be
deposited at the Company’s head office and principal
place of business in Hong Kong at Suites 1104-11086,
11th Floor, 1063 King’s Road, Quarry Bay, Hong
Kong (addressed to the Company Secretary). The
notice shall contain, inter alia, a description of the
proposed resolution desired to be put forward at
the meeting, the reasons for such a proposal and
any material interest of the proposing shareholder in
such a proposal. The request will be verified with the
Company’s Share Registrars in Bermuda or Hong
Kong and upon their confirmation that the request is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask
the Board to include the resolution in the agenda for
the general meeting.

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person other
than a retiring Director for election as a Director at a
general meeting, the Shareholder should follow the
“Procedures for Shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director”, which is posted on the
website of the Company.

Procedures for raising enquiries to the Board

The Shareholders may at any time send their
enquiries and concerns to the Board in writing
through the Company Secretary whose contact
details are as follows:

Address: Suites 1104-1106, 11th Floor, 1063 King’s
Road, Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

Facsimile: (852) 2554 9304

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the
Board at general meetings of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Communication with the Shareholders and
Investors

The Board recognises that effective communication
with the Company’s investors plays a crucial role in
maintaining existing investors’ confidence and attracting
new investors and enhancing their understanding of the
Group’s performance, strategies and future direction. The
Company has in place a shareholders’ communication
policy (“Shareholders’ Communication Policy”) to ensure
that Shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately
addressed. To foster effective communication with the
Shareholders and potential investors of the Company,
the Company endeavors to provide accurate, clear,
comprehensive and timely information of the Group
through the publication of the interim and annual reports,
announcements, circulars, press interviews and press
releases on the website of the Company.

The AGM provides a useful platform for the Shareholders
to exchange views with the Board. The Chairman of
the Board and the Chairman of each board committees
are available at the AGM to answer questions from the
Shareholders in respect of the matters that they are
responsible and accountable for. The external auditor
of the Company is also available at the AGM to assist
the Directors in addressing any relevant queries by
the Shareholders. To ensure the Board is maintaining
an on-going dialogue with the Shareholders, the
Shareholders are encouraged to attend the AGM or other
general meetings of the Company. The notice of AGM is
sent to the Shareholders at least 20 clear business days
before the AGM and posted on the respective websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

In addition to the AGM, the Board designates specialised
personnel to maintain close communication with research
analysts, fund managers, the Shareholders and media
outlets via regular one-on-one meetings, luncheons, press
conferences and road shows to keep them informed of
the Group’s business performance and developments.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS (CONTINUED)

Communication with the Shareholders and
Investors (Continued)

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness and
implementation of Shareholders’ Communication Policy
during the year and was of the view that, through
the above-mentioned measures, the Shareholders’
Communication Policy remained effective and was
implemented effectively, to ensure that the Company
maintains long-term effective and good communication
with its shareholders.

Constitutional Documents

There was no change in Memorandum of Association and
the Bye-Laws of the Company during the year ended 29
February 2024.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This Report discloses Le Saunda Holdings Limited (“Le
Saunda” or the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
as the “Group”) in the environmental, social and governance
(“ESG”) performance for the year ended 29 February 2024.

Scope of this Report

Based on the principles of revenue contribution to the Group
and significant interactions with the environment during
the reporting period, the scope of this report disclosed the
operations of the Group in Mainland China that involved
design, development and retailing of products including
ladies’ and men’s footwear, handbags, and accessories.
Meanwhile, this report covered the environmental and social
responsibility performance of the Hong Kong office and
operating sites in Mainland China pertinent to products
including footwear, handbags, and accessories.

Reporting Period

From 1 March 2023 to 29 February 2024 (the “reporting
year”)

Reporting Standard

The Report has been prepared in accordance with the
“Comply or Explain” provisions and Mandatory Disclosure
Requirements of the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide” (the “ESG Guide”) as set
out in Appendix C2 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Reporting Principles
Materiality

The Group regularly makes reference to the industry
sustainability standards at the local and international
level and strives to integrate with them. At the same
time, regular communication with various stakeholders
is used to identify the most concerned and important
sustainability topics for the Group. Those sustainability
topics will also be incorporated into the Group’s
development policies under the overall strategy of the
Group’s operations. The Group has conducted survey
to gather the opinions of key stakeholders on the
Group’s ESG management performance, to identify their
expectations on the Group and developed appropriate
strategies to respond to their views and needs.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT (CONTINUED)
Reporting Principles (Continued)
Quantitative

The Group is committed to quantifying and disclosing key
performance indicators and data within the environmental
and social categories, and whenever feasible, explaining
the methods of data collection and calculation to enhance
transparency of the data.

Balance

In order to maintain the balance of reporting content, fair
disclosure of sustainability performance and challenges
related to the Group and stakeholders is provided with
impartial information to the public.

Consistency

The Group adheres to the ESG Guide of the Listing Rules
for disclosure, which allows the Group to make meaningful
annual comparisons of past performance under the same
framework, and to disclose updated calculation methods
of relevant data when necessary.

BACKGROUND OF THE GROUP

Le Saunda is a local renowned brand for fashionable
footwear, that is engaged in the design and development,
as well as sales of footwear of ladies and men, handbags
and other accessories in Mainland China. The key brands
of the Group include:
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BACKGROUND OF THE GROUP (CONTINUED) AEBESR(E)

1992

2017

—_— —— — ———

Since its establishment, Le Saunda has developed rapidly and become one of the leading
footwear brands in China.
RABHTFTB RIS LA - ERAR - WK AP B AR NERMEL — °

The Group set up production lines at Shunde district in Foshan, China. Since then, the factory
in Shunde has gone through a series of expansion to increase its production capacity.
REEETBEGLTIERER T £ES - U B ERIERBE AR ERE -

Le Saunda was listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
EREBHMAXZAER LT -

The Group expanded its retail network by setting up self-owned stores and franchise stores.
Le Saunda entered into retail market in China as early as 1990s when it opened its first retail
store in Shanghai to develop the huge market in China and unveil a brand new chapter for its
business.

AEEFBRREEEREFLEETNERTEMES - EROOFREFFRTEMS -
REBRBZRE-—RTEE HREANTEMS - AEBBRAZH—H -

It launched a high-end brand “LINEA ROSA” featuring trendsetting designs and premium
quality. It has attracted overwhelming attention and has been well received by the market. In
addition, le saunda MEN has been repositioned as the light luxury brand for fashionable men.
HENZMERkERENSmmE [LINEA ROSA] - EMBZHEEMTERRITOE -
It4N + le saunda MENZE#TE i AR M SR EZmE -

The Group has launched an online brand “PITTI DONNA”.
HEH AR E Gk [PITTIDONNAL o

The Group has ceased its production line at Shunde district in Foshan, China, and has
switched to a brand operating model with products entirely procured from external
subcontractors.

REEKIERFEGLTIERENEES  AZHERIMIBE RN mREER -

“le saunda Y Collection” with a designed concept of “Be yourself” was launched through online
channels, targeting the young customer group.

FHEFERER - L [BRMEC] ARFMHESM [le saunda Y Collection] R EF&H
‘Iﬁ o
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY

The Group recognises the importance of good
environmental management and sustainable development,
so the Group has all along been in strict compliance of
the relevant environmental protection laws and standards
enacted in the places of its operations, including the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) and Hong Kong.

The Group has implemented multiple environmental
protection measures in various business processes and
work premises, including retail stores, warehouses, and
offices. The measures included:

Green supply chain management

During the stages of product design and operation
planning, the Group prioritises the adoption of products
and packing materials made of environmentally-friendly
materials, and focuses on partnership with those
suppliers possessing environmental technology. Moreover,
the Group is committed to managing the environmental
performance of its supply chain.

Facilities
In the configuration of the facilities at the retail stores, the

Group has implemented LED lighting fixtures as one of
the energy saving measures.

Daily operations

For minimisation of paper use, the Group advocates the
“paperless” office, actively promotes electronic information
management system and set up communication devices
to facilitate phone and video conference for reduction in
emission of exhaust gases and greenhouse gases (“GHG”)
arisen from transportation.

T
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BOARD’S GOVERNANCE ON ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE MATTERS

In the post-pandemic era when there were full of
uncertainties in the global economy and the current
economy of Mainland China has yet to show significant
and enduring good momentum in its recovery. The
Group still adheres to a positive attitude in formulating
and adjusting its operating policies for sustainable
development. The board of directors (the “Board”) of the
Group oversees the ESG matters in the context of current
business strategy and ensures that business operations
in continued compliance with local laws and regulations
of the regions where the business is operating, thereby
safeguarding the interests of the Group and stakeholders
as well as enhancing the corporate brand image.

Through different functional departments and working
groups, the Group regularly collects environmental, social
and governance information and then consolidates,
analyses, and discloses performance in the ESG report.
At the annual Board meeting, the Board members review
the performance disclosed in the ESG report to assure
it is aligned with the Group’s business strategy and is
complying to the laws and regulations, and to identify
sustainability topics that are important to the Group
and stakeholders for making appropriate decisions and
adjusting the relevant strategies as needed. During the
reporting year, the Board has identified the ESG risks
amongst the operations, mainly in the aspects of supply
chain management and product responsibility, which
involved the collaboration of various business partners
along the e-commerce’s value chain, as well as product
promotion and brand management.

One of the Group’s long-term brand management
initiatives is the green growth ideology. The Group
implements a new supplier assessment system to choose
suppliers who align with the Group’s green attitude and
set goals for waste reduction, energy conservation and
emission reduction in order to foster a green society. To
further cut carbon emissions, environmentally-friendly
materials were employed, such as the newest shoe box
packaging.
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BOARD’S GOVERNANCE ON ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE MATTERS
(CONTINUED)

Social and governance matters include but not limited to
product responsibility, complaint handling, the general
disclosure regarding company’s policies on product
labelling, advertising, consumer privacy and any remedies
if needed.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group believes that effective communication as
well as accurate and timely information disclosure will
strengthen the confidence of various stakeholders.
The management establishes regular communication
with the various stakeholders for timely exchange of
views and solicitation of feedbacks from each other.
Where appropriate, it will also share the latest business
information and seek to understand the demand
for corporate social responsibility from respective
stakeholders, which helps the Group in achieving different
goals of corporate sustainable development.

The Group believes that employees are important assets.
Therefore, the Group has maintained good relationship
with the employees and strived to keep a low employee
turnover rate for improving the operational capability and
efficiency of the employees as well as promoting team
spirit among them. Upholding the quality of the products
and services is the way to meet the consumers’ needs
and to enhance the business performance. As a result,
maintaining long-term good partnership with suppliers is
also one of the main goals of the Group.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS (CONTINUED) HEENEZBEZRE)

Key stakeholders and the associated channels for FTZEFH M ERMEENBERESE:
communication with them:

Customers Social Media
R 1R

Member Newsletters
GEEHA

"B =

Customer Surveys (Questionnaires, Phone Calls, E-mails)
EERE (% B EH)

Official Website
B 5 48 uh

Market Research
BEECES

Employees Electronic Communication Platform
B8 ETBETA

Internal E-mails and Memos
NEEE N BE

Communication Sessions with Employees
BT EBEZ

Training
w2l

Suppliers Procurement Contracts
HER KEaR

Code of Conduct for Suppliers
{8 B 7 775 <

Supplier Evaluations

HEm T

Community/Charity Groups Partnership Programmes
HEEEEE CRGERE
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

Step 1: Identify topics on environmental, social
and governance

In accordance with the Stock Exchange’s the ESG Guide
as the framework for materiality assessment, and taking
into account of factors such as corporate development
strategies, industry development trends, regulatory and
market requirements, the stakeholder questionnaire was
developed to proceed survey on 23 sustainability topics
in four categories: environmental protection, employment
and labour management, operating practices and
community investment.

Step 2: Identify stakeholders and set up
questionnaires

The stakeholders identified as utmost importance to
the Group were customers, suppliers and employees
respectively. According to their respective perceptions
and expectations, specific content of the topics was
formulated in their respective questionnaires. The
questionnaires were then distributed to the sampled
stakeholders, whose feedback was collected within the
specified time frame.

Step 3: Evaluate and identify material topics

Through statistical analysis of survey feedback from
external stakeholders, and review of the Group’s corporate
strategies and the priorities of internal stakeholders, data
of both external and internal demands was consolidated
for plotting the “ESG Materiality Matrix Diagram”. From the
aforesaid 23 sustainability topics, the ESG material topics
of the Group were identified (in green text in the table
below, as well within the green square in the upper right
corner of the matrix diagram).
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (CONTINUED)

ESG MATERIALITY MATRIX DIAGRAM

Significance of External Stakeholders’ Concern
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E2b ®
® S8 S1b
E3 °
{
o
Elc
[ ]
S3
® E2a o E1a
® E4
4.35 4.40 4.45 4.50 4.55 4.60 4.65 4.70 4.75 4.80

Significance of Internal Stakeholders’ Needs RIS R EERNEEM
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BREL - ALE RERHRE

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (CONTINUED) EEMFTMG(E)
Legend ESG topics Legend ESG topics
L ESG& & L ESG#&E &
Ela Control for emission of air pollutants/ | Sba Supply chain management
greenhouse gas e g
RS, R E R L BT
E1b Wastewater treatment Sb5b Green procurement
& 7K Bz 12 FERE
Elc Solid waste handling S6a Product/service quality
& 58 BE E W0 I8 Ewm/ R 5E
E2a Energy conservation S6b Customers’ health and safety
i 49 82 IR EFNREERZ S
E2b Water conservation S6¢ Customer service and complaint
£ 49 A 7K handling mechanism
B IR K 1 5 BRI 4
E3 Operations minimising environmental | S6d Intellectual property right protection
impacts MBEENERE
BAOEIRBEZENEE
E4 Strategy against climate change S6e Customer data privacy protection
R B b FE B 5K S BEFEARLEAIRE
Sla Employment and staff benefits S7a Corporate governance
EBERETIRA hEER
S1b Equal, anti-discrimination, and S7b Prevention of corruption/bribery and
diversified working environment money laundering
FE S RBEMZITIERER Bk &5 BEER I st R 8
S2 Occupational safety and health S7c Anti-competitive practices
BEZ2REE REEFITR
S3 Employee development and training S8 Community contribution
EEEIEER 1t 1= F B
S4 Prevention of child and forced labour
EHET Kk®BET
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (CONTINUED)
The Group’s top five ESG topics were as follows:

Product/service quality
(S6a)
Em/ R mE

Quality

B - A E R ARl

EEMFMEE
AEBHAEESGHENT :

Social Aspect & & 1§
6) Product Responsibility
EmAE

Customer data privacy
protection (S6e)
BEFPERILERIRE

Information security and
personal data protection
EEREREANERIRE

Social Aspect +t & #3 15

6) Product Responsibility —
Protection of Intellectual Property
Rights
EmBEE — MBEENEE

Customers’ health and
safety (S6b)
EPFHRREARZ S

Customer service

BEP R

Social Aspect T & #i I
6) Product Responsibility
EmEF

Prevention of corruption/
bribery and money

Not yet become an
independent ESG topic

Social Aspect t & & I
7)  Anti-Corruption

laundering (S7b) R BB LESGHE & 8=t

Pt &5 BRAE R kB

Occupational safety and Safety Social Aspect t+ & # I§
health (S2) Z2%E 2) Health and Safety
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B - AL E KRR

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (CONTINUED)

To enhance the granularity of the materiality assessment
results, the number of topics covered in the stakeholder
questionnaire were increased from 18 to 23. During the
materiality assessment in the reporting year, four out of
the top five material ESG topics were identified similar to
those in stakeholder survey conducted two years ago.
The remaining material ESG topic was the prevention of
corruption/bribery and money laundering which was newly
covered in the reporting year. In addition, regarding the
above-mentioned ESG topics, the Group has also in place
a description of relevant policies in this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

In accordance with the requirements of “Comply or
Explain” disclosures for all aspects in the ESG Guide,
the Group has undertaken the disclosure obligation
of pertaining to the compliance of the relevant laws
and regulations of significant impacts, as well as the
“Mandatory Disclosure Requirements” stipulated in the
ESG Guide.

For the year ended 29 February 2024, the Group identified
that there was no significant non-compliance with the laws
and regulations pertinent to the ESG aspects covered by
this report.

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS

Environmental aspect
1) Environmental Management Policies

Being a responsible company, the Group advocates
5R principles for reducing environmental pollution
and raising resource utilisation, namely Refuse,
Reduce, Reuse, Repair and Recycle.

Refuse

For product design, it is dedicated to the use
of non-hazardous and environmentally-friendly
materials. It is also the Group’s policy to pursue
“green procurement”, which requires the suppliers
to maximise the supply of raw materials possessing
degradable characteristics (e.g. shoe boxes) in order
to reduce environmental hazards.

le saunda holdings Itd. Z&EHTFHER AR A7)

EEMFMAE
RTRSEZUEFENERBAE &1
EREHSHMBRENSE EHIBEENE
2H- - MNBEFANEZMFEF B
HAMWELEEANESGEESH T E
EEMEAMETHNRNERNEERMED -
BT EANRESGHE B /N IS F R E
ENMIEEE BB EERE o b
BREMMESGHEE  AEBEARE
TRE AR BR A -

BTHBEERRH

AEBIZRESGHESITEEEA[ A~ EST
IREINEZER  ERBEEAZENMN
BOERRRPIMAE FARR - W ESGHE 3
RERBIREREIBTTREAME -

BE-_Z-_NMF_A-t+HNBNFE AL -
WAREMRENET N HEESGHEBEH
EEEBRA AEBEEFBNEBRREKR
B AR o

BRERMEHEBHNERE

RIE&EE

) BEEEERE
REBER—HMBEENRR AT
BALRB A RRABEREARE -
It 3R 1B5R R Bl : 1E 48 (Refuse) *
4> (Reduce) ~ 8 #| A (Reuse) ~ # &
(Repair) ¥ 1& 3% H & (Recycle) °

6 48 (Refuse)

FEMIFL BOERAEFRIR
wmoE RERAIZEREBEIRAEE
WK ZRkBHEFAREHRDY
JR# KL EB R = 2 0] bR AR 5 1 B R
(- &2) UWRIHEHRENESE -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Environmental aspect (Continued)

7)

Environmental Management Policies (Continued)
Refuse (Continued)

Also, production subcontractors are required to
optimise the production processes and industrial
engineering and to persist in the use of more
environmentally-friendly materials in the manufacture
of packaging materials for finished goods of shoes,
with the aim to minimising environmental pollution.

Reduce

Production subcontractors are required to upgrade
equipment and technology to reduce waste and
resources consumption. Administrative measures are
adopted within the Group for reducing environmental
impacts, such as arrangement of video conference in
replacement of remote physical meeting for reduction
of GHG emission incurred from taking transportation
like aircraft.

Reuse

For the recyclable wastes (example: packaging
cartons, plastic bags), methodologies for their
classification and reuse have been established.
Also, for internal office operation, it involves the
reuse of single-printed papers and the practice of
double-sided printing.

Repair

“Three-R” provision (i.e. Return, Replacement,
Repair) is the basis of the Group’s after-sales service.
To encourage saving of resources, repairing service
is offered to customers under specified conditions.

Recycle

To support recycling, the Group has appointed
vendors to handle recyclable resources, such as
paper waste.

)

B - A E R ARl

RERTESHENERE (H)

REHE (&)

BIEEEHF(E)

16 48 (Refuse) (#8)
NMERKAEED>BEBHBRNELIE -
RERARRROYE  LWEEE
BEAEHBEEYE - BRSRIRE -

A Y (Reduce)

EREESEERARBRIZ
BOELEBEMERFERER: £ 45 E
B B D 5F AR 1T BREE BE DA R A ¥ IR
BEHRRE I REgRLER
ERERBEE ROFERBER
BITAMMENEINEEREEEMN -

A F A (Reuse)
HABREANERYD (N B ER
M EBR) FIESBEKBMNAD
FE RN RBARERPEAETNE
MAEmEANER RERER
TENE R -

#: 12 (Repair)

REBEREEREH =6 1B (A
BIE-BH®BE) RFEERT
RIEEERTS  SETPEEER -

1& 3% 3 ¥ (Recycle)

LN ARE  EREAEKAE
B BEEARRD XHERBERESH
B o

annual report 2024 F 3k 2024

89



90

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
REL - thE KR

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Environmental aspect (Continued)

2)

Environmental Targets

The Group adopts business model of brand owner
and retailer, focusing on product design and brand
management, without involvement in the operation
of self-owned production facilities. As a result,
there was no significant emission of exhaust gases
or sewage, nor generation of hazardous wastes.
Under the operation of the reporting year, the
usage of water in office and retail operation was
minimal, the target on water use efficiency was not
material and hence not required to be established.
Nevertheless, the Group is striving to set the
following environmental targets for contribution
towards environmental protection:

RERTESHENERE (H)

REER(E)
2) REAE

AEEXRAEMEEEERNER
B BIEMRKRLABEERE R
BEYFBREEBENZE  AiMm
AR IR B K 8 RE SR o RE K B HE
W UBAEELEEERY - NW®

SFAMNZET  AEENORAE

TELERRKERD  ABKkERA
ARYFEZREZERAM AR

3 BEAREBDATIL FIRRER -
BHARBRERNEE D

GHG” emission.
B EREELEIEE
BERBIBEHRMNREBTLT

o
~

B

\|

Environmental Directional

targets statements Measures taken during the year
REBR F5 1A 1 B B AEERMKRRMNER

Emission Reduce the use of 1. For retail materials and gift products,
reduction transportation means minimised the number of shipping
AR E which could incur “direct frequencies by consolidating the

scattered orders of procurement

from different locations, that reduced
emission incurred by additional

fuel consumption in the course of
transportation.

HZEEYHRNER [EFRSRBUR
DEZMTHETEMERBEINOLEE R
o ERORL BN B EAME
AV HER ©

Reduced the number of business trip
meeting through the use of video,
teleconferencing or other electronic
online communication tool in order to
reduce GHG emission incurred from use
of transportation.

FRAGCHAGE BEFEERAIHMEIR
FRAILAR  BAEEgE B
FRERAZBETAMERARERIEIMN

T
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BREL - AhE KRS

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL BEERMSEHBENRSE (E)
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Environmental aspect (Continued) RIBEE(F)
2) Environmental Targets (Continued) 2) REHZE(E
Waste reduction Reduce paper waste 1.  Reused paper cartons received by
WAL REEY generated from the retailing operations. During the reporting
operation year, it is estimated that there was a
WML EEBRBERELED reduction of approximately 51 tonnes of
MEREEY paper wastes resulting from this practice.

BREATERHMEKOANE - BB
e - NEEM[ER D OS5I EE
BEEY) -

Use of non-laminated technology for
paper-based packaging, e.g., shoe boxes,
gift packaging boxes. This enables and
facilitates recycling of paper wastes.
RAEBABRIZNERERE W-ER
EmBEas EREEFEANEKES
EMBZHMELE -

2. Strengthened electronic operations
and file management to reduce paper
use and consumption in offices. This
included scanning and saving documents
whenever possible as an alternative
to printing and utilising double-sided
printing.
MABEFNEERBERERE BRI H
RENBRAE  EEFERERER

BIENRTF KR B EFIEN
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B A AR

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL

ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Environmental aspect (Continued)

2) Environmental Targets (Continued)

Energy use
efficiency
B IR FA A 2

Adopt alternative means
to reduce the number of
times that the company’s
vehicles are used, in
order to reduce fuel
consumption.
ERERFER BIA
AIEWAE AR E
BUR D HFERER -

BRRESHEBNEKRE ()

REEE (R
2) REBZE(E

Changed the sourcing way with material
suppliers: it was changed to direct
delivery to the subcontracted warehouses
of third-party logistics company at
different regions in closer proximity,
which aim to reduce additional truck
transportation distance and associated
fuel consumption caused by secondary
transportation.
ERMEHERNRERN  NREE
BRAZEERBINE=ZFMRAA
WINBERE - AR ZRERME R
NN E R ERERIMEFEE -

Adopted video conferencing applications
for internal meeting arrangement, thereby
reducing the number of business trips for
intra-group meetings and hence reducing
the use of vehicles.

KARMEREE  AEARARIAE
g% MRS AEEREFENEEL
ERR EINROEREHORR o
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Environmental aspect (Continued)

3)

Emissions

As a brand and retail operator, the Group does not
have owned manufacturing facilities and hence does
not have sewage and exhaust emissions arisen from
production activities. Nevertheless, the Group’s retail
stores and offices, despites no significant sewage
and exhaust emissions from these premises, also
contributed certain amount of emission of GHG
through electricity consumption and transportation
involved in their related operations.

In terms of the Group’s revenues in the reporting
year, the emission intensity was 4.26 tonnes carbon
dioxide (CO,) equivalent to revenues per million in
RMB.

The retailing operation of the Group did not involve
the generation of hazardous wastes. Therefore, no
hazardous waste was recorded in the reporting year.

B - A E R ARl

BRERMESEBHNEE (H)

i_iﬁigm%(nﬂ

3)

HHRY

AEBER—RmEMTEZERD -
YREBRNEERE BMA%
BOR B 4 E AR A5 K & R SR A BE
Mo R YRAEENZE)EH
EWRAEZE BEELSMRE
BENSKRERFER EMEH
EBA N BRE R MER BN

hEELE—EMNENEERE -

HRAEENBREFRNNEERET
g 58 AE%%%M&ZMJFEM%
WE — &b

ke = o

AEENTELETRAELRESE
BEVHELS AERBEFAAL
AREEBBEEEREYNEE -
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REL - thE KR

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL RERMSEHBNRSE (E)
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)
Environmental aspect (Continued) RIBHE (&)
3) Emissions (Continued) 3) HHY(E)
The following table set forth the amount of emission THERBEETRHREFRNERE
and the intensities from GHG and Non-hazardous EREMNEEZEERZYNERERE
wastes in the reporting year: =g
A1: Emissions Unit Year ended Year ended
Al: Y B 29 February 2024 28 February 2023
BE-Z-_MF BE-Z2-=F
ZAZTHhBALEFE ZAZtHNRALEE
GHG
BRERE
Direct QHG emissions (Scope 1)! tonnes CO, equivalent 9.09 10.51
ERFHAZEREE (HE) “alkiREE
Energy indirect GHG emissions tonnes CO, equivalent 1,700.27 2,056.68
(Scope 2)? “EtHES
RREEERAZERE S (HE2):
Total GHG emissions® tonnes CO, equivalent 1,709.36 2,067.20
mERBIRAES M-_ftikEE
Total GHG emissions intensity tonnes CO, equivalent 4.26 5.00
BRERBHENABEE revenue (million in RMB)
%{ER B8 .
tE%AEMM%H&)\
Wastes
BEY
Non-hazardous wastes* tonne 6.25 7.40
EEEED I
Non-hazardous wastes emission  kg/revenue (million in RMB) 15.57 17.91
intensity R/ BEABARE
EEBEMHEREE ZEIA

Direct GHG emission was mainly originated from fuel combustion during gasoline consumption by vehicles, diesel consumption
by electricity generator in Guangzhou office, and natural gas consumption by dormitory in Guangzhou. Method of calculation was
based on “2006 Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC) Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas Inventories”.
BEERAREZERBIZREEMTH BEMPRAZTEERE BENBESRARSMEDERR R - StE /AT ER20064F H e (K
FEREE(EME Eﬁ(IPCC)I%ﬁiﬁE@/eite M) e

Energy indirect GHG emission was originated from consumption of electricity purchased from external source. Regional grid
emission factors used in the calculation were referenced to the values issued by HK Electric’s Sustainability Report and National
Development and Reform Commission (NDRC) in People’s Republic of China.

REREZERERBRAMEENNHEEENR AEEEMKRANESESBELARENEFAZ2Z[BRIAFERRBRERIF
EARAMBEBERERMBEZ B2 (NDRC)) AT &5 1) 8 E -

Global Warming Potential (GWP) adopted in this GHG calculation were based on the values disclosed in the Sixth Assessment
Report (AR6) of Inte/rgovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC). N
RERBIERMEANEREEEEEGWP)ZEENEFEREZ(EEFZEE(PCC)E /N RAT il E (ARG)) FTE M EEE -

Since the warehousing has been subcontracted by the Group to the third-party logistics company, therefore the disposed cartons
and paper boxes generated from the courier of product returns were destroyed by the third-party logistics company, which
consolidated such wastes from other merchants and hence could not provide the figures on the weight of such wastes generated
by the Group in the reporting year. Consequently, the aforesaid figures were simply estimated based on the previous experience.
.ZK%.F' BENBEE=ZFVRAA  HAFRERE Fimfﬁftee&fi&‘*#iﬁiime’ﬂﬁa% HEPZ Iﬁ%ﬂ’]?sﬁ
LIED REE  IABRZEBLEAESEELEZYNES - THHBERARRREAENEELRMERBEFAIEENRE
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Environmental aspect (Continued)
3) Emissions (Continued)

This report only disclosed on identifying the Scope 3
GHG emissions coming from Le Saunda’s Hong Kong
head office, all offices and retail shops in Mainland
China within the period of 1st of March 2023 to 29th
of February 2024. Considering the Scope 3 screening
exercise completed in December 2023, together with
the availability of the necessary operational activity
data, the estimation results of the significant Scope

B - A E R ARl

RERGCEHROETE (E)

5 & s ()
3) HHYE)

TREEFRRBEINEBEI
FTEFBE AN ERE T EEE
2023F3A1H £2024%2 A29H Hi
FTEREEMNSEB-RAERENH
W e Z B B 20235128 58 5K 1 &
BEoffETIEUR B EMNEERED
BRWOURANE UTRERETES
MERB=BEMER M EESER:

3 emission categories were summarised in the table

below:

(Not Included those
in Scope 1 or
Scope 2)

WA BERD B2 R AR B S
(raElLEs
—RZHEE)

fuel (diesel and Liquefied
Natural Gas (“LNG”")) and
electricity purchased
RO AENEHHAEE
HRREL (S AR L R
FA(LNGI)FE S

1. Purchased Goods Extraction, production Quantity of different shoe types 3,600.52
and Services and transportation of purchased from suppliers (86.06%)
RBEEMNRE shoes, handbag and other REEEBENTRERHE

service purchased

RN £ENEHMES Spending of different services

MET FRMEMRS purchased from external service
providers
NSBREREFEEN T RR
BH X

3. Fuel- and Energy- Extraction, production, Quantity of diesel purchased from 548.75
related Activities and transportation of suppliers (13.11%)

REEEBENRBHE

Quantity of LNG purchased from
suppliers

REEEEENINGE =

Quantity of electricity purchased
from electricity companies

RENRARENENHE
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BREL - AL RERRE

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL BERMSEENRS (H)
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Environmental aspect (Continued) RIFEHE (&)
3) Emissions (Continued) 3) HHY(E)

4. Upstream Transportation and — Weight of incoming goods (shoes 2.73
Transportation and distribution of products and handbags) from suppliers (0.07%)
Distribution purchased (shoes and NHEFEENEN(EFNFR)

LhEGNS % handbags) between MES
tier 1 suppliers and Le
Saunda’s warehouse — Means of transportation involved in
EFAFREERET—R delivering goods from supplier to
HEFENKRIANEE Le Saunda
Z BB H RUEEBIKBOANEDRA
mETS R ER T

— Delivery distance for each delivery
trip from supplier to Le Saunda

R EEIRBAAERRETT

ORI
7. Employee Transportation of — Means of transportation involving 30.36
Commuting employees between in employee commuting (0.73%)
BTRY their homes and their BIRSMIRMR@AN
worksites
ETEAMIEMEZE | — Traveling distance between
MR EEH working site and employee’s home
BITEMET S 2 HHTE
izk: 3

— Number of working days for each
employee in FY2023/24
B ETH2023/24FEMIER
g
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Environmental aspect (Continued)

3) Emissions (Continueqd)

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B - A E R ARl

BRRESHEBNEKRE ()

REEE (R
3) HHYE)

8. Downstream Transportation and — Weight of outgoing goods (shoes 1.25
Transportation and distribution of products and handbags) from Le Saunda (0.03%)
Distribution sold between Le WRBHALENED (EFHNFE)

THEHMD % Saunda’s warehouse to MES
the end consumer
REEAMEEIZAE | — Means of transportation involved in
BE/BMERERND delivering goods from Le Saunda
i to downstream customers
RRBEANTHEFPRNED
s Rk e ER A
— Delivery distance for each delivery
trip from Le Saunda downstream
customers
REBEATREFPERARE
TN
Total £ & : 4,183.61
(100%)

The quantification methodologies used in this
disclosure were calculations based on GHG activity
data multiplied by GHG emission or carbon removal
factors. The activity data involved in this GHG Scope
3 emissions. The emission and removal factors used

in the calculations were referring to:

e China Products Carbon Footprint Factors °
Database (2022)

° UK Government GHG Conversion Factors for °

Company Reporting (2021 and 2023)

° US Environmental Protection Agency USEEIO °
v2.0.1-411 data

EEWRETEANELCHEZER
MEREADHBERUEERED
M ERATFOFE - BB EIEY
RIBRERBEBE=HRY - T7
RERTE P ATE R A PR AR AT
MmaE:

PRESTRETETEEE
(20224F hlR)

EEBRRAABREREERAE
4% [ F (20214 F2023F hiw )

X IR B R & FBUSEEIO v2.0.1-
AMEIE
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Environmental aspect (Continued)

4)

Use of Resource

Each operating region of the Group has adopted the
appropriate equipment and administrative measures
to enhance the effectiveness in use of resources.
Part of the measures included:

Through re-routing the delivery service, the
usage of vehicle is reduced and hence the
consumption of gasoline and diesel oils is also
reduced;

Through reusing the cartons and paper boxes
from parcel deliveries amongst offices and retalil
departments, the usage of paper resources is
reduced;

In regional offices, seats are better planned
so that no need to switch on the lights when
some area have no one there. LED lighting is
preferred. Employees are encouraged to switch
off the computers and equipment when they are
not in use, while lighting is switched off during
lunch break and after office hours. A framework
for energy use supervision has been reinforced
on practices regarding light-off when not in use,
and setting temperature and fan control of air-
conditioners;

The Group advocates “paperless” office and
has been promoting electronic information
management system. With the use of electronic
files, it reduces unnecessary use of papers.

The data for consumption of electricity and water
in Mainland China has covered for all offices and
retail stores located in other regions, including
those located in shopping malls/areas managed by
property management companies.

le saunda holdings Itd. Z&EHTFHER AR A7)

RERTESHENERE (H)

REER(E)

4)

EREA
AEESELERLRAAEEER
AR R AR ARE - 3
SR

BERBHAERRR B ERE
W = BUR AR UM R SEh S
ERELR

MAERTERPIBRERRKE
REMBENES  HEMEHE
mEER:

KRR R A E - EUmBHE
MBAE NEALENRRA:
NREFXKBHMENLEDEE B
BBPAETRER  BREE
THMERNERE R AERE
MERBE  RNFREREER
THE& ABERAE - BB IR ML
EHHOREEEREESE 4a
AR ABERD G N z= 38R E B )
REEIEFEHE

AEEREBERCIBAE A
—HEETETEEEERS &
BEAETE RO TLEOHE
SRIEA e

-

MEANMEN N AKBEBEEHNCERE
EMLAEREMREEOHTEEH -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Environmental aspect (Continued)

4)

Use of Resources (Continued)

The table below set forth the consumption and the
associated intensities for the main resources of the
Group during the reporting year. Apart from the
calculation for consumption intensities of packaging
materials (papers and plastics) was based on
annual goods received quantities, the consumption
intensities of other resources were calculated in
terms of revenues per million in RMB:

B

R

4)

B - A E R ARl

5 KA SRR E ()

% ()
IR (1)

TRENAEBRBEFANHEE
AFRAERABE - RTREYH
4 41 50 B2 1) O FE PR 20/ R I 5 £
RANBRBEBITEEE 25 H
M &R AR S E 8 AR
U R A

Annual Consumption by resource type

REERNE2FHEE

Electricity KWh 2,920,307 3,142,976

EH TR

Gasoline litre 3,670 4,440

R NI

Diesel oil® litre 200 100

5 s A

Natural gas cubic metre 104 75

RAR SOK

Water cubic metre 4,772 5,423

K AVA B/

Packaging materials — tonne 329.94 382.41
Paperst U7

B R ()6

Packaging materials — tonne 1.62 1.91
Plastics® L7

BEME (B)e
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BREL - AL RERRE

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL BERMSEENRS (H)
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Environmental aspect (Continued) RIBEE(F)
4) Use of Resources (Continued) 4) EFEHE)

Consumption intensity by resource type
BREHERNEAZE
Electricity kWh/revenue (million in RMB) 7,274.80 7,605.93
EW) TRE A8 ARBER
Gasoline litre/revenue (million in RMB) 9.14 10.75
H NA/EEBARBER
Diesel oil® litre/revenue (million in RMB) 0.50 0.24
5 e AF/BEBARE SR
Natural gas cubic metre/revenue 0.26 0.18
RKAR (million in RMB)

NAK/BEEARBER
Water cubic metre/revenue 11.89 1312
7K (million in RMB)

NEK/ BEEAREER
Packaging materials — kg/annua| goods received 0.44 0.48

Paperst i i
. quantity (unit)
ok B (4f 1) 6 — =
B & (A1) AR/ 2ERGARHE
(Bf7)
Packaging materials — kg/annua| goods received <0.01 <0.01
Plastics® ; ;
~ quantity (unit)
ok L (BB 6 N =
REDEER) AT/ RERGABHE
(Bf7)
5 Diesel oil consumption was disclosed in the reporting year and was originated from the rental use of diesel generator set in

response to the blackout at the building where the Guangzhou office was situated.
RERBESFANEARERANBENPAZEMENAERAFEMRABE AL MEBHHEEE -
6 The figure was based on the amount of packaging materials consumed by external suppliers.

REAHNDBHERRERORKDHIEMGE -
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Environmental aspect (Continued)

5)

ESG Environmental Performance — Climate
Change

In response to extreme weather incurred by the
climate change in recent years, the Group has
identified the possible emergency situations such
as the flooding risk caused by rainstorm weather.
For addressing the risks associated with the
relevant natural disasters, emergency plan has been
established to prevent the occurrence of dangers
and damages and the measures include but not
limited to:

° Prevention of flooding nearby operation facilities
at the time of rainstorm weather;

e  Securing of the outdoor equipment before the
hoisting of super typhoon signal;

o Instruction to employees to ensure all windows
closed and regular window inspection prior to
typhoon;

° Regarding the material transportation risk
caused by extreme weather, evaluation of the
impacts to the procurement of raw materials
(such as price and quantity) will be conducted;

o For tackling resource strain caused by climate
change, contingency plan for changing the
product compositions will be established.

Moreover, with regards to the climate change
mainly attributed to GHG, the Group has adopted
measures mentioned in the previous sections of this
report regarding energy conservation and emission
reduction, with the aim to reduce emission of GHG
and ultimately to mitigate the tendency of climate
change.
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B - AL E KRR

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL

ASPECTS (CONTINUED)
Social aspect
1) Employment

Recruitment and Promotion Policies

The Group only considers the capabilities of job
applicants as the primary assessment criteria, and
reviews the job performance, experience, business
performance and competence of employee as the
conditions for promotion. The Group has developed
practices of “employment management for persons
with disabilities” to actively consider the job
applications by persons with different disabilities. In
the past, ethnic minorities have been employed to
create a diversified working environment. The Group
would not reject the job application nor review the
promotion based on the attributes of applicants such
as gender, disability, race, family status, etc.

As at 29 February 2024, the total number of full-time
employees in the Group was 927, of which 17
persons were employees in Hong Kong. On the other
hand, there was a total of 140 part-time employees
in Mainland China, while 1 part-time employee was

engaged in Hong Kong.

Due to the closure of some retail shops in China and
the cessation of cosmetic business in Hong Kong
in the reporting year, the overall average monthly
employee turnover rate was 6.44%. As compared
with the employee turnover rate of the previous
year (2022/23: 3.98%), the overall turnover rate was
increased by around 62% accordingly. Apart from
that, employee turnover rates in female and young
age group were higher as compared to last year.

Remunerations and Employee Benefits

The Group not only meets the minimum wage
requirements in each operating location, but also
offers remunerations which are competitive on the
market to attain a higher staff retention rate.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BREL - AhE KRS

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social aspect (Continued)

7)

Employment (Continued)
Remunerations and Employee Benefits (Continued)

In terms of employee benefits, we have always
been complying with social security and other
legal benefits in PRC, including social insurance
contributions for all employees. In addition, long
service awards will be granted to permanent
employees after they have completed every five
consecutive years of service with the Group, as kind
of encouragement and enhancement of employees’
sense of belonging. Different operating regions
will provide other forms of employees’ benefits in
accordance with different job positions.

Working Hours

To achieve work-life balance, the Group neither
advocates nor forces employees to work overtime.
However, due to the needs of different positions,
certain employees may still need to work overtime
provided that all overtime work must be done on a
voluntary basis and in compliance with the relevant
regulations of the operating region. Furthermore,
the Group is honoured to be awarded by different
organisations over the years, demonstrating
its continued commitment to maintain a good
employment relationship:

(1)  Awarded the “Caring Company Logo” for 18
consecutive years (2006-2024) from The Hong
Kong Council of Social Service;

(2) participated in the “Happiness-a-Work
Promotional Scheme” and was awarded as
a “Happy Company” for 7 consecutive years
(2017-2024); and

(8) passed the “Employees Retraining Board
(ERB) Manpower Developer Award Scheme”
assessment and was renewed as a “Manpower
Developer”.
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BREL - AL RERRE

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL BERHSHBENRS(E)
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social aspect (Continued) HEEHE(E)

1) Employment (Continued) 1) ERFEE)
Working Hours (Continued) TYEREfE 7 E(E)
Two-year comparison of employment statistics MEEESIEA L&

a) Total Number of employees’ person 1,068 1,229
a)BI & Ag A
Full-time employees person 927 1,120
2HET A
Part-time employees person 141 109
FEET A

Full time employees by gender
TEETIT MR

Male person 61 71
S A
Female person 866 1,049
Leglid A

Full time employees by age group
EHBET-ZFHAER

18-30 years old person 85 108
18-307% A
31-45 years old person 671 840
31-455% A
46-60 years old person 169 171
46-605% A
>60 years old person 2 1
>6075% A

Full time employees by working location

PRET-RIFEREE

Hong Kong person 17 35
G A
Mainland China person 910 1,085
H B A A

7 The statistics by gender and age group in Mainland China and Hong Kong was based on the total number of full-time employees

only.

BURIRFROERINFEANLREFEABRRAZBRE T WABIESR -
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BREL - AhE KRS

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL RERTEHEBEN®RS (E)

ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social aspect (Continued) HEEE(E)

1) Employment (Continued) 1) EEE)
Working Hours (Continued) TIERM A E(E)
Two-year comparison of employment statistics i 9Bt ER (4R
(Continued)

b) Overall Average Monthly Employee % 6.44 3.98
Turnover Rate®
b) 8B ¥ E &R K =Hs
Full time employees by gender
2HET—RMHER
Male % 1.39 3.78
B
Female % 7.78 4.00
7%

Full time employees by age group

EREBT - FiHER

18-30 years old % 12.60 7.32
18-307%

31-45 years old % 6.73 4.85
31-455%

46-60 years old % 2.35 1.69
46-605%

>60 years old % 0 0
>605%

Full time employees by working location
PHRETIT-RIERE

Hong Kong % 10.41 5.25
T 7
Mainland China % 2.47 2.73
A A 3
8 For calculation of the “employee turnover rate” within the retailing business in Mainland China, it only took account of the full-time

employees’ mobility, given that part-time employees were engaged on irregular needs of the business and hence the aforesaid
calculation did not include the number of part-time employees.

RPBEANMTEXBNIEEREAXIGFES R E2BAENRY AERARBEIRESTERNTE  ULE Lz HE
hAREBIEFRBAL -
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social aspect (Continued)

2)

Health and Safety

For ensuring the safety of working environment and
enhancing employees’ awareness on occupational
health and safety, the Group has formulated
procedures and operating rules related to the
occupational health management system for
reference and compliance by the employees, with the
aim to reduce the occurrence of accidents.

The Group’s office operation was also concerned on
the occupational safety. Fire drills and inspections
of all fire equipment has been conducted on a
regular basis to avoid occurrence of accidents. In
the reporting year, the administrative department of
the Guangzhou office has arranged employees to
participate in the fire drills organised by the property
management agency, for acquiring the skills on the
use of fire extinguishers.

Despite there was no hazardous job nature identified
in the operation, in the reporting year the Group
allocated a fixed cash allowance to subsidise health
examination, for maximising the occupational health
and safety protection to employees.

During the reporting year, the Group identified that
there was no significant non-compliance of the
occupational health and safety regulations and
provisions in operating regions. Also, in the past 3
consecutive years (including the reporting year), the
Group did not identify any incident of employee’s
fatality incurred from work.

On the other hand, there was a total of 276 working
days lost due to work-related injuries (2022/23: 94
days), which all were attributed to injury incidents in
Mainland China.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BREL - AhE KRS

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social aspect (Continued)

BRERMESEBHNEE (H)

e HEK(E)

3) Development and Training 3) #HERZI

For raising the professional knowledge and skKills
of employees, the Group has designated functional
departments for provision of respective trainings to
different ranks of employees, on regular basis or
upon the launch of new product or technology, in
order to equip employees with product knowledge
in a professional manner. Whenever appropriate,
contests or other forms of activities will be organised
to enhance learning motivation of employees.

Despites the aforesaid classroom trainings were
reduced, alternatively the Group adopted online
communication channel and utilised company’s
internal workgroup apps for sending articles to
employees regarding the awareness topics relevant
to environmental habits, which included low-carbon
lightings, water conservation in public areas, reduced
use of paper-based commodities, etc.

RIEREEMNEXME L KEE K
SERIZEBEINM S TEB
MEBTRMHBEAE - U E X
YR mn S AT HE R BB TR
EOMMNEREXERANZ: £AE
BRTERI BN EAMBR AR
B RABIZENE -

AR EANERRERERD - B
ERNEBAFNARELERE ERF
NE TR MBETHEHR
ROMBOXE BELOETEER
ERFREENHERBBIE - 815 KX
R SO AHEREAK BRI EE
AmmERES -

annual report 2024 3k 2024 107



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BREL - AL RERRE

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL BERHSHBENRS(E)
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social aspect (Continued) HEEHE(E)
3) Development and Training (Continued) 3) HERZIE)
Two-year comparison of employment statistics® R E R &I s A B

a) Total counts of training no. of attendees 6,333 7,574
A ZIEEMNE AR AR
By gender
2 1% B
Male no. of attendees 102 170
S AR
Female no. of attendees 6,231 7,404
g AR
By employee category
% e B &7
Senior Management no. of attendees 31 48
EREERE AR
Middle Management no. of attendees 382 475
HFRERE ANIR
Junior Staff no. of attendees 5,920 7,051
I/RET ANIR
b) Total training hours hour 20,418 18,312
b) {& & 1% 3| 2 i & AN
By gender
12 1% B
Male hour 326 312
S N
Female hour 20,092 18,000
g aN s
By employee category
= E &R A
Senior Management hour 294 309
SRERE N
Middle Management hour 1,832 1,615
PRERRE N
Junior Staff hour 18,292 16,388
MHFBEL AN
9 The training data in the table included the participants (Directors and new staff) attending the topics related to anti-corruption.

ERANFISEEELEL2ETEEBBINHOARESRFET) -
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL BERMSEENRE (E)
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social aspect (Continued) HEEHE(E)

3) Development and Training (Continued) 3) HRERIZI(E)
Two-year comparison of employment statistics?® MEERE RIEZINEEN & (8)
(Continued)

Male % 7.67 14.65
S

Female % 30.35 39.66
geglid

Senior Management % 7.26 16.06
RREERE

Middle Management % 12.01 12.58
PRERRE

Junior Staff % 32.79 4417
MHETL

Male hour 0.24 0.41
e NG
Female hour 0.93 1.20
74 N

Senior Management hour 0.68 0.78
SREIEE /N
Middle Management hour 0.55 0.43
hAREIRE /B
Junior Staff hour 0.95 1.45
NHEEL s
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social aspect (Continued)

4)

Labour Standards

The Group is dedicated to safeguarding the rights
and interests of employees by building a fair working
environment for employees. Also, the Group has
been strictly complying with regulations to ensure
that no form of forced labour is imposed and no child
labour is recruited.

During the reporting year, the Group did not have
any employment of child labour or any violation of
regulations related to forced labour.

Preventive measures against child labour

Applicant is required to fill in his/her personal
information in the employment application form, to
show his/her personal identification documentation
for the Group’s human resources department
for verification of his/her age and other personal
information.

Applicant below the legal minimum working age is
not allowed to attend the job interview. The human
resources department of the Group would verify
the age of the applicant and the authenticity of the
personal identification documentation. The Group
would only recruit those applicants at or above the
legal minimum working age.

Retail department in-charge and human resources
department would conduct shop inspection to
confirm that all employees currently working at shops
have passed through the normal recruitment channel.

In event of identification of any child labour in the
daily management, the Group would terminate
the employment relationship and proceed the
subsequent steps in accordance with the legal
requirements.
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social aspect (Continued)

4)

5)

Labour Standards (Continued)
Preventive measures against forced labour

Upon onboarding, the Group would request new
employee to submit the personal identification
documentation for human resources department’s
verification, but anyway will not withhold the
identification documentation nor request for any
deposit.

In accordance with the job descriptions and the
appropriate conditions for task arrangement, the
Group would not adopt threatening or violent
practices for coercing employees to take on
incapable or unreasonable jobs.

The Group would not force employees to work
overtime. In case of any overtime need, prior
consensus from employee and advance approval is
required. Overtime application would be submitted
by the employee himself/herself and not requested
by supervisor.

If there was the occurrence of any forced labour
condition, the Group would immediately commence
the investigation and eliminate the condition in
accordance with the legal requirements.

Supply Chain Management
Geographical distribution of Suppliers

As at 29 February 2024, the Group engaged a total
of 26 active suppliers, all of which were located
in Mainland China, for provision of production
subcontracting services, warehousing services,
packaging bags and boxes to the Group.
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social aspect (Continued)

5)

Supply Chain Management (Continued)
Assessment of Suppliers

The Group has established supplier assessment
process that requires evaluation prior to formal
procurement. During the reporting year, the Group
engaged a total of 5 new suppliers, who all were
supplying footwear products. The scope of evaluation
included the evidence of legal entity, product
categories, production equipment, production
environment, workforce resource allocation and
monthly production capacity, etc., for assuring
the compliance with the requirements imposed by
customers, regulators and the Group’s policy.

Existing suppliers were also evaluated at different
magnitude for continual monitoring in response to
various risks. During the reporting year, supply chain
department would assign personnel to conduct
regular site inspection and all existing suppliers had
passed the evaluation during the reporting year.
Based on the magnitude of impacts associated with
different supplies to the Group’s finished goods,
different methods of evaluation would be applied
accordingly, including on-site inspection, product
testing, sample approval, random inspection of mass
production, verification of qualification documents,
self-assessment questionnaire, etc. When conducting
on-site inspections, the scope of evaluation includes
verifying conformance with environmental protection
permits and production configuration involving
production environment, production equipment, and
allocation in number of employees.

New supply of materials could only be formally
purchased upon passing of the supplier evaluation.
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social aspect (Continued)

5)

Supply Chain Management (Continued)
Control of Environmental and Social Risks

For materials and supplies containing potentially
hazardous substances, including those supplies
of exterior leather, interior leather, metal buckles,
sole materials, heels, and finished shoes, the Group
requires suppliers to provide materials in compliance
with relevant regulations and standards and passing
the relevant environmental tests, for example:

° Leather — scope of testing: content of
formaldehyde, and decomposable harmful
aromatic amine dye;

o Metallic buckles in footwear — scope of testing:
content of nickel release, and content of heavy
metals such as lead (Pb), cadmium (Cd),
mercury (Hg), hexavalent chromium (Cr (VI)), etc.

The procurement contracts between the Group and
suppliers will require the suppliers to submit the
materials for third-party testing and to refrain from
using materials which would damage the environment
or contain any hazardous substances harmful to
human. Whenever appropriate, the attachments
to the procurement contract will specify those
hazardous substances that could not be contained,
such as formaldehyde, decomposable harmful
aromatic amine dye, heavy metals, etc.

Formal procurement could only be made after
evaluation of the environmental testing results of
those materials containing potentially hazardous
substances, for controlling their respective emission,
pollution or other adverse effects on the environment.
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social aspect (Continued)

5)

Supply Chain Management (Continued)

Control of Environmental and Social Risks
(Continued)

For those suppliers whose operation impose
significant impact to the environment, the scope
of the Group’s evaluation would even cover
their preventive measures against environmental
pollution. It requires the suppliers to provide the
evidence, e.g. discharge permit, in meeting the
targets of discharging effluent in accordance with
environmental requirement of the local government
and compliance with the relevant environmental
regulations and standards.

Therefore, in addition to material testing, production
subcontractors were also evaluated on their valid
discharge permits, including the installation of
environmental protection equipment, transfer and
handling of hazardous wastes, environmental test
reports related to exhaust gases and noise, etc. In
selection of suppliers, priority would then be given
to those not imposing significant environmental
hazards.

Moreover, the Group also evaluated the operational
compliance of other business partners in the
supply chain and assessed the involved risks
related to social responsibility, such as employment
compliance, occupational safety, product compliance
and risk of commercial bribery. For assuring
compliance with labor laws when managing suppliers
in Mainland China, the Group has included in the
procurement contracts with labour protection clauses
and requires all suppliers to sign them as one of the
risk management tools.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social aspect (Continued)

5)

Supply Chain Management (Continued)
Green Procurement

Whenever complying with operating requirements,
the Group will give priority to equipment and
materials that are environmentally-friendly in nature.
For shoe boxes currently purchased by the Group,
they are all made of non-laminated white kraft paper,
which is recyclable and environmentally-friendly.
During evaluation prior to procurement, the paper
supplier provided the “China Environment Labeling
Product Certification Certificate,” evidencing its
compliance with the environmental characteristics of
GB/T24021/1SO 14021.

In addition to shoes boxes, the Group is striving to
work with suppliers on exploration and application of
environmentally-friendly materials as the components
of the Group’s finished goods, such as for producing
the outer layer of shoes.

Upon selection of energy-consuming equipment,
priority is also given to products that are certified or
labelled as energy efficient.

In addition, the Group has established local
procurement policy as one of the measures for green
procurement. Under similar cost and product quality
conditions, priority is given to local (Mainland China
and Hong Kong) suppliers of products and services
for minimising emission of GHG from transportation
during the procurement processes.

In the reporting year, most suppliers were situated
at Mainland China whereas direct overseas
procurement was minimal.
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REL - thE KR

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social aspect (Continued)

6)

Product Responsibility

For assuring product compliance and meeting
customers’ expectations, the Group provides
customers with accurate and true information on
the quality and safety of its products. All products
must pass through testing on quality and safety
requirements, including those tests on materials like
leather, metallic accessories, etc., for assuring quality
and safety of the products delivered.

For management of product compliance, the Group
would agree with the suppliers regarding the terms of
requirements on technological standard and quality
assurance, with the aim to safeguard the brand
reputation of the Group.

Prior to the delivery of finished goods, the Group
would assign quality control personnel to conduct
sampling and inspection at the factory site. Finished
goods are allowed to release only upon fulfillment of
the quality standards.

According to the categories of shoes and handbags,
“Three-R” provision (i.e. Return, Replacement,
Repair) applies to the sold products under specific
conditions: First, items guaranteed for return;
second, items guaranteed for repair; third, handling
of product replacement. According to “Three-R”
provision, the following table set forth the accepted
number of requests for product return and repair
during the reporting year.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social aspect (Continued)

6)

Product Responsibility (Continued)

In the same period, apart from the aforesaid
customer requests for returns and repairs, the Group
identified that there was no significant incident of
product non-compliance or any case of customer
complaint, nor identify any recall incident owing to
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product’s health and safety issues.

Number of Returns Accepted Number of Repairs Accepted

BEANEERHY BERANEETRE
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
29 February 28 February 29 February 28 February
2024 2023 2024 2023
BE-Z-_MF BE-FT-_=F BE-FT_NF BE-ZF_-=
Product type —BA=+hH —BA=+NH —BA=+hH —A=+NH
EmE5 IEFE IEFE LEFE IEFE
Shoes 303 118 632 937
&
Handbags 0 1 46 26
F&

AREBERRILIEERMM BERE
EPHRHFER AELERED
E fn M FF o

The Group has designated the particular department
to be responsible for handling of customer
complaints and the initiation of product recall
procedure whenever necessary.

In case of need for product recall, the Group would WMAEBERRHMVE  XEEZHE

work with the responsible supplier for quality
investigation and with the relevant departments to
analyse the product issues for formulation of the
corrective actions.
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REL - thE KR

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social aspect (Continued)

6)

Product Responsibility (Continued)
Protection of Intellectual Property Rights

The employees of the Group also adhere to the
established rules for protection of intellectual

property.

The Group has applied patents from “China National
Intellectual Property Administration” regarding the
appearance design of metal buckles and have
successfully registered 22 items for assuring
intellectual property rights of the buckle accessories
being used in the Group’s products.

Information and documentation related to the
intellectual property, such as product drawings,
technical specifications, would be secured and
stored by the designated department. Without
prior approval, employees are not allowed to make
photocopy or to take away from the company
premises.

The Group is bound by confidentiality agreement
with customers not to disclose customer information
to external parties.

Also, the Group has signed with confidentiality
agreements with business partners, for committing
no external disclosure of any product information.

Regarding application of commercial software in the
office application, the Group is committed to not
procuring software in any form of pirated version and
only purchasing from the authorised dealers.

For security of customer data, based on different
infraction risk levels, the Group will use hardware
firewall to protect the stored data from attacks by
hackers, enables behaviour management equipment,
activates login account in enhanced password format
as well as mandatory changes of passwords every
three months, and requires access to internal file
servers under permission.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social aspect (Continued)

7)

Anti-Corruption

The Group is convinced that fairness, honesty and
integrity are its important commercial assets, and
therefore requires all employees (including directors)
at different levels to strictly adhere to business
ethics, which ensures that the Group’s reputation
will not be compromised by misconducts such as
dishonesty, disloyalty or corruption. The Group have
incorporated the requirements of relevant laws and
regulations, including “Criminal Law of the People’s
Republic of China” related to various corruption
and bribery offences and “Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance” of Hong Kong, in the “Employee Code of
Practice”, which provides concise and clear guidance
for all existing and new employees in the aspects of
prevention of corruption and bribery, solicitation of
benefits, acceptance of benefits, conflict of interest,
confidential information, etc. This reduces the risks of
involvement in acts of corruption and bribery.

At the same time, the Group requires all employees
at all ranks to declare and state any possible conflict
of interests with the Group that may arise during
the daily operations. In addition, we encourage
employees to report misconduct, fraudulent
activities and illegal behaviours related to the Group
under the confidential whistleblowing mechanism.
Current means of reporting is generally in the form
of mails sent to the designated mailbox of senior
management for this whistleblowing purpose. No
incident of whistleblowing was found in the reporting
year.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
REL - thE KR

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social aspect (Continued)

7)

Anti-Corruption (Continued)

The Group has included the integrity trading terms
in the procurement contracts. For those suppliers in
long-term partnership, both parties have signed the
designated integrity contracts. During the reporting
year, the Group identified that there was no incident
of behaviour non-compliant with the code, nor
violation of regulations related to corruption. Also, no
incident of relevant whistleblowing was received in
the same period.

During the procurement process, the Group seeks
quotations from more than one supplier to ensure
fair and reasonable offers. In addition, managerial
personnel of different rankings have been designated
to review and approve orders of different monetary
thresholds to reduce the risks of corruption and
bribery. During the reporting year, there was no
declaration for conflict of interests in any relevant
procurement.

Anti-corruption trainings of the Group covered the
topics like integrity, employee’s code of conduct,
business ethics, compliance behaviour, etc. The
mode of training was not limited to classroom training
or seminar, and other mode could be sending the
anti-corruption reminder notice or email to directors
and all employees.

Upon new employee’s on boarding, the scope
of training covered topics on integrity and
anti-corruption awareness. Human resources
department will provide each new employee with
elaborations of the employee handbook, “Employee
Code of Practice” and procedure for conflict of
interest declaration, all of which contain content
related to anti-corruption and integrity.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BREL - AhE KRS

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social aspect (Continued)

BRERMESEBHNEE (H)

HEEE(E)
7)  Anti-Corruption (Continued) 7) RES(#)

For job positions which have liaisons with external
parties and higher demand of integrity requirements,
such as financial department, supply chain
department, marketing department, the Group
would arrange appropriate training topics for their
participation, some of the topics like integrity
agreement signed with suppliers, and precautions
during contract review and approval, etc.

In addition, the Group has also provided trainings
to directors on the topics related to corporate
governance and compliance with listing rules. During
the reporting year, the themes of such trainings to
Directors included: new requirements on corporate
governance code, new regulations on corporate
objectives, strategies, and cultural norms, paperless
system of listing rules, and an updated code and
guidelines issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL RERESHENRE (H)
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social aspect (Continued) HEEHE(E)

8) Community Investment 8 HERE
Over years, the Group has been supporting the SERNEBHM NIHLIRE LR ZE
community and the industry in various aspects like FEZE RER BEREZFZFEED
charity, environmental protection, health, with the BEEZEHAL - TRINBRIFEERN
aim to assist the people in need. The following table NEBLTIENTRESER S -

set forth the examples on the types of community
activities contributed by the Group in the reporting
year:

Assistance for (1)  “Environmental workshop for Upcycling
the Vulnerable to Notice Board” by St. James’
Groups Settlement

FRSEEE Raw:: ERERHeIRRTEERIED]

— Donation to St. James’ Settlement for
the ‘Rehabilitation Services’ provided
to intellectually disabled individuals and
mental health recovery patients
BRTERSEHEERAEEALTRER
RIEERHDEERS]

(2) “GORun Together” by St. James’
Settlement
B X B A2 [GORUNZE = i |

— Donation to St. James’ Settlement
to support beneficiaries of their food
assistance service

BRTERSREHES XEERVED

R X Bh#&E
Community “Love Teeth Day 2023” by The Community
Health Chest of Hong Kong
Sponsorship B rme[AmE FH2023]

1= & R & B
— fundraising for The Community Chest on
supporting the needy to strengthen oral
and dental care services
WA eEREDEFTEALTNRA
I T e IR RS
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Le Saunda
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) has pleasure in
presenting to the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) its report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) for the year ended 29 February
2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The activities of its principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.
The Group is principally engaged in trading and sales of
footwear, accessories and cosmetic products.

Details of the analysis of the Group’s performance for
the year ended 29 February 2024 by business and
geographical segments are set out in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group as required
pursuant to Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), comprising
analysis of the Group’s performance during the vyear,
description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group, particulars of important events affecting the
Group that have occurred since the end of the financial
year as well as indication of likely future development in
the business of the Group are set out in the Chairman’s
Statement on pages 15 to 22 of this report and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 23 to
39 of this report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
using financial key performance indicators is set out in the
Financial Highlights on pages 3 to 4 of this report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
HREHRS

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

U

(1)

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group understands that its business has an
impact on the environment and recognises the
importance of sound environmental management
and sustainable development. It is committed to
complying with the relevant environmental legislations
and standards related to its business operations as
set by the authorities in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”) and Hong Kong where it operates.

“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of
the Group (the “ESG Report”) is set out on pages
77 to 122 of this report. The ESG Report has been
prepared in accordance with the “comply or explain”
provisions and mandatory disclosure requirements
of the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide” as set out in Appendix C2 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange ”). The report details the
environmental policy of the Group and their actual
effectiveness, and further discusses the relationships
between the Group and its key stakeholders as
well as the compliance with significant laws and
regulations.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance
with regulatory requirements and the risks of non-
compliance with such requirements. The Group has
conducted on-going review of the newly enacted
laws and regulations affecting the operations of the
Group and provides relevant trainings and guidance
to the staff. The Group has complied with the
relevant laws and regulations of the PRC and Hong
Kong that have significant impact on the operations
of the Group for the year ended 29 February 2024.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
(Ill) Key Relationships

(@)

(b)

(c)

Employees

The Group believes that employees are a key
element to the success of its business, so it
strives to maintain a high staff retention rate by
providing competitive remuneration packages
and developing a harmonious workplace.
To enhance the capabilities and productivity
of its employees, the Group provides a
comprehensive training program to instill them
with quality service skills, product knowledge
and language and interpersonal skills. In
addition, the Group organises regular staff
gatherings to promote team spirit and enhance
the recognition of the Group’s corporate culture
and values amongst the staff.

Consumers

The Group provides direct services to
consumers in its retail shops and online shops.
To ensure continuous improvement of the quality
of products and services, the Group regularly
conducts internal and external market surveys
to interact with consumers and to gain more
market insights and feedback.

Suppliers

The Group has established long-term business
relationship with certain suppliers. It selects
its suppliers prudently. The relevant suppliers
need to fulfil certain assessment criteria of the
Group, including, among others, track record,
experience, financial capability, reputation
and history of meeting our standards for raw
materials or finished products. As the Group
is committed to managing the environmental
performance of its supply chain, the Group
will prioritise the adoption of products made of
environmentally-friendly materials and focus on
partnership with those suppliers possessing
environmental technology. The Group has
established anti-bribery and anti-corruption
policies which are required to be observed by all
parties with business dealings with the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
HREHRS

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
(lll) Key Relationships (Continued)
(d) Shareholders and Investors

The Board believes that effective communication
and the disclosure of accurate and timely
information build the confidence of Shareholders
and investors, and also facilitate the flow of
constructive feedback and ideas that are
beneficial for investor relations and future
corporate development. For details, please
refer to the Shareholders’ Rights and Investor
Relations of the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 73 to 76 of this report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 29 February
2024 are set out in the consolidated income statement on
page 152 of this report.

The Board declared an interim special dividend of HK5.0
cents (2022/23: Nil) per ordinary share for the year ended
29 February 2024, totalling approximately RMB31,748,000,
which was paid to the Shareholders on 24 November
2023.

The Board recommends the payment of a final special
dividend of HK5.0 cents (the “Final Special Dividend”)
(2022/23: NIL) per ordinary share, totalling approximately
RMB32,173,000 (2022/23: NIL) in respect of the year
ended 29 February 2024. Subject to the Shareholders’
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company to be held on 15 July 2024 (the “AGM”),
the proposed Final Special Dividend will be payable on 1
August 2024 to the Shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on 23 July 2024.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The five-year financial summary of the Group is set out on
pages 262 to 263 of this report. The summary does not
form part of the audited financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the issued share capital of
the Company during the year are set out in note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
and the Company during the year are set out in notes 27
and 32(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 29 February 2024, the Company’s retained
earnings and contributed surplus of approximately
RMB434,606,000 (2022/23: RMB153,963,000) were
available for distribution to the Shareholders, of which
RMB32,173,000 has been proposed as final special
dividend for the year.

DONATIONS

The Group did not make any charitable donation during
the year (2022/23: NIL).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-Laws”) or the laws of
Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the principal investment properties held by the
Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of principal subsidiaries of the Group are set out in
note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) during the
year ended 29 February 2024 and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors

Ms. Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky
Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter
Ms. Liu Tsz Yan

Non-Executive Director

Mr. James Ngai (Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon
Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George
Mr. Hui Chi Kwan
Ms. Chan Kit Yin
(appointed with effect from 28 August 2023)

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and senior
management of the Group as at the date of this report are
set out on pages 40 to 44 of this report.

RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with Bye-Law 87 of the Bye-Laws, Mr. Hui
Chi Kwan, Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter and Mr. Lam Siu Lun,
Simon shall retire from office by rotation at the annual
general meeting (“AGM”). Further, Ms. Chan Kit Yin,
who was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director, with effective from 28 August 2023, will also
retire from office at the AGM in accordance with Bye-law
86(2) of the Bye-Laws. All the above mentioned Directors,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM.
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INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors an annual confirmation of
their respective independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that
all Independent Non-Executive Directors meet the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with
the guidelines. Whilst Mr. James Ngai and Mr. Hui Chi
Kwan are both directors of the Company and Max Sight
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 08483) and thus
hold cross-directorships, the Board determines that Mr.
Hui Chi Kwan is nevertheless independent with respect
to his directorship at the Company since Mr. James Ngai
and Mr. Hui Chi Kwan hold only non-executive roles at
both companies and have no interest in both companies
as disclosed under Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation). During the year, the service contracts of
Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George, Mr. Hui Chi Kwan and Mr. Lam
Siu Lun, Simon, all acted as Independent Non-Executive
Directors, were renewed for a fixed term of 2 years with
the Company with effect from 1 November 2023, 26
November 2023 and 16 January 2024. In addition, Ms.
Chan Kit Yin, who was appointed as Independent Non-
Executive Director on 28 August 2023, entered into a
service contract with the Company with effect from 28
August 2023 for a fixed term of 2 years.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to the Company in which a Director or an entity connected
with a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
entered into any contract of significance with the
Company’s controlling shareholders or their subsidiaries,
or any contract of significance for the provision of
services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by the
Company’s controlling shareholders or their subsidiaries,
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors had engaged in or were interested
in any business which competed or was likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group
during the year.
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CHANGES IN DIRECTORSHIP AND OTHER
CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

The changes in directorship and other changes in the

information of the Directors of the Company, which are
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
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Listing Rules, subsequent to the publication of the annual EE®&hESERZ HmESHEIWMT
report of the Company for the year ended 28 February

2023 are set out below:

Name of Directors Details of change

EEpS BEHE

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

BUFHTES:

Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George e Renewed service contract with the Company with a fixed term of 2 years commencing on

2EERE 1 November 2023 and ending on 31 October 2025
BERARAEIRESH BT =F+-A-BRE_T_AF+A=+—-HI"
RMFETEFH

Mr. Hui Chi Kwan o Renewed service contract with the Company with a fixed term of 2 years commencing on

Rk A 26 November 2023 and ending on 25 November 2025
BEARAGITREEH B2 =F+ - A+ "BRE-ZE-AF+—-A-THAL
RMFETEFH

o Ms. Chan Kit Yin is a partner of a law firm in Hong Kong, of which Mr. Hui Chi Kwan had

been a partner before he retired from the partnership in 2007 and currently remains as a
consultant
RRELLRA-MEBEMOINGBA FROLETAUEMINAEEA R
SR ERNABHARRNAZEMTHOBERNERM

Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon o Renewed service contract with the Company with a fixed term of 2 years commencing on

MOk B 5 16 January 2024 and ending on 15 January 2026
BEARABIRBEL H_T-NEF-—A+ BRE-Z-_R"E—A+HAL &
R F [ 7E 5 2

Ms. Chan Kit Yin o Appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director with effect from 28 August 2023

RREELZ T B =F\AZT\BREZERBUFRTES

o Entered into a service contract with the Company with a fixed term of 2 years commencing
on 28 August 2023 and ending on 27 August 2025
BARARURE AL BA-E=FN\AZT\RBRE-S-AFEN\NAZT+tAHL"
RMFETEFH

R EXPREEN  BIEAMEREAR

Saved as disclosed above, there is no other information

required to be disclosed herein pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1)
of the Listing Rules.

B EHRAIE 13.51BI)E Z 8 E M F R

annual report 2024 F 3k 2024

131



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
HREHRS

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 29 February 2024, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company
in the ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the capital
of the Company (the “Shares”), underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong, the “SFQO”)) which were notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing
Rules were as follows:

() Long positions in Shares (including
underlying Shares)

EERBESTRAERARAREME
BEE 2R  HEROREZSAA
BEZREBZRAXR

RZEBE-_ME_A-+HhB ARARESE
k@ {TBABRARNE R EARRE LB (F
ERABBEPESNEFFRBEGN (F
HFREBEEDEXVE) 2 BAREFRE
Bo0B Tz E@EIR((IRM]) - 8RN
REHTHES  BREBEZHFRBEIED
EXVESETR FE8D F A Mg AN QA KB
RfizEk iR (BREBEESFLEE
GO 2 ZSEBRXEERIRRER 2
HmEAR) WERABREZESRKBPEK
BIEIIGREBAFEZE LM oERZ R
KA AR IE LR B 8 C3FTE 2
FHETAESETESFRINZETA
(MEEFRDAMEARRNR) R R T2
wmERBWT

) Rezga(BEABRH)

Number of Shares
kL
Approximate
percentage of
the issued share
Personal Spouse Corporate Other capital of
Name of Directors interests interests interests interests Total  the Company
AERRFEE
EEftg EAER REgED ARER s it TREEAM
Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter (‘Mr. L") 5,909,200 11,000 - 55,000,000 60,920,200 8.63%
TkEEE Note 1)
(Wit1)
Ms. Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky (Ms. Chui") 5,779,000 - - - 5,779,000 0.81%
REERL(BRL))
Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George (“Mr. Leung’) - - - 1,700,000 1,700,000 0.24%
RREAE(RRE] (Note 2)
(Wit2)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (CONTINUED)

() Long positions in Shares (including
underlying Shares) (Continued)

Notes:

1. Mr. Li, Ms. Lee Wing Kam Rowena Jackie and Ms. Cheung Man
Ching, Teresa jointly held 55,000,000 Shares as trustees of The
Lee Keung Charitable Foundation (the “Charitable Foundation”),
representing approximately 7.79% of the issued share capital
of the Company. Therefore, all of them are deemed to be
interested in these Shares which are duplicated amongst their
respective interests.

2. Mr. Leung was a governor of Xin Chuan Middle School
Foundation Limited, which held 1,700,000 Shares. Therefore,
Mr. Leung was deemed to be interested in these Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 29 February 2024, none
of the Directors or chief executive (including their spouse
and children under 18 years of age) of the Company
had any interests and/or short positions in the Shares,
underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) which were notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and/or short positions
which are taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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ARRANGEMENTS FOR DIRECTORS TO
PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Directors’
and chief executive’s interests and short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations” above, during
the year ended 29 February 2024, (a) at no time was the
Company or a specified undertaking (as defined in the
Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D
of the Laws of Hong Kong)) of the Company a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors or the chief
executive of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate; and (b) none of
the Directors, their respective spouses nor their respective
children under the age of 18 had any right to subscribe
for securities of the Company or had exercised any such
rights.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
HEREFHRE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER FEREREMATHABROREBER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS BoEERKE
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 29 February 2024, according to the register of RZZxZE-_A=-+hH RBEZTFH5EK
interests in Shares and short positions of the Company HiE &M E336IEHEMFE 2 I MHREZ
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO, the Kk XE ZEMPTads: N AT 5E
following persons or corporations (other than the Directors (AR ATIEE X HFETEHAEBIN RIEH
or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short sk D PHEAEZ KK E MBRIE
positions in the Shares and underlying Shares which FEA5RK B ESEUIEXVIEFE2R E3D 2 {E
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the  H#F& :

provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

() Interests and short positions of substantial ) EEREAROREABERO S
Shareholders in the Shares and underlying BEXRAE
Shares
Long positions in Shares RHZHEE

Number of Shares and nature of interests

A3 B E K & 8 Al
Approximate
percentage
Interests of of the issued
Beneficial controlled Other Share capital of
Name of Shareholders owner  corporation interests Total  the Company
HEEDT
ERTRAE
RERA® BEBEEA BRAFER Hitt @t Bk
Mr. Lee Tze Bun, Marces 54,561,000 36,600,000 280,500,000 371,661,000 52.65%
(“Mr. Lee”) (Notes 1 & 2)  (Notes 3 & 4)
FrWEE(ERE]) (WaFike)  (B53R4)
Stable Gain Holdings Limited 225,500,000 — — 225,500,000 31.94%
(“Stable Gain”) (Note 5)
(W 5ts)
Stable Profit Holdings Limited — 225,500,000 — 225,500,000 31.94%
(“Stable Profit”) (Note 5)
(B 5t5)
HSBC International Trustee Limited - — 225,500,000 225,500,000 31.94%
(*HSBC Trustee”) (Note 5)
(H1325)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(CONTINUED)

)

Interests and short positions of substantial
Shareholders in the Shares and underlying
Shares (Continued)

Long positions in Shares (Continued)

Succex Limited, a corporation which was controlled and wholly
owned by Mr. Lee, held 33,000,000 Shares. Therefore, Mr. Lee
was deemed to be interested in these Shares.

Mr. Lee was a founder and governor of Qing Yun Middle
School Education Development Foundation Limited, which
held 3,600,000 Shares. Therefore, Mr. Lee was deemed to be
interested in these Shares.

Stable Gain held 225,500,000 Shares, representing
approximately 31.94% of the issued share capital of the
Company. The entire issued share capital of Stable Gain was
registered in the name of Stable Profit, a company wholly-
owned by HSBC Trustee which acted as trustee of Lee Tze Bun
Family Trust (the “LTB Family Trust”), a discretionary trust, of
which Mr. Lee was the founder (as defined in section 308 of
the SFO) and an eligible beneficiary thereunder. Mr. Lee was
also the sole director of Stable Profit. Therefore, Mr. Lee was
deemed to be interested in these Shares.

The Charitable Foundation, of which Mr. Lee was the founder
(as defined in section 308 of the SFO), held 55,000,000 Shares,
representing approximately 7.79% of the issued share capital of
the Company. Therefore, Mr. Lee was deemed to be interested
in these Shares.

Stable Gain held 225,500,000 Shares, representing
approximately 31.94% of the issued share capital of the
Company. The entire issued share capital of Stable Gain was
registered in the name of Stable Profit, a company wholly-
owned by HSBC Trustee which acted as trustee of the LTB
Family Trust, a discretionary trust, of which Mr. Lee was a
founder (as defined in section 308 of the SFC) and an eligible
beneficiary thereunder. Mr. Lee was also the sole director of
Stable Profit. Therefore, HSBC Trustee was deemed to be
interested in these Shares in its capacity as trustee (other than
a bare trustee) and Stable Profit was deemed to be interested
in these Shares by virtue of the interest of its controlled
corporation (being Stable Gain). The respective interests
of Stable Gain, Stable Profit and HSBC Trustee were thus
duplicated.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(CONTINUED)

(1)

Interests and short positions of other persons
in the Shares and underlying Shares

Long positions in Shares
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FTERRREMALRRG REEK
MzEHER KA &)

() HttATREOREBERS2ES
KRR
Rz HE

Number of Shares and nature of interests

ROGAREESRH
Approximate
percentage of
the issued Share
Personal Spouse Other capital of
Name of Shareholders Note interests Interests interests Total the Company
HIEART
RRER it BARE EREER AR ax ERARABEAL
Ms. Lee Wing Kam Rowena Jackie (‘Ms. Lee") 1 6,985,000 - 55,000,000 61,985,000 8.78%
TRELL(FRL)
Ms. Cheung Man Ching Teresa (“Ms. Cheung’) 2 - 2,585,000 55,000,000 57,585,000 8.15%
EXERL(REL])
Ms. Lee, Mr. Li and Ms. Cheung as trustees of the 3 - - 55,000,000 55,000,000 7.79%
Charitable Foundation
Rt BABRERRRTARREEES KA
Ophorst Van Marwijk Kooy Vermogensbeheer N.V. (‘OVMK") 4 35,454,000 - - 35,454,000 5.02%
Notes: B

1. Ms. Lee was interested in an aggregate of 61,985,000 Shares
(comprising 6,985,000 Shares personally held as beneficial
owner and 55,000,000 Shares jointly held by her, Mr. Li
and Ms. Cheung as trustees of the Charitable Foundation),
representing approximately 8.78% of the issued share capital of
the Company.

2. Ms. Cheung was interested in an aggregate of 57,585,000
Shares (comprising 2,585,000 Shares held by her spouse as
beneficial owner and 55,000,000 Shares jointly held by her,
Ms. Lee and Mr. Li as trustees of the Charitable Foundation),
representing approximately 8.15% of the issued share capital of
the Company.

3. Ms. Lee, Mr. Li and Ms. Cheung jointly held 55,000,000
Shares as trustees of the Charitable Foundation, representing
approximately 7.79% of the issued share capital of the
Company. Therefore, all of them were deemed to be interested
in these Shares which were duplicated amongst their respective
interests.

4, OVMK holds 35,454,000 Shares, representing approximately
5.02% of the issued share capital of the Company.

1. 12+ 4 +£61,985,0000% f% 19 #F 7 B HE
(156,985,000 1 BEAAZE 2 B25
EAN REBEREFXBEERRLZLES
REEE 2T A B EF 255000000
B %) - IR A AR BB TR AR 498.78% ©

2. 3R L+ A $£57,585,0000% B 17 7 i A
HmPEHEEBIEAEREBEEAREL
2,585,0000% I& 19 & i [Al 82 & 2 + R 2 5k
BhREARESES VI AERBAZ
55,000,000/ I 7) + (AR AB 2 BEITRA
#4)8.15%

3. Tt EXRBRERKRLTEAEER
& 2 5 A £ E+5E55,000,0000 45
EARRAEBHITRANTTIN  H K E
HAEREEBRZRERD 2R  MESS
BZBROEZEHEESR -

4. OVMK # £35,454,0000% B 17 -
NAEIBEITIRA4L5.02% ©
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HREHRS

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(CONTINUED)

Save as disclosed above, as at 29 February 2024, the
Company had not been notified of any other persons
(other than the Directors or chief executive of the
Company) or corporation who had interests directly
or indirectly and/or short positions in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company which would be
required to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section
336 of the SFO.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions disclosed in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements do not constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions (as defined in the Listing Rules). The
Company confirmed that it has complied with the
requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year ended 29 February 2024.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that
the Directors shall be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets and profits of the Company against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which they or any of them shall or may incur in or about
the execution of their duty or supposed duty, in their
respective offices or trusts, provided that the indemnity
shall not extend to any matter in respect of fraud or
dishonesty which may attach to any of the Directors.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts (other than service contracts with
Directors as disclosed) concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for approximately 1.2% of the
total revenue from sales of goods for the year and sales
to the largest customer included therein amounted to
approximately 0.6% of the total revenue from sales of
goods for the year. Purchases from the Group’s five
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 52.1% of
the total purchases for the year and purchases from the
largest supplier amounted to approximately 12.1%.

None of the Directors or any of their respective close
associates or any Shareholders (which to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Shares) had any interest in the Group’s five largest
customers and/or five largest suppliers.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

A corporate governance report is set out on pages 45 to
76 of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

The ESG Report of the Group is set out on pages 77 to
122 of this report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as
at the date of this report, there is sufficient public float
of more than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as
required under the Listing Rules.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 29 February 2024 have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the
re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
AGM.

By Order of the Board

James Ngai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 May 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

_

pwec

To the Shareholders of Le Saunda Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Le Saunda
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”), which are set out on pages 152 to 261,
comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 29 February
2024,

° the consolidated income statement for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for
the year then ended;

° the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
comprising material accounting policy information
and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 29 February 2024, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised
as follows:

° Provision for impairment of inventories; and

° Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets of retail stores.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)
Key Audit Matter

BEETER

T 7 A% B H e

BREESEEHGE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
EFMNESTNNEERRENSE

Provision for impairment of inventories

FERERE

Refer to Notes 2.2.5, 4(d) and 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

B2 B HRERMT2.25 ~ 4(d) - &20 -

At 29 February 2024, the Group had gross
inventories and provision for impairment of inventories
amounted to approximately RMB203,922,000 and
approximately RMB39,411,000, respectively.
RZZEZME-_A=Z+HhB - BEEEGFEBBIREF
BB BB < 55 R & A R#%203,922,0007T F 49 A
K #39,411,0007T °

As described in the accounting policies in Note 2.2.5
to the consolidated financial statements, inventories
are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.
BRGAVERANF22M S RERRE FE
LR ABEX]EIFFERE CREEIEE -

The Group is engaged in the trading and sales of
footwear, accessories and cosmetic products, and is
subject to changing consumer demands and fashion
trends. Management’s judgement is required for
assessing the appropriate level of inventory provision
in current challenging retail environment.

EEENFEERE RHILEREMCEINEE
]Iﬁff HBEZ KK R B R TERE - &KX EB A

TERRUEESE  EREAFLABEATREFE
%ﬁ%@é%%o

We have obtained an understanding of
the management’s internal control and
assessment processes, assessed the inherent
risk of material misstatement by considering
the degree of estimation uncertainty and
level of other inherent risk factors, such as
subjectivity of assumptions and susceptibility
to management bias or fraud.

B THREEBOARBENLRFEREF 3
BERMANIHEELELEMEARREE

Hﬂﬂﬂ@@“%fﬁﬁ&aﬁFmFﬁi%
RERURATRENE) @ REME B KR SRR /9 B B B

We have evaluated analysis and assessment
made by management with respect to slow-
moving inventories.
HAFHEEEHERIUENTEE
AT o

T D

We have tested, on a sample basis, the stock
holding and movement data during the year
and after year end to identify products with
indications of obsolescence.
BMEEARFERZENEFENE B HE
ETHERNS  UWEEFHETRNTFE -

We have compared, on a sample basis, the net
realisable value of inventories sold subsequent
to the year end to the cost of inventories.

B ERZENHEHEFENAIZR FER
TFERARETHME L E -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)
Key Audit Matter

BEETER

BREESEEHGE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
EFMESTNNEERRENSE

Provision for impairment of inventories
(Continued)
FERERMEE)

Management determines the provision for obsolete or
slow-moving inventories based on a detailed ageing
analysis of inventories and the Group’s estimates of
projected sales of aged inventories in consideration
of various factors, such as the marketability of aged
products and the market conditions.
EREEBEEARTFENFARKRONE EEEHKRE
FEBRAHESENGIRBRIFHEHETEETRE -
ERERZERZ  NMREEMERERTR -

We focused on this area due to the significant
carrying value of inventories and the critical estimates
adopted by management on the provision for
obsolete or slow-moving inventories.

BT REERNARA SR EARUALRERE
HRRESIBERBUEFENRERBIRKBEK
B HI T R k5t o
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We have evaluated the future estimated sales
through of aged inventories with reference to
historical sales performance of similar products
through different sales channels, management
assessment of the relevant external market
information and the Group’s business
strategies identified through enquiries with
management.
HAMFEREFENRKAEFHE Th 2
ZRUEREBATREERENBEHER
B RHAEEERTHESHNEEEYHEH
VBT E R R EEETE R -

We have tested the mathematical accuracy of
management’s year end calculation of provision
for impairment of inventories.
HPMASREEEFATFERERBAEZE
WM o

Based on the above audit procedures
performed, we found that management’s
assessments were supported by the evidence
that we obtained.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)
Key Audit Matter

BEETER

T 7 A% B H e

BREESEEHGE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
EFMNESTNNEERRENSE

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets of retail stores
ZEEZYFE BBERRBEURERAEEERE

Refer to Notes 2.2.3, 2.2.4, 2.2.8, 4(b), 16 and 17 to
the consolidated financial statements.

BL2HEEVB®REKNF223 224 228 -
4(b) ~ 16217 °
The Group recorded impairment loss of

approximately RMB3,010,000 and approximately
RMB2,291,000 in respect of its leasehold
improvements classified as property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets, respectively, for
the year ended 29 February 2024,
HEZT-_NF-_A-TNABLEFE - E5EHE
ME BERBETFOEODELSITEARGER
EEED RIS R E BB L A R3,010,0007T & 49
A R #2,291,0007T °

We have obtained an understanding of the
management’s internal control and assessment
processes, assessed the inherent risk of
material misstatement by considering the
degree of estimation uncertainty and level of
other inherent risk factors, such as complexity,
subjectivity of assumptions and susceptibility
to management bias or fraud.
BRPTHEEBHNADBEFNNTEREF B
BERBMBAHN I EEEREMERREREE
WEE(REZHEMTE TEEREEED
R RSEREFROFIBE 1) - AT B REE SRRt 7Y
& A = K e

We have enquired management on their
basis of identifying impairment indicators
and challenged the judgements made in the
identification of impairment indicators.

HPMMEREEAEBFBEREHELER
HEBARERRBIETAIEAIEBREESR -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)
Key Audit Matter

BEETER

BREESEEHGE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
EFMESTNNEERRENSE

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets of retail stores
(Continued)

ZEEZYE BBERIBUREAREERE
(%)

The Group’s market capitalisation value is lower
than the net asset value of the Group as at 29
February 2024 and Group’s certain retail stores
with operations were loss making during the year.
Management determines each individual retail store
as a separately identifiable cash-generating unit
and carried out impairment assessments for the
retail store assets. The recoverable amounts of the
assets of the retail stores are determined at higher
of fair value less costs of disposal or value-in-use
using discounted cash flow projections based on the
forecast prepared and approved by management
with major assumptions such as gross profit and
revenue growth rate.

@EA_?,_P_TIE AZ+TNAEMHEERZBEE

Eﬁrﬁ& BEEEZENE TZEENFAHLEEL -
EEEBET 1I%IJE’%E2%£§%EIEE&E'JL%@EE&&-
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EBRRAARELBHLNFT RV RERA -
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We have compared, on a sample basis, the
forecasted sales performance and estimated
running costs of the retail stores used in the
value in use calculation to their historical
records.

%F’ﬁﬂﬂ%%f B EPAMAEEERER
hErEEK A EE BT RS ETHERLER -

We have enquired management in relation
to key assumptions in their value in use
calculations, challenged management and
evaluated the key assumptions (such as gross
profit, sales growth rate) applied by comparing
them to our understanding of latest market
information and conditions and historical
information, where applicable.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)
Key Audit Matter

BEETER

T 7 A% B H e

BREESEEHGE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
EFMNESTNNEERRENSE

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets of retail stores
(Continued)

ZEEZYE BBERIBUREAREERE
(%)

We focused on this area because significant
estimation and judgement were involved in
determining the recoverable amounts of the relevant
assets subject to impairment assessment.
BPIR T EB RN E T RETRENHZEHE
BE 2 AW B & 5805 & B Rk e -

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all of
the information included in the annual report other than

We have reperformed calculations of
impairments assessed by management.

KMEHAHEERETHHRE -

We have evaluated the sensitivity analysis
to ascertain the extent of change in the key
assumptions that would result in the retail store
assets being impaired and also considered
the likelihood of such a change in the key
assumptions arising.

BT EHREONMABECEERTESE
EXREREZFERBEHREE LEED
BZETE2BRRESHAIRIE -

Based on our work performed, we found the
impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets made by management
to be supported by available evidence.
BRERMABITHIE RMBEHEREEERN
EHZ2WE HENRBREREEERE
BEEBBEXH -

HifE 8
BERAAEZABHEMERAT - HiWER
BREFRANMEREE  BETBREEEY

BmAR MBI BE RS

the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s

report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express

any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

B GaHBRENBER LT REE
wiES BT THZFEMESER
ERAFANEESER

annual report 2024 35 2024 147



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B S A% B e

OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda and for no other purpose.

We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Mr. Wilson Chan.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 May 2024
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

A R AR

For the year ended 29 February 2024

HE_Z-_NF_A-t+hBIFE

Year ended Year ended
29 February 28 February
2024 2023
BZ HZE
—EDNFE T _=F
—A=t+hB Z—AZ=+NH
IEFE IEFE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
LhiEzs AR®BTR AR®TT
Revenue W &% 5 401,428 413,227
Cost of sales 5 & K AR 7 (150,629) (143,997)
Gross profit £ F 250,799 269,230
Other income H b ug A 6 2,285 5,451
Other gains/(losses), net Hiblezs /(E18) F58 6 3,218 (7,843)
Write-back of impairment/ ZoEWRBERERR,
(impairment losses) on trade (CREBRE)  F8
receivables, net 7 385 4)
Selling and distribution expenses  $5%& & 7 $4 i &2 7 (204,830) (240,194)
General and administrative — M RITER X
expenses 7 (83,982) (86,862)
Operating loss KEEE (32,125) (60,222)
Finance income, net R A FEE 8 10,666 7,065
Loss before income tax BRPTIS B AT 18 (21,459) (53,157)
Income tax (expense)/credit e s (), Mk 12 (2,867) 1,890
Loss for the year FANEBE (24,326) (51,267)
Loss for the year attributable to: JEIEFNEIE:
— owners of the Company — RRAREERFAA (23,542) (50,271)
— non-controlling interest — JEERER (784) (996)
(24,326) (51,267)
Losses per share attributable to the ZNA & # z #5 B A FE1h
owners of the Company EREBARED)
(express in RMB cents)
— Basic — ER 13 (3.34) (7.12)
— Diluted — BE 13 (3.34) (7.12)

F158E 2618 2 M s A AN 1% R & T A

DEIZE D e

The notes on pages 158 to 261 are an integral part of
these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
AxWAAﬁL&Ai%

For the year ended 29 February 2024
BHE_ZT_NMF_A_+NRBILFE

Year ended Year ended

29 February 28 February

2024 2023

BZE HE

—EoME —T-=F
—A=thB Z—A=+N\H
LtEE IEFE

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
LhiEzs AR®BTR AR®TT

Loss for the year FANEBE (24,326) (51,267)

Other comprehensive (loss)/income F AT %Z 2 Hih 2 M|
for the year, net of tax (B8 WA

ltem that will not be reclassified to E#BTE@EHHEALZEE

consolidated income statement Bm&k2EHE
— Actuarial (losses)/gains on — BEREMNEEZRE
retirement benefit obligation (E18),/ % 7 26 (227) 6
ltem that will be reclassified to HiEeEnsmoEAEAE
consolidated income statement ik ZIEE
— Currency translation — [EH EFE
differences 13,776 9,779
Total comprehensive loss FRNEHEEBERE
for the year (10,777) (41,482)
Total comprehensive loss for EEFEFARNEHEEEERE:
the year, attributable to:
— owners of the Company — ARAEEFRBA (9,993) (40,486)
—non-controlling interest — FEERRE (784) (996)

(10,777) (41,482)

The notes on pages 158 to 261 are an integral part of Z158Z 2618 2 M 5= A& KB 7% sk X & ]
these consolidated financial statements. o &z &

annual report 2024 F 3k 2024 153



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AR B E AR

As at 29 February 2024
RZZTZWF=ZA=+NH

As at As at
29 February 28 February

2024 2023

i i

—EoNE —E=-=F
—A=t+hB ZA=tNH

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Lis AR®BTR AR%Tx

Assets BE
Non-current assets RBEE
Investment properties "EME 15 76,038 73,200
Property, plant and equipment Y B RRE 16 10,338 14,534
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 17 28,678 34,869
Long-term deposits and REEE2R
prepayments AN 21 981 3,118
Deferred income tax assets REFMSRIBEE 19 29,490 32,390
___145525 ___ 158,111
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 20 164,511 192,376
Trade and other receivables B EWERTE &
H i JE U AR 18 21 36,275 42,290
Deposits and prepayments Ee KB HRIE 21 33,116 38,067
Cash and bank balances Be MBITES 22 364,655 371,606
___ 998557 644,339
Total assets wWEE 744,082 802,450
Equity =
Capital and reserves attributable ~ ANA A H A E(L
to the owners of the Company IR AR K 5
Share capital N 25 59,979 59,979
Reserves Gk
Proposed dividend EEKRE 27 32,173 —
Others H1h 27 521,632 595,546
613,784 655,525
Non-controlling interest FERES 4,327 8,111
Total equity B 618,111 663,636

The notes on pages 158 to 261 are an integral part of Z158Z 2618 2 M 5= A& KB 7% sk X & ]
these consolidated financial statements. DEZE D o
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
iR B E AR

As at 29 February 2024
RZZTZWF=—A=+1H

As at As at
29 February 28 February

2024 2023

i i

—EoNE —E=-=F
—A=t+hB Z—AZ=+N\H

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Lis AR®BTR AR%Tx

Liabilities afE
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFMSHRIBEEE 19 18,016 18,312
Lease liabilities HEaRFE 17 6,908 14,564
____>24924 32,876
Current liabilities REBERE
Trade payables, other payables BHREMNRIE - Bt
and contract liabilities ERBRBERANEE 24 85,820 81,755
Lease liabilities HEAE 17 13,551 22,735
Current income tax liabilities EHMEHRAE 1,676 1,448
___ 101,047  __ 105,938
Total liabilities weE _ 125971 138,814
Total equity and liabilities EaRkEaEHEE 744,082 802,450

The consolidated financial statements on pages 152 to  F152ZE261B 2 SR A M B /REAE RN - Z

261 were approved by the Board of Directors on 27 May —WME&RA-++HESE=< & T H
2024 and were signed on its behalf. TIHATHREEE -

James Ngai Li Wing Yeung, Peter

17 M= k&

Chairman Director

*FE EZE

The notes on pages 158 to 261 are an integral part of Z158Z 2618 2 M 5= A& KB 7% sk X & ]
these consolidated financial statements. DEZE D o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 29 February 2024
BE_ZT_NF_A-+HARILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AAREEREAERL
Non-
Share controlling
capital Reserves Sub-total interest Total equity
Rx ks Bt FERER BiEn

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR AR®T:R

Balance at 1 March 2022 RZE-—%=f-H
rap L SegTS_BRGR 8RO S 7053
Comprehensive loss *HEE
Loss for the year FRE#R - (50,271) (50,271) (996) (51,267)
Other comprehensive income A 2EMA
Currency translation differences EHER - 9,779 9,779 - 9,779
Actuarial gains on retirement RINEFERL
benefit obligation BERM — 6 6 - 6
Total comprehensive loss for the year FAZEBESLE — _ (do488) (40486 (998 (41482
Transaction with owners RERBEAIRS
Dividend e - - - ( 2_21_) L _(2_21_)
Balance at 28 February 2023 RZE-=F-A=F/\H
2# | 59979 595546 655525 8111 663636
Comprehensive loss 2HEE
Loss for the year ERER - (23,542) (23,542) (784) (24,326)
Other comprehensive income/(loss)  EtZ2EYNA /(E#E)
Currency translation differences A - 13,776 13,776 - 13,776
Actuarial losses on retirement BRBHEEZ
benefit obligation REFS - (227) (227) = (227)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ¥A2EBESLE - (9993 (9,993 (784  (10,777)
Transaction with owners BEGHRAEALRS
Dividend wRE - (31,748 (31,748 - (31,748
Capital reduction by non-controlling 2 [k 1% 2 i &
interest - = - - __ (3,000 (3,000
Balance at 29 February 2024 RZZE-_ME-A-t+hH
LR 59,979 553,805 613,784 4,327 618,111

The notes on pages 158 to 261 are an integral part of Z158Z 2618 2 M 5= A& KB 7% sk X 7]
these consolidated financial statements. DE|ZE D o

156 le saunda holdings Itd. % H7 fHZE %A IR A R



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLLOW STATEMENT

A v B
mablaiak
For the year ended 29 February 2024
BHE_ZT_NMF_A_+NRBILFE

Year ended Year ended
29 February 28 February
2024 2023
BZ Bz
—E-ME —T_=F
—R=thH )= s A=
LEE HFEE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Pt 3% AR¥ETR ARETT
Operating activities ReExKEH
Net cash generated from/(used in) REEBEL/(BR)ZHS
operations FE 23(a) 43,769 (78)
Taxation paid ENHIE (420) (11,198)
Interest paid ERF 8 (1,090) (1,576)
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating K&K EHEL /(FH) 2
activities ReEd 42,259 (12,852)
Investing activities REED
Interest income on bank deposits BOTRZFERA 11,756 8,641
Purchases of property, plant and equipment #& &%) % - #28 & & & 16 (9,494) (16,384)
Decrease/(increase) in bank deposits with ~ BB =82 FHBFZRL/
initial term over three months (4 m) 34,038 (42,738)
Decrease in pledged deposit BEARTRSD - 647
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing REFHEL /(A 2B
activities FE 36,300 (49,834)
Financing activities MEEE
Repayment of short-term bank loan RBETERER 23(c) - (21,637)
Principal element of lease payments HENRZAEED 23(c) (24,455) (25,214)
Capital reduction by non-controlling interest  3F 2% # 25 2 B & (3,000) -
Dividend paid BERRE 23(c) (31,796) -
Dividend paid to non-controlling interest B EERERRE - (221)
Net cash used in financing activities mAEHEAc AFE (69,251) (47,072)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash ~ BE&RERELBEE N,/ (R D)
equivalents ik 19,308 (109,758)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [EX&Z 2 - 55 7,779 (4,016)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FNzReRERRELER
of year 308,568 422,342
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year F&RZH4RERBELER 22 335,655 308,568

The notes on pages 158 to 261 are an integral part of
these consolidated financial statements.

F158E 2618 2 M s A AN 1% R & T A
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Le Saunda Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are
principally engaged in trading and sales of footwear,
accessories and cosmetic products. The Group
mainly operates in Mainland China, Hong Kong and
Macau.

The Company is a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda. The address of its
registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The Company is listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), unless otherwise
stated.

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

This note provides a list of the accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the
Group have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
the disclosure requirements of the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622, the Laws of Hong Kong).
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties, which are carried at fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY 2
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

S BRRERBE(F)

21 mBEE(E)

The preparation of consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
[t also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

(a) New standard and amendments to
standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following new
standard and amendments to standards
for the first time for their annual reporting
period commencing 1 March 2023:

HKAS 1 (Revised) (Amendments)
BB ETERSE1R (BB E)EETAR)

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 (Amendment)
EARUBHRESENER R EHE25H(EFTA)

HKAS 8 (Amendments)

FE G ERFE8H (BRI A)

HKAS 12 (Amendments)

BEGTEAE

E125% (158 5T &)

HKAS 12 (Amendment)

B EAFE 2R (BT AX)
HKFRS 17

BB EERETR

RREEFBYHREER -
AV BHRRAERETH
REthet EEETARE
AAEE g BERIELH
- PR ESREEHERES

wHRzEE ISR EEEM
BHREAMEBEAN 2BR &G
e N AT RE -

KEBRY = FE
2 A
AEEBER=ZZ=-_=F=A
— BB cFEREHME
BXERATY HER RE
A1 2 AR

(a) A K15

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

GET R R

Making Materiality Judgements
#hE 2K 1 A

Accounting Policies, Change in Accounting
Estimates and Errors
SETBR - SFHAFTE2E KR

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction
HE-QRHELCEERBERAZER
I8

International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model
Rules

BEREREEE — XE—

~ &6 55 Al

RELIR B

Insurance Contract

1%»/\!:! A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SR B R
2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY 2 BIBEXEMBEGE
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 FREE(E)
(a) New standard and amendments to (a) FKEBEFRDZ FHER KK
standards adopted by the Group A2 R (4E)

(Continueqd)

The new standard and amendments to

standards listed above did not
impact on the amounts reco

prior periods and are not expected to

significantly affect the current
periods.

(b)

interpretation not yet adopted

Certain amendments to standards and

interpretation have been publi
are not mandatory for 29 Febr
reporting periods and have not
adopted by the Group:

Amendments to standards and

BRI 2 R R AE RT

have any ZERYEE RNBTERE

gnised in PR eBEKEMAF
2. BT E K

or future RAKREABEKERTE o

(b) TR ZANEET 2 ER K

i FE
AEBTLERERME

shed that BHER_ZT_NNF_A

uary 2024 Z+Hh B ¥HEERE KRR

been early SlAEK zHE TIEE 2 ZEA
NEE:

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
Fask 212

KWz a5t

B

HKAS 1 (Amendments)
%/ = u*’gﬁlj%15}%<{ ETZK)

HKAS 1 (Amendments)
BRI EFE1REFTA)

HKFRS 16 (Amendments)

BERMHHREEF65%(BIIA)
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Classification of Liabilities as Current or 1 March 2024

Non-current
H 1:{/_\/2);5#.!/”\;@_23'5//&@ —Y—P—qg H El
1 March 2024

—E-_WF=A—H

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

mROGRERBAR

1 March 2024

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback
ERHEEMNHEEERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) Amendments to standards and
interpretation not yet adopted
(Continueqd)

i B i

S BRRERBE(F)

21 RREER)
(b) [HF KRR Z ISR 2 ER K
2 FE(E)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
Fia sl < 1

KMz a5t

Hi

HK (IFRIC)-Int 5 (Revised)

Presentation of Financial Statements

1 March 2024

— Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause

Er(ERPBEREREZES)
-2 BFESR(KEL)

HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7
(Amendments)

ERGERNETREBEN R HEDREZH

ER e ACHEN

HKAS 21 (Amendments)
BB EAFE215% (BRI K)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)
Venture

\:

BEEVBRELENEI0RRE REERH

B & 5 2RI ZE285% (£ 5] )

These amendments to standards and
interpretation are not expected to have
a material impact on the Group in the
current or future reporting periods and on
foreseeable future transactions.

Supplier Finance Arrangements

Lack of Exchangeability
R = Al 5t

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint

CENTHAB LR
R A A T A

2IHBHRER - ERAGMEHER —F-_MF=A—H

ERIRTNERERO DB

1 March 2024
“E-mFE=H—H
1 March 2025
—E-HF=A—H
To be determined

A 3 H B

M) A R TE
ZEEBE cER RRER
ey ANEE TS Bk

AKBERHBE KAIER
ARRGEREATE -

annual report 2024 3k 2024 161



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

foi A B 5 R M

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies

2.2.1 Subsidiaries

2.21.1 Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities (including
structured entities) over which the
Group has control. The Group controls
an entity where the Group is exposed
to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct the
activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date
that control ceases.

Intercompany transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment
of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results
and equity of subsidiaries are shown
separately in the consolidated income
statement, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity
and consolidated balance sheet
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY 2 BIABRFEREMEE)
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2.1 Subsidiaries (Continued)

22 EXREFBRMEE)

221 BB 1 &l (4&)

2.21.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(@)

Business combinations

The acquisition method of
accounting is used to account
for all business combinations,
regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary comprises the:

° fair values of the assets
transferred;

° liabilities incurred to the
former owners of the
acquired business;

° equity interests issued by
the Group;

e fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a
contingent consideration
arrangement; and

e fair value of any pre-existing
equity interest in the
subsidiary.

2211426 BREB (&)

@ EBKEH
EwmeBERED
BENEMEE -
BB B W B L S
B %146 A
B WEHEAQ
BiEEE LR
B

s DHREEAE
NFE:

e WHEBEHR
NS
ERE:

e AEHEETT
ORI

o ’

B

e HABHEZR
BEEMT
MEEHLEB
BRRAFE:
M
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 55 AR B

2

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies

(Continued)

2.2.1 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.21.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(@)

Business combinations
(Continued)

Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business
combination are with limited
exceptions measured initially
at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling
interests in the acquired entity
on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the
acquired entity’s net identifiable
assets. Acquisition-related costs
are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the:

° consideration transferred;

e amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquired
entity; and

o acquisition-date fair value of
any previous equity interest
in the acquired entity.

164 le saunda holdings Itd. % H7 fHZE %A IR A R

2

S BRRERBE(F)

22 EXREFBRMEE)

221 BB 1 &l (4&)

2211554

(@)

BB (&E)
EXBaot(E)

B i oK 1B 0 S
NEB AT
BEA A EE
MAEAENAENR
R EAREY
RFEFE K
& B3R @ 5 Y BB
HE - REQF
(EEE e
FE A B W BB 7 Al
HAEEFED
RSB LH
fER WU IE T A
I IEEARE A -
Y i B A AR
NELR A

e T B
1B

a5 u.uT
v

FE 2

o« R
{7 35 1 i
e B
%

o EEEHNR
352 0B 5 A
e A% A 25 2
Y 8% B 5 B
AFE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies

(Continued)

2.2.1 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.21.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(@)

Business combinations
(Continued)

over the fair value of the net
identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those
amounts are less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets
of the business acquired, the
difference is recognised directly
in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase.

Where settlement of any part of
cash consideration is deferred,
the amounts payable in the future
are discounted to their present
value as at the date of exchange.
The discount rate used is the
entity’s incremental borrowing
rate, being the rate at which
a similar borrowing could be
obtained from an independent
financier under comparable
terms and conditions. Contingent
consideration is classified
either as equity or a financial
liability. Amounts classified as a
financial liability are subsequently
remeasured to fair value with
changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o

2

S 85 e M

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies

(Continued)

2.2.1 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.11 Consolidation (Continued)

(o)

Changes in ownership interests
in subsidiaries without change of
control

The Group treats transactions
with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of
control as transactions with
equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest
results in an adjustment between
the carrying amounts of the
controlling and non-controlling
interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of
the adjustment to non-controlling
interests and any consideration
paid or received is recognised in
a separate reserve within equity
attributable to owners of the
Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies

(Continued)

2.2.1 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.21.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(©)

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have
control, any retained interest
in the entity is re-measured to
its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change
in carrying amount recognised
in the consolidated income
statement. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. It means the amounts
previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are
reclassified to the profit or loss or
transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

foi A B 5 R M

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies

(Continued)

2.2.1 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.21.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are
accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments
in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is
declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

2.2.2 Investment properties

Investment properties, principally
comprising leasehold land and buildings,
are held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that are
not occupied by the Group.

Land held under operating leases are
accounted for as investment properties
when the rest of the definition of an
investment property is met. In such
cases, the operating leases concerned
are accounted for as if they were finance
leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2.2 Investment properties (Continued)

Investment properties are initially measured
at cost, including related transaction costs
and where applicable borrowing costs.

After initial recognition, investment
properties are carried at fair value,
representing open market value determined
at each financial year end by external
valuers. Fair value is based on active
market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location
or condition of the specific asset. If the
information is not available, the Group
uses alternative valuation methods such
as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections.

Changes in fair values are recorded in the
consolidated income statement as part
of a valuation gain or loss in “other gains/
(losses), net”.

Gains and losses on disposals are
determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amount and are
recognised within “other gains/(losses), net”
in the consolidated income statement.

2

A o A 2 A Mk

EABREERBEE)
22 EXREFBRMEE)

222 REWY*E (&)
B Y E VIR E AT ER
BREHEBORZK ARG
A A(ER) -

ENREREK  REDE
BAFEINEK AFEE
m S 8B 4 B Bb 7 & fE ) &
BEHEENRARAME &
FERE LR TS ERE
B WAERTERENEE
B E B SRR Y
MERFELABE - WELH
HRER  AEEMAE
fl fH (B J50% - Pl I & A&
Bhmis i HERKITAR

BenERAE-

NP EEHHAAGAERR
xERIME I &/ (B
/) FREIPHERE X
BEr— 8 -

hEzWeE R ERIRB
LB PrISRIE AR EE &
EoUREaEaRNE
otz (B 1E)  FEIAN
FER -

annual report 2024 %% 2024 1609



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 55 AR B

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY 2 BIABRFEREMEE)
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

22 EXREFBRMEE)

an owner-occupied property becomes an
investment property, the Group accounts
for such property in accordance with note
2.2.3 up to the date of change in use, and
any difference at the date between the
carrying amount and the fair value of the
property is accounted for as a revaluation
and recognised in asset revaluation reserve
within equity until the retirement or disposal
of the property (when it is released directly
to retained profits). Any resulting decrease
in the carrying amount of the property
is recognised in profit or loss. However,
to the extent that an amount is included
in revaluation surplus for that property,
the decrease is recognised in other
comprehensive income and reduces the
revaluation surplus within equity.

2.2.3 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated
at historical cost less depreciation and
impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the
asset’s carrying amount or recognised
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised when
replaced. All other repair and maintenance
costs are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred.
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2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies

(Continued)
2.2.3 Property, plant and equipment

i B i

2 EHERRERSEGE
22 EAEHBERMEG)

223 Y3 ~ HER KM ()

(Continueqd)

Depreciation on property, plant and
equipment is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful
lives, at the following annual rates:

Buildings 2-4%
BF 2-4%
Leasehold improvements
MHMERETE

Furniture and fixtures

F N E

Motor vehicles 20%
TE 20%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.2.4).

Gains and losses on disposals are
determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amounts and are
recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

20%-33.3%
20%-33.3%

W% BERRBIIFE
BLE B0 RO T R 48
M ET R FRAIE D&
A

5-20% or over the lease period, whichever is shorter
5-20% =k 1% T8 B (LA B 52 & 7% )

EERNBEERTERE
5090 4% R 45 B9 SR AR BT 3 1
HIEE B -

WEERmESNEME
AkESE HERAAES
BB R 2= L AT UK (o) < %8 (S
§F2.2.4) °

HEZRET BB MR

STREERREEET X
RFERERATER -

annual report 2024 3k 2024 171



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 55 AR B

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY 2 EBFBRXERBEE
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
2.2 Summary of material accounting policies 22 EAEHBEBME(E)
(Continued)
2.24 Impairment of non-financial assets 204 FEBIEEERE
Assets that are subject to amortisation A E B EEENEAEEMN
are reviewed for impairment whenever _JZ’l ek SR RNRE AR
events or changes in circumstances BE B A UL B B E 1T R E R
indicate that the carrying amount may .ﬂL REBEEZEE 2K
not be recoverable. An impairment loss HEBHETKESRE
is recognised for the amount by which ZHRER AKDEEA
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its EEAFENMBR KA
recoverable amount. The recoverable RERE_&EPHNREE -
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair R EHEER  BEEY
value less costs of disposal to sell and AA#ABEeRECREE
value in use. For the purposes of assessing FEM)ZHEEBXRES -
impairment, assets are grouped at the JEBT A E IR R ER
lowest levels for which there are separately BRERER KRB BE
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating B Ol 2 Al REIE o

units). Non-financial assets that suffered
impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of
each reporting period.

2.2.5 Inventories 225 7 H
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost FEHLK AR &R FE
and net realisable value. Cost is determined MEPPHEKED R - 5K
using the first-in, first-out (“FIFO”) method. KUAFAFXLEEETE %’z
The cost of finished goods excludes Ko ZKATBIEEE
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is No A I EEINARSE %
the estimated selling price in the ordinary EHKPHNESFEBRE
course of business, less applicable variable AEFHEERT -

selling expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2.6 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense for the
year comprises current and deferred
tax. Income tax is recognised in the
consolidated income statement, except
to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company,
its subsidiaries and joint venture operate
and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 55 AR B

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY 2 EBFBRXERBEE
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
2.2 Summary of material accounting policies 22 EAEHBEBME(E)
(Continued)
2.2.6 Current and deferred income tax 226 BEEIR P13 % (&)

(Continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised, BEEFSHAEERARE
using the liability method, on temporary MM EBES SRR
differences arising between the tax bases TEREBECEANEREZRE -
of assets and liabilities and their carrying NBEEEZ R
amounts in the consolidated financial EEMSHIEAGENKRA
statements. However, the deferred income NETHEREE mirIEZE
tax is not accounted for if it arises from BEHNRGHNTER
initial recognition of an asset or liability BESBEMEELELTMN
in a transaction other than a business B M 5EET®EY
combination that at the time of the ZedEEBERERE S
transaction affects neither accounting nor skE e Bl T2 5 IE P
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax BHAR - BELEMEHIEZ
is determined using tax rates (and laws) REEHEERKERE
that have been enacted or substantively i A RTEEIE BRRBIEIL
enacted by the balance sheet date and TS & ERBGEIRILEFRT
are expected to apply when the related EHaEEEHER M
deferred income tax asset is realised or the R(GERMEBTE

deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax liabilities in relation to WAFEFENKREDZE
investment properties that are measured MMELXAZELEMEHRARE
at fair value are determined assuming DBREWEANEIIEEM
the properties will be recovered entirely BEE -

through sale.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised BEMEMEETIERSA
only to the extent that it is probable that A] gE IR oK 2K FE 2R A i A
future taxable profit will be available against A RS = SE RS A HE
which the temporary differences can be e

utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2.6 Current and deferred income tax

(Continueqd)

Deferred income tax is provided on
temporary differences a rising on
investments in subsidiaries, except for
deferred income tax liability where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income tax assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.

2.2.7 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of
the consideration received or receivable for
the sale of goods in the ordinary course of
the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown
net of value-added tax, returns, rebates
and discounts and after eliminating sales
within the Group.

Sales of goods are recognised at a
point in time when a group entity has
delivered products to the customer; the
customer has accepted the products and
collectability of the related receivables is
reasonably assured.

2

A o A 2 A Mk

EABREERBEE)
22 EXREFBRMEE)
226 BEHIRELFr i3 # (&)

i FE P 1S TR L0 P B & )
MREELENETRZREIEF
HEE ERBELEMENR
BEMS  WAKEAMU
2 B IR RR R [ RO B )
IR R BERE R SRS
RAEFIGENSEDAIRRIN -

EAEAEANNTENKE
MM AEEERERNHIAR
EHEE BEREEMGSHRE
ERBESRAR RS
BELUERNERLTH
ERRERBBHEAER
NFREEEEEHRE
AR IEE RS E E B
BEEHREH -

227 W > R
WaR DIRBAEE T — K
¥BRAEBEPLEECER
BRI ERRECATFE
FTE o WG ER -
RE -BHMEFM UK
BEEBEANMBHEER 2F

BYIR e
ERHEREBEREM
EREFPH  BEFEWEM

I A] & HE #E £R AT 4[] 48 R
& Yo K TH By 3R o

-
m <
]

annual report 2024 %% 2024 175



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A o A 2 AR Mk

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2.7 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a) Sales of goods — retail and
concessionaire sales

Revenue from sales of goods
including retail and concessionaire
sales is recognised when control of
the products has transferred, which
generally coincides with the time when
the goods are delivered to customers
and title has passed.

(b) Sales of goods — internet sales

Revenue from the sale of goods on
the internet is recognised at the point
that the control of the inventory have
passed to the customer, which is the
point of dispatch. Transactions are
settled by credit or payment card.
Provisions are made for internet credit
notes based on the expected level of
returns, which in turn is based upon
the historical rate of returns.

2.2.8 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability at the
date at which the leased asset is available
for use by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2.8 Leases (Continued)

Assets and liabilities arising from a
lease are initially measured on a present
value basis. Lease liabilities include the
net present value of the following lease
payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease
incentives receivable;

e variable lease payment that are
based on an index or a rate, initially
measured using the index or rate as at
the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable
by the Group under residual value
guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option
if the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise that option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating
the lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising that option.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 55 AR B

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY 2 BIABRFEREMEE)
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2.8 Leases (Continued)

22 EXREFBRMEE)

228 HE (#&)

The lease payments are discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that
rate cannot be readily determined, the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee
would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.

Right-of-use assets are measured at
cost comprising the amount of the
initial measurement of lease liability, any
lease payments made at or before the
commencement date and restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally
depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term
on a straight-line basis. If the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase
option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated
over the underlying asset’s useful life.
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2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2.8 Leases (Continued)

Payments associated with short-term
leases of store premises and all leases
of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit
or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a
lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value
assets comprise point of sale machines.

Lease income from operating leases where
the Group is a lessor is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. The
respective leased assets are included in the
consolidated balance sheet based on their
nature.

2.3 Summary of other potentially material
accounting policies

2.3.1 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in
a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the executive
directors that makes strategic decisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o

2

S 85 e M

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of other potentially material
accounting policies (Continued)

2.3.2 Foreign currency translation

(@)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial
statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements
are presented in RMB, which is
the Group’s presentation currency
and the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions
or valuation where items are
re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are generally recognised in
the consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of other potentially material
accounting policies (Continued)

2.3.2 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

Transactions and balances (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are
measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the
fair value was determined. Translation
differences on assets and liabilities
carried at fair value are reported as
part of the fair value gain or loss.
For example, translation differences
on non-monetary assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through the profit or loss are
recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of the fair value gain
or loss and translation differences on
non-monetary assets such as equities
classified as fair value through other
comprehensive income are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position
of all the group entities that have a
functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated
into the presentation currency as
follows:

() assets and liabilities for each
balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;
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SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of other potentially material
accounting policies (Continued)

2.3.2 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Group companies (Continued)

(i) income and expenses for each
income statement are translated
at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates
of the transactions); and

(ili)y all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange
differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in
foreign operations are taken to other
comprehensive income. When a
foreign operation is partially disposed
of or sold, exchange differences
that were recorded in equity are
recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of the gain or loss
on sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of other potentially material
accounting policies (Continued)

2.3.3 Financial assets

(@)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial
assets in the category of those to be
measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on
the Group’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

The Group reclassified debt
investments when and only when its
business model for managing those
assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales
of financial assets are recognised
on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group
measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o

2

S 85 e M

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of other potentially material
accounting policies (Continued)

2.3.3 Financial assets (Continued)

()

Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the
asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset. The Group classified its
debt instruments as financial assets at
amortised cost.

Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included
in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition is recognised
directly in the profit or loss and
presented in “other gains/(losses), net”
together with foreign exchange gains
and losses.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward
looking basis the expected credit
loss (“ECL”) associated with its
assets carried at amortised cost.
The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.
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2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of other potentially material

accounting policies (Continued)
2.3.3 Financial assets (Continued)

(d) Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

For trade receivables, the Group
applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of
the receivables.

Impairment on other receivables is
measured as either 12-month ECL or
lifetime ECL, depending on whether
there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition.
If a significant increase in credit risk
of a receivable has occurred since
initial recognition, then impairment is
measured as lifetime ECL.

2.3.4 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset
and the net amount reported in the
consolidated balance sheet when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts, and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis to
realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future
events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event
of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Group of the counterparty.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 55 AR B

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY 2
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of other potentially material 23 HMEBEEEARESTHEHME
accounting policies (Continued) (&)

235 BEGBWRER At fEW

S BRRERBE(F)

2.3.6 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for goods sold in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade
and other receivables is expected in one
year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance
for impairment. See Note 2.3.3 for further
information about the Group’s accounting
for trade and other receivables for a

Cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three
months or less.

2.3.7 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to
the issue of new shares or options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.
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2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of other potentially material

accounting policies (Continued)
2.3.8 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for
goods or services that have been acquired
in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade and other payables are
classified as current liabilities if payment is
due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer).
If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

2.3.9 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the
Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation and
the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar
obligations, the likelihood that an outflow
will be required in settlement is determined
by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if
the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 55 AR B

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY 2
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of other potentially material 23 HMEBEEEARESTHEHME
accounting policies (Continued) (&)

239 B (&)

S BRRERBE(F)

2.3.9 Provisions (Continued)

Provisions are measured at the present
value of management’'s best estimate
of the expenditures required to settle
the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period. The discount rate
used to determine the present value is a
pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The
increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.

2.3.10 Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at
amortised cost calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in
the consolidated income statement.

Interest income is presented as finance
income where it is earned from financial
assets that are held for cash management
purposes. Any other interest income is
included in other income.

2.3.11 Employee benefits

(a) Employee benefit entitlements

Salaries, bonuses, annual leave and
the cost of other benefits to the Group
are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by
the employees of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of other potentially material
accounting policies (Continued)

2.3.11 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to a mandatory
provident fund scheme which is
a defined contribution retirement
scheme and available to all Hong
Kong employees. Both the Company
and the staff are required to contribute
5% of the employees’ relevant income
with a ceiling of HK$1,500 per month
to the MPF scheme. Staff may elect to
contribute more than the minimum as
a voluntary contribution. The Group’s
contributions to this mandatory
provident fund scheme are expensed
as incurred.

The Group also contributes to pension
schemes established by municipal
governments in respect of certain
subsidiaries in Mainland China. The
municipal governments undertake
to assume the retirement benefit
obligations of all existing and future
retired employees of the Group.
Contributions to these schemes are
charged to the consolidated income
statement as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 55 AR B

2

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of other potentially material
accounting policies (Continued)

2.3.11 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

Pension obligations (Continued)

The liability or asset recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet in respect
of defined benefit pension plans is the
present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting
period less the fair value of plan
assets. The defined benefit obligation
is calculated annually by independent
actuaries using the projected unit
credit method.

Remeasurement gains and losses
arising from experience adjustments
and changes in actuarial assumptions
are recognised in the period in
which they occur, directly in other
comprehensive income. They are
included in retained earnings in the
consolidated statement of changes in
equity and in the consolidated balance
sheet.

2.3.12 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability
in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements and the Company’s financial
statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, and no longer
at the discretion of the Company, where
appropriate.
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2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of other potentially material
accounting policies (Continued)

2.3.13 Earnings per share

(@)

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated
by dividing the profit/(loss) attributable
to shareholders of the Company by
the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the
financial year.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the
figures used in the determination of
basic earnings per share to take into
account:

° the after-income tax effect of
interest and other financing costs
associated with dilutive potential
ordinary shares; and

e the weighted average number of
additional ordinary shares that
would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 55 AR B

2

3

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of other potentially material

2

S BRRERBE(F)

23 Htt BEEAXAEHBRHYE

accounting policies (Continued)
2.3.14 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised
at their fair value where there is a
reasonable assurance that the grants will
be received and the Group will comply with
all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs
are deferred and recognised in the
consolidated income statement over
the period necessary to match them
with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (included foreign
exchange risk and interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk.

The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of
the financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

Risk management is carried out under policies
approved by the directors of the Company.
The directors provide principles for an overall
risk management, as well as policies covering
specific areas.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk

(1)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong
Kong and Mainland China with most
of the transactions settled in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), United States
dollars (“US$”) and RMB. The Group
is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising mainly from the exposure of
HK$ and US$ against RMB as the
majority of the Group’s financial assets
and liabilities including deposits in
banks, trade receivables and trade
payables are denominated in HK$ and
USS.

The Group manages its foreign
exchange risk by performing regular
reviews of the Group’s net foreign
exchange exposures and it has not
hedged its foreign exchange rate risk.

At 29 February 2024, if HK$ had
strengthened/weakened by 3%
against the RMB with all other
variables held constant, loss for the
year would have been approximately
RMB13,000 (2023: RMB22,000)
higher/lower mainly as a result of
foreign exchange losses/gains on
translation of RMB denominated
deposits in banks.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

foi A B 5 R M

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)
() Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 29 February 2024, if US$ had
strengthened/weakened by 3%
against the RMB with all other
variables held constant, loss for the
year would have been approximately
RMB23,000 (2023:RMB23,000) lower/
higher mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on translation
of US$ denominated deposits in

banks.

The foreign exchange risk arising
from the exposure of other foreign
currencies is considered to be

minimal.

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group’s main interest rate risk
arises from bank balance which
exposes the Group to cash flow and
fair value interest rate risks.

As at 29 February 2024, if the interest
rates on bank balance had been 25
basis points higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, loss for the
year would have been approximately
RMB723,000 (2023: RMB743,000)
lower/higher mainly as a result of
higher/lower net interest income on

bank balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk

The carrying amounts of the trade and
other receivables including deposits (Note
21) and cash and bank balances (Note 22)
included in the consolidated balance sheet
represent the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to its financial
assets.

Sales to retail customers are made in
cash or via major credit cards. The Group
has policies in place to ensure that sales
of products on credit terms are made
to customers with an appropriate credit
history and the Group performs periodic
credit evaluations of its customers. The
Group’s concessionaire sales through
department stores are generally collectible
within 30 to 60 days from the invoice date
while credit sales are generally on credit
terms within 90 days. Normally the Group
does not require collaterals from trade
debtors. The Group’s historical experience
in collection of trade and other receivables
falls within the recorded allowances and the
directors are of the opinion that adequate
provision for uncollectible receivables has
been made.

Substantially all the deposits with banks
are held in international financial institutions
located in Hong Kong and Mainland China,
which management believes are of high
credit quality. The Group has a policy to
limit the amount of credit exposure to any
financial institution and management does
not expect any losses arising from non-
performance by these counterparties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 55 AR B

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BXEREREE)
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

31 BMBEBRRAEZEGE)
(b) EEREE(E)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure expected credit
losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for trade receivable.

To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables has been grouped based
on the ageing and shared credit risk
characteristics.

The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of sales over a period of
36 months before 29 February 2024 and
28 February 2023, and the corresponding
historical credit losses experienced within
this period. The historical loss rates are
adjusted to reflect current and forward
looking information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers
on an individual or collective basis, to settle
the receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HXEKREREGE)
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BIEBREEE)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

As at 29 February 2024, the Group
had identified that certain debtors had
insolvency issues. In this respect, the
Group made provision of loss allowance for
full for RMB402,000 (2023: RMB4,971,000).
Regarding the remaining balances, the
Group determined the loss allowance on
a collective basis as at 29 February 2024
and 28 February 2023 as follows for trade

(b) FEEE (&)
TREEREBEE)
R-ZZ-_WFE-_A-tNAH -
rEEEBESE TEBA
FREETHERRE - 5t
BR AEBEFR2E
B 1B B E A R %402,000
T(CEBE-Z=ZF: AR
4,971,0007T) ° ¥ 7 F &
BE O R_FT_MF_A
“+thBERZZE==%=H

receivables: ZTNB AEBEHEFHE
WEREZATAREE S
18
Over
1-30days 31-60 days  61-90 days 90 days
Current  pastdue  pastdue  pastdue  pastdue Total
% ik ik ik
b 1230k 31Z60XK  61290%k  90KML it
R-F-QmE RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000
Asat29 February 204  ZA=tAR AE®TFR ARMTR AR%TR AR%Tn AR%TR AR%T:n
Expected loss rate BEERX 1.6% 27% 4,6% 18.2% 37.0%
Carrying amount BAE
(net of specfic provision) (RETERER)
— trade receivables -E5RNERE 21,754 8,546 109 88 127 30,624
Loss allowance EBEE 355 232 5 16 41 655
QOver
1-30days  31-60days  61-90 days 90 days
Current past due past due past due past due Total
ok ok il il
A% 1E0K  3EOK  61ENX RN Eh
A 2 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
As at 28 February 2023 gl 1= ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Expected loss rate EHER% 1.5% 2.4% 4.5% 16.9% 36.2%
Carrying amount REE
(net of specffic provision) (RET&ER)
~ trade receivables -BARNEA 34,302 3,665 201 474 69 3,711
Loss allowance B 501 88 9 80 2% 703
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 55 AR B

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BKEREEEGE)
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 314 M¥EMEZE(E)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EEREE(E)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) TREEREE)

The loss allowances for trade receivables
as at 29 February 2024 and 28 February
2023 reconcile to the opening loss

RZE-_WNFE_A=-+AhH
;r=FE-=F"A=-+N\H"
E 5 W BRTA B 18 B s

allowances as follows:

FERBEE RO

2024 2023
TEImE T =F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
iz AR®Trx AR%TTT
At beginning of year F 1] 5,674 6,750
Write-off as uncollectable  #fi 8“1~ 7] U 2] & E8 (4,232) (1,080)
Write-back on recovery of U [8] 52 B # 4]
bad debts 7 (344) (350)
(Decrease)/increase in loss FRELZ A B FH K
allowance recognised in A R A B 18 B
the consolidated income & (Rl 4*) /4 N
statement during the
year 7 (41) 354
At end of year Fx 1,057 5,674

For other financial assets at amortised
cost, management considers that its credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition with reference to the
counterparties’ historical default rate and
current financial position. The impairment
provision is determined based on the
12-month expected credit losses which is
immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes
maintaining sufficient cash, which is
mainly generated from the operating cash
flow, and the availability of funding from
adequate amounts of committed credit
facilities. The Group aims to maintain
flexibility in funding by keeping committed
credit lines available.

The table below analyses the Group’s
financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period
at the consolidated balance sheet date to
the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due
within 12 months equal their carrying
balances as the impact of discounting is
not significant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

foi A B 5 R M

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

3 BXEREREE)

31 MBEREE(E)
(c) nEBEZEE(E)

Less than Between Between Over
Tyear 1and2years 2and 5 years 5years Total
-ENR -FEMECE MERDEZH RBIE it
R-E-mE RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
As at 29 February 2024 ~ ZA=tAR AE®TR  ARETR AE¥TR  ARETR AE¥TR
Trade and other payables BHEAEER
EHENER 60,328 - - - 60,328
Lease liabilities HERE 14,164 5,959 1,140 - 21,263
74,492 5,959 1,140 - 81,591
Less than Between Between QOver
Tyear  land2years  2and5years 5 years Total
—ENR -EEMECE MEERECE BETE it
A 2 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
As at 28 February 2023 “A-tIE AE®TR  ARETT ARBTR  ARETT ARETR
Trade and other payables BHEAEER
EfEMEE 57,855 - - - 57,855
Lease liabilties HERk 23,841 15,208 371 - 30,415
81,696 15,203 37 - 97,210

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

o 75 B By o ()

3.2 EXEkERE(E)

The Group manages the capital structure and
make adjustments to it in the light of changes
in economic conditions. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payments to shareholders,
obtain new bank borrowings, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided
by total equity. Net debt is calculated as total
borrowings (including “current and non-current
borrowings” as shown in the consolidated
balance sheet) less cash and bank balance.

The gearing ratios as at 29 February 2024 and
28 February 2023 were as follows:

AEEEREEAERE LRE
RERREPIFHAE - B
FAHAEENGRE NEBEHL
EHBRTHRROKRESHE
MEMB|ITENR BERXRE
PR BEITHAR -

HEANEMARMEE B K
SBENEELRIEREEZEER
B EE - EE L RIRFEKR
NS ERTE - FEBRE
RER(BERGEEEABRM
RZnBRIIFERBDEF)RRE
FARITHREBRATE -

RZE-_WMF-_A=-+hBEk=
T -=F-_A=-+N\H EELL
E S

2024 2023

—EBEIEE —T_=F%

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETT

Total borrowing B - —

Less: Cash and bank balance B Re RRITEH

(Note 22) (K at22) (364,655) (371,606)
Net cash FIR e (364,655) (871,6006)
Total equity XM 2 618,111 663,636
Gearing ratio BE X N/A N/A
A ~iE A

As at 29 February 2024, the Group maintained
a net cash position of approximately
RMB364,655,000 (2023: RMB371,606,000).

RZE-_MWMFE_A=_+ 18"
AEBERFRFHSHOARE
364,655,000 (ZE = =F : A
R #371,606,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

foi A B 5 R M

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation

This note explains the judgements and
estimates made in determining the fair values
of the non-financial assets that are recognised
and measured at fair value in the consolidated
balance sheet. To provide an indication about
the reliability of the inputs used in determining
fair value, the Group has classified its non
financial assets and liabilities into the three
levels as following:

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
(Level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (Level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not

based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

Details of the fair value estimation for the
investment properties are disclosed in Note 15.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below.

(a) Useful lives of property, plant and

equipment

The Group’s management determines the
estimated useful lives of its property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. Management will increase the
depreciation charge where useful lives are less
than previously estimated, and will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 55 AR B

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The impairment loss for non-financial assets,
comprising property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets, is recognised as the
amount by which the carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount in accordance with
the accounting policy stated in Notes 2.2.3,
2.2.4 and 2.2.8. The recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to
sell and value in use, which are based on the
best information available to reflect the amount
obtainable at each consolidated balance sheet
date, from the disposal of the asset in an arm’s
length transaction between knowledgeable,
willing parties, after deducting the costs to
disposal.

Taxes

The Group is subject to various taxes in Hong
Kong, Macau and Mainland China. Significant
judgement is required in determining the
provision for these taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences or tax losses can
be utilised. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such differences will
impact the recognition of deferred tax assets
and taxation in the periods in which such
estimate is changed.
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4

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(d) Net realisable value of inventories

(e)

Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs of completion
and selling expenses. These estimates are
based on current market conditions and the
historical experience of manufacturing and
selling products of similar nature. Management
reassesses the estimation at each balance sheet
date.

Estimation of fair value of investment
properties

The Group assesses the fair value of its
investment properties based on valuations
determined by independent professional
qualified valuers. The fair value of the
Group’s investment properties are based on
the market price of similar properties and
locations. In relying on the valuation reports
of the independent professional valuer, the
management has exercised its judgment and
is satisfied that the method of valuation is
reflective of the market conditions prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Any changes
in the market conditions will affect the fair value
of the investment properties of the Group.
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206

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the executive
directors that are used to make strategic decisions.

The executive directors review the Group’s financial
information mainly from a retail perspective and
assess the performance of operations on a
geographical basis (Mainland China, Hong Kong and
Macau respectively). The reportable segments are
classified in a manner consistent with the information
reviewed by the executive directors.

The executive directors assess the performance
of the operating segments based on a measure
of reportable segment result. This measurement
basis excludes other income (excluding government
incentives), net exchange losses, finance income, net
and unallocated items.

Segment assets mainly exclude deferred income
tax assets and other assets that are managed on a
central basis.

Segment liabilities mainly exclude current income tax
liabilities, deferred income tax liabilities and other
liabilities that are managed on a central basis.

In respect of geographical segment reporting, sales
are based on the country in which the customer is
located, and total assets and capital expenditure are
based on the country where the assets are located.

T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A o A 2 A Mk
5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WHERKRSEER(E)
(CONTINUED)
()  The segment information provided to the () MPATESFREEAHZ_-Z

“ME-_AZtTABRLEFEEZA
ERPBZOBERWT

executive directors for the reportable segments
for the year ended 29 February 2024 is as

follows:
Mainland Hong Kong
China and Macau Total
FEARE BBRRM FR ]
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR%®Tn AR¥FTx

Revenue from external INREF 2 W=

customers 394,164 7,264 401,428
Reportable segment loss A 2% 5 & 18 ___(26,960)  (3,588) (30,548)
Other income (excluding  H b W A (T 1F

government incentives) I i 4 Bh) 927
Net exchange losses e EE - F8 (2,486)
Finance income, net WA - FRE 10,666
Unallocated items Ko EIEB (18)
Loss before income tax  BRFT 15 B & 18 (21,459)
Income tax expense Fr 43 B 32 (2,867)
Loss for the year FAEE (24,326)
Depreciation e 26,441 959 27,400
Impairment losses on M HEREE

property, plant and VRIEN SR

equipment 3,010 - 3,010
Impairment losses on FRAEEERE

right-of-use assets &5 18 2,291 - 2,291
Additions to non-current FERBEERE

assets (other than (EEFSHIE

deferred income tax BEKRIN

assets) 27,761 99 27,860
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BR A BB R B
5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 W RoBEER(E)

(CONTINUED)

(i)  The segment information provided to the iy MPATESFREEAHZ_-Z
executive directors for the reportable segments =% -_AZ+NHLEFEZT
for the year ended 28 February 2023 is as EWMAP MO EERDMAT:
follows:

Mainland Hong Kong
China and Macau Total
RERE BB KEM e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT AR®FTIT AR®TTT
Revenue from external INABE P 2 W
customers 410,426 2,801 413,227
Reportable segment loss A 2R D FEE B (28,585  (28,717) (52,252)
Net exchange losses MEH B4 - F 58 (8,199)
Finance income, net BB A FHE 7,065
Unallocated items Ko EIEB 229
Loss before income tax B AT13 74 A &5 18 (53,157)
Income tax credit Fr 43 B 0 BR 1,890
Loss for the year FHNEE (51,267)
Depreciation e 30,287 6,527 36,814
Impairment losses on M HEREE
property, plant and BEEBE
equipment 3,115 2,954 6,069
Impairment losses on EHAEEERE
right-of-use assets B8 583 10,972 11,555
Additions to non-current ERBEERE
assets (other than (EREFTF 1A
deferred income tax BERIN
assets) 15,772 19,056 34,828

For the years ended 29 February 2024 and
28 February 2023, revenues from external
customers are mainly derived from the Group’s

own brands, le saunda, le saunda MEN, LINEA

ROSA, PITTI DONNA and charm & easy.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A B RS R F RE
5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WakoBEER (HE)

(CONTINUED)

(i) An analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities iy AZE-_WFE-_A-+NB" K
as at 29 February 2024 by reportable segment EERARHmoBE D B E
is set out below: FBESMOT:

Mainland Hong Kong
China and Macau Total
FEKE FTERERMN g
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR¥BTrx AR¥Tr
Segment assets NEEE _ 430,232 262,903 693,135
Deferred income tax BEEMSHEEE
assets 29,490
Unallocated assets Ko EE 21,457
Total assets per MEEEBRERZ
consolidated balance BEET
sheet _ 744,082
Segment liabilities AR ___ 100,893 5,331 106,224
Current income tax EHMEHRAas
liabilities 1,676
Deferred income tax EEATSHEARE
liabilities 18,016
Unallocated liabilities 2l =R 55
Total liabilities per HeEEEBRERZ
consolidated balance BE®EE
sheet 125,971
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

foi A B 5 R M

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
(iv) An analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities
as at 28 February 2023 by reportable segment
is set out below:

5 Wk BEHGE)

vy RZZEZ=F=-_A=+/\H ' =&
EEZRAERIBE S CEE

FBESMOT:
Mainland Hong Kong
China and Macau Total
AR BEKER 1858

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTIT AREBETIT ARETRT

Segment assets DHEEE

Deferred income tax RIEFTISHMIBEE E
assets

Unallocated assets Ko EE

Total assets per MEEEBRERZ
consolidated balance BERR
sheet

Segment liabilities pol - B=Ki-

Current income tax EHMEHRAas
liabilities

Deferred income tax RIEFMSHMIBEEE
liabilities

Unallocated liabilities KOBREE

Total liabilities per IREEEBERXRZ
consolidated balance BE®EE

sheet
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442,228 306,752 748,980

32,390
21,080

802,450

96,466 22,544 119,010

1,448

18,312
44

138,814



5

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(v)

(vi)

The analysis of revenue from external customers

5

foi 1 B 5 R M
s &5 |E R (E)

v) A EYEE S ZKEINR

by geographical segments is as follows: EBRWIE 2T
2024 2023
—EomMFE —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
Revenue U & ARBFTFT AR®EFIT
Mainland China o B K B 394,164 410,426
Hong Kong BB 6,870 2,801
Macau 8PS 394 —
Total I 401,428 413,227

For the years ended 29 February 2024 and 28
February 2023, there was no transaction with a
single external customer that amounted to 10%

or more of the Group’s revenue.

An analysis of the non-current assets (other
than deferred income tax assets) of the Group
by geographical segments is as follows:

BHE_ZT-_NF_A=-+NBXK
—EC=F-AFN\BHILEFE -
WHREE - IIREFPETERE
RN EE W ZF10% 8 A F B
% °

(vi) AEEZAIESEE D2k
MBEECRELERESHEAEER

SN Z AT

2024 2023

—E-_ME —T-=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

Non-current assets ERBEE ARBFTFRT AR®EFIT
Mainland China BN 173 41,591 44,057
Hong Kong BB 766 6,828
Macau JE P 73,678 74,836
Total #Et 116,035 125,721
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fr o B ik B
6 OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS/ 6 HWARHMYKE (EHE):
(LOSSES), NET o]
2024 2023
—EDNE —ET-=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBFTT
Other income H g A
Government incentives (Note (a)) BT #68 Bh (#1 22 (a) 1,358 5,451
Gross rental income from an wEYHE 2B BRA
investment property 927 —
2,285 5,451
Other gains/(losses), net Hiwz, (F58) FHE
Net exchange losses (Note (b)) ME R &R FREAZb) (2,486) (8,199)
Gains on early termination of RAKRIEHEESG O K S
leases (Note 17) (H1az17) 7,472 356
Compensation for early RAIKIEHEESENHE
termination of leases (1,768) —
3,218 (7,843)

Notes:

Hrat

(@) Government incentives mainly represent grants received from (@)
the PRC and Hong Kong governments in subsidising the
Group’s general operations and employee salaries. There are
no unfulfiled conditions or other contingencies attaching to

these grants.

(b) Net exchange losses arose from the settlement of transactions (b)
denominated in foreign currencies and from the translation at
year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities,
including inter-company balances, denominated in foreign

currencies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales, (write-back of

foi 1 B 5 R M

7 REEIEZRAX

AABHERA - BHERKKRECKE

impairment)/impairment losses on trade receivables, O REEE  FEHE HENLD
net, selling and distribution expenses, and general ERHYN—BETBRBAX 2o
and administrative expenses are analysed as follows: T
2024 2023
—EDME 2 —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETR
Auditors’ remuneration % B 6 BN &
— Audit services — Z B R 1,413 1,610
— Non-audit services — B RS 38 97
Depreciation of property, plant and 4% « #BE LR EITE
equipment (Note 16) (K1at16) 7,872 13,191
Depreciation of right-of-use assets A& ET & (K :717)
(Note 17) 19,528 23,623
Loss on write off/disposal of plant 44/ HE# 82 & R & E 18
and equipment (Note 23(b)) (Kt 5223(b)) 3,261 1,607
Cost of sales 5 & B AR 150,629 143,997
Expenses relating to short-term FHCHEERNEHEE
leases and variable lease NRBZ (B E17)
payments (Note 17) 71,532 72,229
Freight charges BB 4,963 4,877
Postage and express charges BIERREE 1,356 1,711
Advertising and promotional BEREEMAX
expenses 16,403 16,286
Employee benefit expenses EERIMAX (BIEESFHE)
(including directors’” emoluments) (K1 3£9)
(Note 9) 121,694 135,893
Impairment losses/(write-back of FEREEE CRERED)
impairment) on inventories, net FRE 1,281 (3,839)
(Write-back of impairment)/ BHRKEBECRERD),
impairment losses on trade WEEE TR
receivables, net (385) 4
Impairment losses on property, plant %73 - # 28 & R & B E E B
and equipment (Note 16) (#1z£16) 3,010 6,069
Impairment losses on right-of-use i FA#E & & Bl (B & 18
assets (Note 17) (Hfat17) 2,291 11,555
Direct operating expenses arising RIS WAZEEME
from an investment property that FIEEZERLERX
generated rental income (K1t 15(a)
(Note 15(a)) 279 —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

foi A B 5 R M

8 FINANCE INCOME, NET

8 MBWA  FHE

2024 2023

—E-NE —ZE-=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR ARETR

Interest income on bank deposits RITFERZF B U A 11,756 8,641

Interest expense on lease liabilites FfE&E 27 8% H

(Note 17) (Btat17) (1,090) (1,491)
Interest expense on short-term bank %2 HAR 1T E K 2 Fl B & H

loan — (85)

10,666 7,065

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 9

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

EERARAX(BREREEHE)

2024 2023

—E-ME -—T-=4%

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR ARET

Wages and salaries TERF® 96,405 107,316

Staff welfare and other benefits B T 18 M & Hfth £ AL 6,773 7,596
Pension costs — defined BREKA — REHEK

contribution plans (Note) B 18,516 20,981

121,694 135,893
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (CONTINUED)
Note:

Employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong participate
in a mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF Scheme”) which is a
defined contribution scheme. The assets of the MPF scheme are held
separately from those of the Group under independently administered
funds. Contributions to the schemes by the employers and employees
are calculated as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries.

The Employment and Retirement Schemes Legislation (Offsetting
Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance 2022 was enacted in June
2022 which abolishes the use of the accrued benefits of employers’
mandatory contributions under the MPFO to offset severance
payment and long service payment (the “Offsetting Arrangement”).
The abolishment of the Offsetting Arrangement would increase the
state benefits that affect the long service payment payable by the
employer. In accordance with the requirement of HKAS19 Employee
benefits, management has re-measured the provision for long service
payment to reflect the financial impact of the abolishment of the
Offsetting Arrangement. The impact was assessed not material for
the year ended 29 February 2024.

Employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are required
to participate in defined contribution retirement schemes administered
and operated by municipal governments. The Group’s subsidiaries in
Mainland China contribute funds to the retirement schemes to fund
the retirement benefits of the employees which are calculated on
certain percentages of the average employee salaries as agreed by
the municipal governments. Such retirement schemes are responsible
for the entire post-retirement benefit obligations payable to the retired
employees. The Group has no further obligations for the actual
payment of post-retirement benefits beyond the contributions.

Retirement benefit scheme costs amounting to RMB18,516,000 (2023:
RMB20,981,000) were paid by the Group during the year. No amount
of forfeited contributions were refunded and credited in the employee
benefit expenses during the year (2023: RMB171,000).

9

i B i

EERAMNMAXX(BRESM=)(EA)

g

AEEREENNBARMESE2BRAEMK
sHal - MRt AEest B (TRESHE] - B
BMefdNEENEAREEMEEDRERE
&Ehﬁigé*iiﬁ’]ﬁ/ﬂ%ﬁ BEREBER
BIEDFT B - DRIAME B EARFH SFH

<<_§_ ZERMBEORIRE ENAG R R PH(E
RGN _F - —F X AmB - BUBE AR
\i{ E2ETRENEHERRBEE DK
HEMBRRERBSORHE(HPRHD - B
HERREREMR Y EEIRNRARE S
MEF - RiIEESFHERFIREERMND
HRE EEEEE$%EE+§EEWH%§%¥% " A
RRBGEH AL NN BZE -BE_F N
F_AZThALEE" M%’iﬁ%&uﬂﬁﬁ'j?éﬁ

AEFBRPERENHBEARRERERAZESAT
BEEREREENAERKERSFE - A&
B 5 B R BE Y B B 2 B ) AR PR & At B

NmEERERAKEN  BEHKERTERA
EENTHEEFENETAILIE - ZF
BRASHEIBENTRAEBNZEERREREHN -

AEEBHEZ  BEAERRINRKER
M H)E A E A -

FR-AEEINOEREFFERTBEAR
#18,516,0007T (= T = = F : A R %20,981,000
J0) o ERENZNAETR  SFABBRFRAIA(Z
T =% : AR®171,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

foi A B 5 R M

10 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s

emoluments

10 EECEMNEES

Pursuant to section 383 of the Companies

Ordinance (Cap. 622, the Laws of Hong Kong),

Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefit of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G)
and the Listing Rules, the emoluments paid or
payable to every director and the chief executive

for the year are as follows:

(a)

EERBETHRAEMS

BRI 2 R E BICE 7 0% B 55622
E)F383ME(A A (B EE E A
@B R R OIN(E6226E) &
MHRE BUEBEEESTHR
ABRFERE UKk E R H B
UNINE

2024
—EC-mE
Salaries,  Employer’s

bonus, other contribution
allowances to retirement

and benefits benefit
Fees in kind scheme Total
e R
Ht2ERk EXE#Ne
we BENF & e o
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Name #E AR¥TR AR%Tr AR%¥Tn AR%Tx
Executive directors BWHES
Ms. Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky BEFTL - 2,541 17 2,558
Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter FXBEE - 178 9 187
Ms. Liu Tsz Yan BERTT - 383 12 395
Non-executive director FHTES
Mr. James Ngai fRmsrsE 164 - - 164
Independent non-executive BUHTES
directors
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon %S ik 164 - - 164
Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George REELE 164 - - 164
Mr. Hui Chi Kwan FRAKE 164 - - 164
Ms. Chan Kit Yin REHETL
(appointed with effect from (BE=ZFE==#)1/
28 August 2023) T/ AREZF) 82 - - 82
738 3,102 38 3,878
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

A o A 2 A Mk

10 ES2EARER (R

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s (a) EEREEITHRAEME (H)
emoluments (Continued)
2023
“E-=F
Salaries, Employer’s
bonus, other contribution
allowances  to retirement
and benefits benefit
Fees in kind scheme Total
He 4
EEER  EIXRKE
we EWFR it &l @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Name #E ANRETT ARETR  ARETT AR%TR
Executive directors HTES
Ms. Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky BRI - 2,380 16 2,396
Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter FkBEE - 182 9 191
Ms. Liu Tsz Yan BIERRT
(appointed with effect from (B-E-—#mf
25 April 2022) ZTHAEEER) - 378 11 389
Ms. Liao Jian Yu BRELt
(resigned with effect from (F-F-—#
1 May 2022) AH-HEFHL) - 228 - 228
Non-executive director FYTES
Mr. James Ngai RREE L4 182 -~ - 182
Independent non-executive BUFYTES
directors
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon MR EE 182 - - 182
Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George PRERE 182 - - 182
Mr. Hui Chi Kwan FRARE 182 — - 182
728 3,168 36 3,932

No other emoluments paid or receivable
in respect of director’'s other services in
connection with the management of the affairs
of the company or its subsidiary undertaking
during the year ended 29 February 2024 (2023:

Nil).

BHE_ZTZ-_NWFEF_A=-+NABI
FE IEBEEHEELRRT
SHEWBrEEBEMRH ZE
RGBS EZSSIER S (=
T=F )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 55 AR B

10 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

Directors’ retirement benefits

During the year ended 29 February 2024, no
retirement benefits were paid to or receivable
by the directors in respect of their services as
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries
or other services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company or its
subsidiary undertaking through defined benefit
pension plans (2023: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

During the year ended 29 February 2024, no
payments or benefits in respect of termination of
directors’ services were paid or payable, directly
or indirectly, to the directors (2023: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties
for making available directors’ services

During the year ended 29 February 2024, no
consideration was provided to or receivable
by third parties for making available directors’
services (2023: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

During the year ended 29 February 2024, there
are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in
favour of the directors, their controlled body
corporates and connected entities (2023: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Company’s business
to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the
year (2023: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BR A BB R B
11 SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS 11 SREBAEWE

Five highest paid individuals TEESHAL
The directors’ emoluments presented above EXE2NMNEEHEeERREAEE
include the emoluments of 1 (2023: 1) highest paid —Z(ZEZ=F:—Z)RaH AT
individuals in the Group. The emoluments of the NS - B THNE(ZE - =4
remaining 4 (2023: 4) highest paid individual during mE)EeHFALTRBEE_ZE_NF
the year ended 29 February 2024 was: ZAZtTABIEFEZHFMNAE:

2024 2023

“EDmE —E-=4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFTFRT AREFIT

Salaries, bonus, other allowances Frd o JEAL - HmERy

and benefits in kind NEMH = 2,886 2,712
Employer’s contributions to EXRIKSFEIHER
retirement benefits scheme 138 105
3,024 2,817
Emolument band Number of individuals
¥ B &8 AE
2024 2023

—E_NFE —T-=F

RMB500,001-RMB1,000,000 A R¥500,0017T 2

A R #1,000,0007T 3 3
RMB1,000,001-RMB1,500,000 A K #1,000,0017T &

A K #1,500,0007T 1 1
None of the directors or the five highest paid FA FESIRhEEaTATY
individuals waived or agreed to waive any BEREXRERETAHES(ZF
emoluments during the year (2023: Nil). —ZE )
The senior management’s emoluments fell within the RRERBABZEFMERENT

following bands:

Emolument band Number of individuals
i &5 B AE
2024 2023
—E_NE —T-=F
Nil-RMB500,000 AREOTE
A R #500,0007T 1 3
RMB500,001-RMB1,000,000 A R#500,0017. &
A E#1,000,0007T 3 1
RMB1,000,001-RMB1,500,000 A R #1,000,0017c &
A R #1,500,0007T 1 1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A o A 2 AR Mk
12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)

The amount of income tax charged/(credited) to the
consolidated income statement represents:

FREBH (B
REFAEBARTHA (B ZHME
MER S

2024 2023
—EBE-NME —ETE-_=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARS®TR AREBFTT
Current income tax EHMEM

— Hong Kong profits tax —BBNEB — —
— Macau complementary tax —BFIFEHREM - —

— People’s Republic of China (“the — /AR EXME ([FEH])
PRC”) corporate income tax EEMBH 576 9,523
Deferred income taxation (Note 19) & iE AT 13 % 38 (H1 74 19) 2,291 (11,413)
2,867 (1,890)

The PRC corporate income tax is provided for on the
profits of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC at 25%
(2023: 25%).

The applicable rate of Hong Kong profits tax is
16.5% (2023: 16.5%). No provision for Hong Kong
profits tax has been made in the consolidated
financial statements as the Group does not have any
assessable profit arising in Hong Kong during each
of the two years ended 29 February 2024 and 28
February 2023.

The applicable rate of Macau complementary
tax is 12% (2023: 12%). No provision for Macau
complementary tax has been made in the
consolidated financial statement as the Group does
not have any assessable profit arising in Macau
during each of the two years ended 29 February
2024 and 28 February 2023.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)
(CONTINUED)
The taxation on the Group’s loss before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise

12 BB /R (&)

N6 B BR BT 1S B A B 1B 2 B TR B R
RERMEABEZE®m T B ERE

using the applicable tax rate as follows: PO
2024 2023
—EDWE —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBFTT
Loss before income tax B FT1S Bl AT 1B (21,459) (58,157)
Tax calculated at domestic tax EEEHERFEBD
rates applicable to profits in the iR EFTE R IB
respective geographical areas (4,067) (7,665)
Income not subject to tax 78 ax 10 A (1,930) (1,469)
Expenses not deductible for tax Y s s
purposes 1,276 2,612
Tax losses for which no deferred AERELEFMEMREBEEZ
income tax asset was recognised I8 &5 18 8,058 9,401
Utilisation of previously unrecognised 1% A %t Bl ok 7 78 < % 18 & 18
tax losses — (2,909)
Withholding tax on distributable N5k g N 2 TR
earnings in the PRC (470) (1,860)
Income tax expense/(credit) B E (K 2,867 (1,890)

There was no tax charge relating to components of
other comprehensive income for the year ended 29
February 2024 (2023: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

foi A B 5 R M

13 LOSSES PER SHARE
Basic

Basic losses per share is calculated by dividing the
loss attributable to owners of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue

during the year.

13 BEREE

X
BREAERIBARBEDFTA
ABEBEEAFRAEETERK
ZINEFHEGETE -

2024 2023
“EDmE —E-=4F

Loss attributable to owners of the

Company (RMB’000)

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue ('000)

Basic losses per share (RMB cents)

Diluted

For the years ended 29 February 2024 and 28
February 2023, the diluted losses per share was the
same as basic losses per share as there was no
dilutive potential ordinary share outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A B RS R F RE

14 DIVIDENDS 14 KE
2024 2023
—E-UE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTT ARETT

No interim dividend moHIfR B

(2023: Nil) (ZBE-—=%F:8&) - —

Interim special, paid, of HK5.0 cents & 1t /1 B %5 Bl i B
T AR & im AR50 (1L

(2023: Nil) per ordinary share

(ZEZ=F:8\)
No final dividend, proposed BERBEREARE
(2023: Nil) (ZTE=Z=F:8\&)

Final special, proposed, of HK5.0 cents 32 7% & 2745 Bl i B
M E @ AR50 1L
—E=FE)

(2023: Nil) per ordinary share

At the Board of Directors’ meeting held on 30
October 2023, the Board of Directors has resolved
to pay an interim special dividend of HK5.0
cents per ordinary share, totaling approximately
RMB31,748,000.

At the Board of Directors’ meeting held on 27 May
2024, the Board of Directors proposed a final special
dividend of HK5.0 cents per ordinary share totalling
approximately RMB32,173,000. The proposed
dividend is not reflected as dividend payable in
the consolidated financial statements, but will be
reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings of
the Company for the year ending 28 February 2025.

31,748 —

32,173 —

63,921 —

N_E-_=—F+A=1+HETZESE
2R EFEEBEAXINFH
15 Bl A% B3 AR i@ IR5.08 1L - & 5T
#9 N R #31,748,0007T °

RZE_MNMERA-Z++tHEBTZE
Egr EFEgRERRERAER
B BRI BARS.0EI - BFTHA
K 32,173,000 T ° #Z # & K B W
ERENKRERBELSE B @mE
FoEKERBRAARABEZE
“HEHF_AZHNHIEFEZRE R
o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

foi A B 5 R M

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15 REYE
2024 2023
—E-NFE T =F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®FTT
At beginning of year Nk 73,200 66,999
Currency translation difference PE X =5 2,838 6,201
At end of year RE R 76,038 73,200

Investment properties are stated at fair value which
are referenced to the valuations that rely on the open
market value basis at the consolidated balance sheet
dates prepared by an independent professional
valuer, Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory Limited.
The fair value changes are included in “other gains/
(losses), net” in the consolidated income statement.

(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated

BREMFRE R FEINER 2 FET
2E BB XRMGEMR SRKT G
HHERRAANGEEZEZEARER
MM EEEEMELENGEE: 2
FEZFCAAGABEERNEM
W, (EE)  FE] -

(a) REAEERBRAZRENE

income statement for investment S8
properties
2024 2023
—EomME —ZT-=4%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARS®TR AREBFTT
Rental income (Note 6) MW A K iE6) 927 —
Direct operating expenses arising HERE WA 2R EWE
from an investment property FIEAZBEERERX
that generated rental income (H1a£7)
(Note 7) (279) -
648 —

As at 29 February 2024, the Group had no
unprovided contractual obligations for future
repairs and maintenance (2023: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated
income statement for investment
properties (Continued)

The Group’s investment properties are held
within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties
through lease and sale. The Group has
measured the deferred income tax relating to
the temporary differences of these investment
properties using the tax rates and the tax bases
that are consistent with the expected manner of
recovery of these investment properties (Note
19).

Valuation basis

The Group obtains independent valuations for
its investment properties at least annually. In
the current year, the valuations are performed
by Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory Limited, an
independent professional qualified valuers. At
the end of each reporting period, the directors
update their assessment of the fair value of each
property, taking into account the most recent
independent valuations. The directors determine
the value of the properties within a range of
reasonable fair value estimates.

At each financial year end the Group:

o Verifies all major inputs to the independent
valuation report;

o Assesses property valuations movements
when compared to the prior year valuation
report; and

o Holds discussions with the independent
valuer.

foi 1 B 5 R M

15 REYWEGH)

(a)

(b)

REeBRERBAZRENE
= # (&)

AEBENREVENFHEEN
EEBBEENNEENTTAHE
REEMEPABOOEE
s ARBERAREKEYED
EHME T A — B AR R A
HE HEGEREVENER
MEEBBNELEMESHET
& (fFE19)

fh{EE%E

AEEZRINREBFREEREY
EZ2BIUE -RNAFE - B
3 F ¥ 4 (B B i 8 IR BR AT (4 R
AERABIETHRE RE—
EHREMR EFEEERKAI
BYNE EFREBEDED
NFEEFGHE - EERAER
FEAERERREMEEE -

REBEMRFEE ~EE:

s RYEMBIUMERSEZM
BEXEMBHAE:

« EUBLEEMEERS
B GRS HERD
R

o HUFVAIEENEITH® ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

foi A B 5 R M

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
(b) Valuation basis (Continued)

The best evidence of fair value is current prices
in an active market for similar investment
properties. Where such information is not
available the directors consider information from
a variety of sources including:

() current prices in an active market for
properties of different nature or recent
prices of similar properties in less
active markets, adjusted to reflect those
differences;

(i) discounted cash flow projections based on
reliable estimates of future cash flows; or

(i) capitalised income projections based upon
a property’s estimated net market income,
and a capitalisation rate derived from an

15 REWEE)

(b) fEEE%E(HE)
RNFPENRKEFBRARIREED
LROKRENENHRE - BEF
ERENBUHEEHNSEES
BRREE:

() TREMEDERERTS
BWIRE LY ERERA
EETMISHEE - AR X
R EZER:

iy WEBEAEGHTRREER
ZHEERNRBE SR &

(i) REWELOEAEF FHHK
AN BREBEREBEA EXR
L) R Ty i 5 & B\ D

analysis of market evidence. e
Fair value hierarchy nFEEL
Fair value measurements
at 29 February 2024 using
R-ZB-MFEZA=tANA
ERATHATESE
Quoted prices
in active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
HEEEz ERHMTEREE EEFTERE
EERTSRE PN BAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(5—F8) (=) (5=F8)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Description i ARET R AR® TR ARBTR
Recurring fair value KEUERNTFEFE
measurements
Investment properties: REME:
The PRC o - - 2,360
Macau BT - - 73,678
- - 76,038
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
(b) Valuation basis (Continued)

15 REYWXE(E)
(b) HEEE(E)
RNFEZER(E)

Fair value measurements

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

at 28 February 2023 using
R-ZE-_=f_A-1N\H

Quoted prices

ERTIATEFE

in active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
EREE: EZAMABE BEAUEE
BRI RE BWAE BAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(F—FE) (F=B) (5=E)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
Description g ARETT ARETT ARETT
Recurring fair value KEUHATETE
measurements
Investment properties: REME:
The PRC i - - 2,360
Macau R - — 70,840
— - 73,200

RFETAEFEHAEE T EHE
WAEE=ZE)

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers AEEMNBRERESHELERRD
into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy FESHE D RE A LIERN
levels as of the date of the event or change in HoOMENR TR EEEY
circumstances that caused the transfer.

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3)

There were no transfers among levels 1, 2 and HE_Z-_NF-_A=-+thHK

3 during the years ended 29 February 2024 and “EC=F-AHN\BIEFE -

28 February 2023. BREE—B F_EBREZES
Rz EHER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 55 AR B

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 15 REYWE(E)
(b) Valuation basis (Continued) (b) 1B E % (&)
Fair value measurements using significant REEFTFEREHFEETAJEHEE
unobservable inputs (level 3) (Continued) B AE(FE=FE)E)
The PRC Macau Total
H b B @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AR®TR ARE TR

At 1 March 2022 R-ZE--F=A—H 2,360 64,639 66,999
Currency translation difference [ X = & - 6,201 6,201
At 28 February 2023 i ——
~“A=-1+NH 2,360 70,840 73,200

Total change in fair value FRBBABELFAL

for the year included in RERRIAFER

the consolidated income THEZE REAE

statement for assets held at Rk (BR):

the end of the year, under F

“other gains/(losses), net” - — _

Change in fair value for the year FRBZFBEE L AL
included in the consolidated ~ AEHEEXZAFER
income statement for assets ~ FEZH
held at the end of the year — - -

At 1 March 2023 RZEZ=F=F—H 2,360 70,840 73,200
Currency translation difference [ ¥ Z %8 - 2,838 2,838
At 29 February 2024 e S tf:
—AZthH 2,360 73,678 76,038

Total change in fair value FREBBEVHAL

for the year included in FERARIAFER

the consolidated income TEEZE RBE

statement for assets held at Rk (BR):

the end of the year, under ]

“other gains/(losses), net” - = -

Change in fair value for the year ERZBEE L A&
included in the consolidated ~ ABEHERZAFELD
income statement for assets ~ FEZ
held at the end of the year - - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Valuation basis (Continued) (b)
Valuation techniques

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3)

The valuations were determined by using the
direct comparison approach. Sales prices of
comparable properties in close proximity are
adjusted for differences in key attributes such as
property size. The most significant input into this
valuation approach is price per square meter.

foi 1 B 5 R M

15 REYWEGH)

HEREE(RE)

18 18 2
NFEFEEAERETAER
wWAEE=E)
ERGBENERERLBAE
E o fE AP AT b 8 Y A] B W)
XZEBERBMWEXRNNEE
ZRRZEZFLFE - M
BRNERR/REEZRARER
F¥TKER -

Fair value at Range of Relationship of
29 February 2024  Valuation Unobservable unobservable unobservable
Description (RMB’000) technique inputs input inputs to fair value
R-ZB-R¥E
ZAZthH
WAYE BEZTEN BETIN BEFIMNAAER
ER (AR®Tr) fELE WAR AAENEE RYENBE
Investment property
— retail shop in the 2,360 Direct comparison Comparable’s unit ~ RMB16,523 per The higher the unit
PRC approach selling/asking square meter selling price, the
price higher the fair
value
REMZE
—fuRREZEE ERLBE AHEENEN  BYAKARE  EUEERS
EE&/HE 16,5237 AEERR
Investment property
— retail shop in 73,678  Direct comparison Comparable’s unit ~ RMB1,002,700 per ~ The higher the unit
Macau approach selling/asking square meter selling price, the
price higher the fair
value
REME
—-fURREMZEE ERLBE AHEENEN  BYAAARE  ENEEREF.
EE&/HE 1,002,7007C AEERR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 55 AR B

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 15 REYWEE)
(b) Valuation basis (Continued) (b) HEEE(E)
Valuation techniques (Continued) 1418 # i (&)
Fair value measurements using significant NEEAEFHAEE N B
unobservable inputs (level 3) (Continued) HWMAB(E=F)(8&)
Fair value at Range of Relationship of
28 February 2023 Valuation Unobservable unobservable unobservable
Description (RMB'000) technique inputs input inputs to fair value
RZZ-=F
Z“RZtNH
NATE BRI BRI BELANGAER
EH (AR Tn) RERE BAE AAENEE DNTENBEE

Investment property

— retail shop in the 2,360 Direct comparison ~ Comparable’s unit ~ RMB16,523 per The higher the unit
PRC approach selling/asking square meter selling price, the
price higher the fair
value
REWE
—fuRHEZREE EEERE ALERMEL  BYARARY  ENEERS
EB/HE 16,5237L ATERR

Investment property

— retail shop in 70,840 Direct comparison ~ Comparable’s unit ~ RMB964,077 per  The higher the unit
Macau approach selling/asking square meter selling price, the
price higher the fair
value
REWE
—fURNRFAZER EELRE ALERMEL  BYAKARE  EUEERR
EE/FE 964,077 ATERR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16 % HIERRE

Leasehold  Furniture and Motor
Buildings ~ improvements fixtures vehicles Total
iRk
B¥ YEIR  HKHRKE hE @it
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AE®BTR  AR%TR AE¥TR  AR¥TR AE¥TR
At 1 March 2022 R_E-ZE=F-A
Cost A& 17,956 258,035 19,814 2,804 298,609
Accumulated depreciation 2ENE (14,264) (244.489) (19,347) (2,008) (280,101)
Net book amount KEFE 3,602 13,563 167 796 18,508
Year ended 28 February 2023 HEZECZECACTNA
%3
Opening net book amount ENEEFE 3,692 13,553 467 79 18,508
Exchange realignment EZRE 350 131 7 21 509
Additions mE - 14,589 1,795 - 16,384
Wrie offisposal (Vots 23/t W/ W) - (1,560) ) - (1,607)
Depreciation ik (185) (12,258) (516) 232) (13191)
Impaiment /Note (3) REW1G) - (6,069) - - (6,069
Closing net book amount EREERRE 3,857 8,386 1,706 585 14534
At 28 February 2023 RZRZZFZAZTNA
Cost A 18,593 266,416 1,831 2,857 309,697
Accumulated depreciation 2ENE (14,736) (258,030 (20,125) (2272 (295,169)
Net book amount REFE 3857 8,386 1,706 585 14534
Year ended 29 February 2024 HE-Z-ME-R-ThA
HT
Opening net ook amount ENERTE 3,857 8,386 1,706 585 14,534
Exchange realignment EZRE 152 149 148 4 453
Additions hE - 7,081 2,413 - 9,494
Write offidisposal Note 231 i/ H &) - (2,036) (1,225) - (3,261)
Depreciation ik (195) (6,941) (589) (147) (1872
Impairment /Nots (3) HEWHe) - (3,010) - - (3,010)
Closing net book amount EXERFE 3814 3,629 2,453 442 10,338
At 29 February 2024 NZFZMEZAZTNA
Cost A 7,564 263,375 22,671 2,880 296,490
Accumulated depreciation 2ENE (3,750) (259, 746) (20,218) (2,438) (286,152)
Net book amount BESE 3814 3,629 2,453 442 10,338
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

foi A B 5 R M

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

Note:

(a) Certain retail stores with operation were making losses during
the year and the Group is uncertain whether the stores could
meet the sales target. The Group regards each individual retail
store as a separately identifiable cash-generating unit and
carried out impairment assessment for the retail stores which
have indicators of impairment. As a result, impairment loss
of approximately RMB3,010,000 (2023: RMB6,069,000) and
approximately RMB2,291,000 (2023: RMB11,555,000) against
leasehold improvements and right-of-use assets, respectively,
were recognised in selling and distribution expenses of the
Group. The estimates of the recoverable amounts were based
on value-in-use calculations using discounted cash flow
projections based on the sales forecast.

17 LEASES

The Group has recognised right-of-use assets for
these leases, except for short term leases, see Note
2.2.8 to the consolidated financial statements further
information.

(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet

The consolidated balance sheet shows the

16 W% HBERREE)

g

(8 HTEENZTEEHEAFEELEEBR-
AEEBTHTZEEASOREIHE
BEZ ASEREHTEEHAERRS
ELXBMN YHEREDZRONTEEHE
TRETS - Al AEEEHERDH
XA DRlRHEAOMESSITEMERAZE
BEBRTHIERIEDHARES010,000
T(ZZEZ=%: AR%6,069,0007T) & 4
ARMB2291,000(ZE=Z=F: AR
11,5655,0007T) - fHat A E € 52 ER
EREAEE HPFERTHSEN+RD
WHRREREERFE -

17 A&
KEBHHEEI)N AEEERRAEE
MO BEREEE FHEM B
EHGEVBRRNE2.28 ¢

() REREEERERERANEHE

HAEEERABRBERTNUTH

following amounts relating to leases: REENEH:
2024 2023
—F-_NME —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTR AR+
Right-of-use assets EREEE
Land use rights + Mo A 12,751 12,895
Retail shop premises, warehouses TZEEMH  SEALRHAE
and offices 15,927 21,974
28,678 34,869
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

17 LEASES (CONTINUED)

17 HE (&)

(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (a) NG EEABRERNEE
balance sheet (Continued) (&)
2024 2023
—E-pNE T =4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTR AR%TT
Lease liabilities HEESE
Current Vi) 13,551 22,735
Non-current FEm B 6,908 14,564
20,459 37,299
2024
—E-ME
Retail shop
premises,
Land use warehouses
rights and offices Total
TEEH -
TiERAE ERRBAE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AR® TR ARBTR
Right-of-use assets EREEE
Opening balance as at R-ZT-_=%=A—Az
1 March 2023 FHEE 12,895 21,974 34,869
Additions HNE - 18,366 18,366
Depreciation charge (Note 7/)  TE BB (#/:£7) (655) (18,873) (19,528)
Early termination of leases RAKILAEAD - (4,226) (4,226)
Impairment (Note 16()) WIE (K £ 16(@) - (2,291) (2,291)
Exchange realignment EXRE 511 977 1,488
Closing balance as at RZE-WF
29 February 2024 “RZthBz
FRE 12,751 15,927 28,678
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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17 LEASES (CONTINUED)

17 HE (&)

(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (a) NG EEABRERNEE
balance sheet (Continued) (#&)
2023
—E-=F
Retail shop
premises,
Land use warehouses
rights and offices Total
TEEH -
THERE  BERBAE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT ARBTT
Right-of-use assets EREEE
Opening balance as at RZFEZZF=R—H2
1 March 2022 FE LR 12,347 40,414 52,761
Additions NE - 18,444 18,444
Depreciation charge (Note 7)  EB R (M :27) (622) (23,001) (23,623)
Early termination of leases RAKLEEESD - (3,374) (3,374)
Impairment (Note 16(a)) WIE(H it 16(8) - (11,555) (11,555)
Exchange realignment EEREE 1,170 1,046 2,216
Closing balance as at RZTZ=%F
28 February 2023 ZRZtNBZ
FRE 12,895 21,974 34,869
2024 2023
—EomME —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®STR AR%T
Lease liabilities HEAE
Opening balance as at 1 March R=ZA—B2FV&E& 37,299 47,314
Additions NE 18,286 17,881
Repayment of lease liabilities BEMERE (25,545) (26,705)
Interest for lease liabilities (Note 8) T & & & & B (47 :£8) 1,090 1,491
Early termination of leases RAKIEHEESD (11,698) (3,730)
Exchange realignment ME & 3 B 1,027 1,048
Closing balance as at RZA=+hB/~
29 February/28 February —AzZ+N\BHZ
FRER 20,459 37,299
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BR A BB R B
17 LEASES (CONTINUED) 17 HE &)
(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (b) RGEEERBRANSHE
income statement
The consolidated income statement shows the meEEmxBLNITUATERME
following amounts relating to leases: EMEE:
2024 2023
—EoNE T4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTR AR%TT
Interest expense (included in F 2 2 H (FEA B 7 B AR)
finance cost) (Note 8) (H1:%8) 1,090 1,491
Expense relating to short-term FHEEHBEERZ(GTAH
leases (included in selling and ERDHRAMN—K K&
distribution expenses and TBFAR)
general and administrative
expenses) 23,006 25,605

Expense relating to variable lease AR ATAEEAEHA
payments not included in lease 3 i‘ﬂiaﬁ A (B8

liabilities (included in selling ERDHAXN— KK

and distribution expenses and 17 Eﬁ(ﬁﬁi)

general and administrative

expenses) 48,526 46,624
For the year ended 29 February 2024, the HEZ-_MWF_A=+hBL
total cash outflow for leases amounted FE -HEReREKLBLHA
to approximately RMB97,077,000 (2023: R #97,077,000/c (ZF = =4 :
RMB98,934,000). A #98,934,0007T) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 55 AR B

17 LEASES (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

The Group’s leasing activities and how
these are accounted for

The Group’s right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities as a lessee mainly arise from lease of
various retail shop premises, warehouses and
offices with terms of 6 months to 10 years but
may have extension options as described in (e)
below.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. The lease agreements
do not impose any covenants other than the
security interests in the leased assets that are
held by the lessor.

Variable lease payments

Some property leases contain variable payment
terms that are linked to sales generated from
a store. For individual stores, up to 50% of
lease payments are on the basis of variable
payment terms with percentages ranging from
6% to 28.5% of sales. Variable payment terms
are used for a variety of reasons, including
minimising the fixed costs base for newly
established stores. Variable lease payments that
depend on sales are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which the condition that triggers
those payments occurs.

A 10% increase in sales across all stores in the
Group with such variable lease contracts would
increase total lease payments by approximately
RMB4,853,000 (2023: RMB4,662,000).
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17 HE (&)

(c)

(d)

AEENHEEZBREAARA
%

EBAEMA NEE 2 F A
EELRHEAE FTEXREEE
B EARBAZEZAAMA
B4 MAEANZFE A6
B AZ10F - WAIRER S T 3 (e)
BTl /0 JE HR IR 12 4 o

HETHEERNER L &2
=& AR AR R R AR AT o BR
HEAFSENEHEEEDHE

RAE s S0 0 & 15 0 i A0
ERRS
AREENR

AoWEHERSHEHESE
B 5 B RE B A A9 AT B T BUE K ©
BLERESHMS © % ES0%H
HENRESBBIHERTENLK
B BOoEN THEEN®
£28.5% o {F A & G KA
RRBE%ZE  BEEHEILE
HHEEKANEE &N B
RREEENAEZ2HEEN KA
BERASHENROBKHEREE
EHTEEPER -

WAKEBAFENEHESGL
B P78 I 4 B 85 & ZRIE hN10% -
HENRLRBEBEMNOARE
4,853,000 (ZE = =F : AR
#4,662,0007T) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17 LEASES (CONTINUED)

(e) Extension and termination options

17

Extension and termination options are included
in a number of property and equipment leases
across the Group. These are used to maximise
operational flexibility in terms of managing the
assets used in the Group’s operations. The
majority of extension and termination options
held are exercisable only by the Group and not
by the respective lessor.

18 SUBSIDIARIES

18

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries of
the Group at 29 February 2024 which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affect the results or form
a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group:

B B 255 AR B
HE ()
(e) EHMRAILEER

AEENFZUELHBERELTH
RRIEEER -ZFEEER
ERABEEBAEEEBAAZ
BEZEREERMN - Ko A
FRERMRIEEZRETHAN
SETE MAEBLEATA
1TfE -

Fff /B 2 7]
BEEZAR-_E-_WE_A=-+AhA
BAEBEBEEEAZTELERARN
EBFEENTELO»NETENE
NGINIINE

Place of Particular of issued
incorporationand  share capital and Principal activities/ 2024 and 2023
Name of entity kind of legal entity  debt securities place of operation Interest held
ZEIMER
At R BERTRAR TEER/ g Sy S
MEAAER EAER BRES EXtH igs §:
Blooming on Limited Hong Kong, limited 2 ordinary shares of Property holding/ 100%
liability company HK$1 each the PRC
REBRAF A BREALA REREGER KEWE/
AR e
Brightly Investment Limited Hong Kong, limited 2 ordinary shares of Property holding/ 100%
liability company HK$1 each the PRC
BRRERRRAA A BREERR  2REREGEIET KENE/
LR i
Charm & Easy Management Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited 1 ordinary share of Provision of management 100%
liability company HK$1 each services/
Hong Kong
R BREALA 1REBREEIER REEERY/
EER BE
Charm & Easy Retailing Limited Hong Kong, limited 1 ordinary share of Retailing of cosmetic 100%
liability company HK$1 each products/
Hong Kong
R BREALA 1RERAEIER IHERTE/
EER BE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 55 AR B

18 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 18 KB AT ()

Place of Particular of issued
incorporation and  share capital and Principal activities/ 2024 and 2023
Name of entity kind of legal entity  debt securities place of operation Interest held
ZECMER
i A L 3t B R BRTRER TEER/ g Sy
WEARER EAER BRES EXH fris R
Charm & Easy Macau Limited Macau, limited MOP100,000 Retailing of cosmetic 100%
liability company products/
Macau
EFERMARAR EF BREMAQR 100,000&M 7T EMERTE
#F
Great Sino Enterprises Limited Hong Kong, limited 10,000 ordinary shares of  Provision of management 100%
liability company HK$1 each services and
investment holding/
Hong Kong
BEZ0¥EARAT FE BREERA  10000RERAEIET RHEEERBR
LAk RERR,/
e
Le Saunda (B.V.I.) Limited British Virgin Islands, 31,500 ordinary shares of  Investment holding/ 100%
(Note (a)) limited liability US$1 each Hong Kong
(Hiita) company
AERAEE 3500 EREBIZET RERR/
BEREERA LR N
Le Saunda Calcado, Limitada Macau, limited MOP200,000 Property holding/ 100%
liability company Macau
RF - EREMAARE  2000008MT KENE/
2P
Le Saunda China Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited 100 ordinary shares of ~ Investment holding/ 100%
liability company HK$1 each Hong Kong
RBERPEREARAR % ARELDNE  100REREEET  REABR/
AR &R
Le Saunda Licensing Limited Bahamas, limited 5,000 ordinary shares of  Holding and licensing 100%
liability company US$1 each of trade-marks and
names/
Hong Kong
NEEBRERAT BREHS: S000REBRAEIZET RAERRLFFLLHS
BEREERA AR REHER/
Bk
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B B 255 AR B

18 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

18 KB F (&)

Place of Particular of issued
incorporation and  share capital and Principal activities/ 2024 and 2023
Name of entity kind of legal entity  debt securities place of operation Interest held
ZECMER
i A L 3t B R BRTRER TEER/ g Sy
WEARER EAER BRES EXH fris R
Le Saunda Management Limited Hong Kong, limited 2 ordinary shares of Provision of management 100%
liability company HK$1 each services/
Hong Kong
KBHAERERRA A BREALA O REREEER REERRY/
AR &R
Le Saunda Real Estate Limited Hong Kong, limited 2 ordinary shares of Investment holding/ 100%
liability company HK$1 each Hong Kong
KBHAHEERAA A BREERR  REREGEIET RERR/
EER BE
L.S. Retailing Limited Hong Kong, limited 2 ordinary shares of Retailing of shoes/ 100%
liability company HK$1,000 each plus Hong Kong
20,000 non-voting
deferred shares of
HK$1,000 each
RBMAZEERAT BB BREAAR  2REREMEI00ETE RETE/
BRM20000%ER  EFE
EE1,0008 7T
EREEELTHN
Maior Limited Hong Kong, limited 1,000 ordinary shares of  Trading of shoes and 100%
liability company HK$2,000 each investment holding/
Hong Kong
SEERERERAA BF AREELA  1000REREB2000ET REESRRERR/
LB BE
Master Benefit Limited Hong Kong, limited 3,000,000 ordinary shares Investment holding/ 100%
liability company of HK$1 each Hong Kong
EEBRAA B BREMDA  3000000BBREHEET KELR/
@k e
Super Billion Properties Limited Hong Kong, limited 100 ordinary shares of  Property holding/ 100%
liability company HK$1 each the PRC
WEEZBRRA A BREMLRA 100REREBEEL KENE/
AR e
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18 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 18 KB AT ()

Place of Particular of issued
incorporation and  share capital and Principal activities/ 2024 and 2023
Name of entity kind of legal entity  debt securities place of operation Interest held
ZECMER
MR EER BRTRAR TEER/ ZECIZF
WEARER EAER BRES EXHE fir 5 1 &
Trend Door Company Limited Hong Kong, limited 2 ordinary shares of Investment holding/ 100%
liability company HK$1 each Hong Kong
CY R YN R BREALA REREEIER RERR/
ERR )
Trend Light Trading Company Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited 2 ordinary shares of Investment holding/ 100%
liability company HK$1 each Hong Kong
REESHBRAA A BREERR  2REBREGEIET RERR/
ERR e
MEESHRE)ERAA The PRC, limited US$100,000 Wholesales and trading 100%
liability company of shoes/
the PRC
hE - AREMAE  100000ET ReEBERESH/
i
MEEBEREERAR The PRC, limited HK$53,000,000 Retailing of shoes/ 100%
liability company the PRC
hE - AREMAE 53,000,000 RETE/
i
MEEES(RI)ERAH The PRC, limited HK$10,000,000 Retalling of shoes/ 100%
liability company the PRC
hE - AREMAE 10,000,000 T RETE/
i
EBFE%LB)ERAT The PRC, limited US$6,500,000 Retailing of shoes/ 100%
liability company the PRC
hE - EREMLAE  6500000%T REZE/
i
BEERENR)ERAF The PRC, limited US$2,200,000 Retailing of shoes/ 100%
liability company the PRC
hE - AREMDE  2,200000%T REZE/
i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

18

foi 1 B 5 R M

B B X R (&)

Place of Particular of issued
incorporation and  share capital and Principal activities/ 2024 and 2023
Name of entity kind of legal entity  debt securities place of operation Interest held
“EZMER
MR EER BRTREAR TEEE/ ZECIZF
WEARER EAER BHEES EXHE fir 5 1 &
HEEHKE)BRLA The PRC, limited US$800,000 Retailing of shoes/ 100%
liability company the PRC
hE - AREMAE  800,000ET ETE/
i
EHREEMMBRAT The PRC, limited RMB18,000,000 Retailing of shoes/ 66.67%
liability company the PRC
RE - BREAAE  AR%18,000,0007 ETE/
i
BUTBERREERERAT The PRC, limited US$1,050,000 Inactive/ 100%
liability company the PRC
EEREMAE  1,050000%T REEEEY,/
HE
FUmERERRREEERAA The PRC, limited US$1,500,000 Inactive/ 100%
liability company the PRC
RE - BREMAE  1,500,000% T REGEED,/
HE
FUTEEEEREHERE The PRC, limited US$200,000 Inactive/ 100%
BRAR liability company the PRC
hEEREMAE  200,000% T REREED,/
HE

Note:

(a) Le Saunda (B.V.l.) Limited is held directly by the Company. All
other subsidiaries are held indirectly.

X

(@) Le Saunda (B.V.) Limited /i AR B & # 3
B MABHEMNBARY AMEREHR -

*EHES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

foi A B 5 R M

19 DEFERRED INCOME TAXATION 19 EEFREHRE
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset EEETHENBELERESHRIBESER
when there is a legally enforceable right to set off EHELEMEHREGEEE  mME
the tax assets against the tax liabilities and when EREMENRE —FE#EE - Ao
the deferred income taxes relate to the same tax BREESHRBEEHBEMRENE
authority. The following amounts, determined after THEGZEEEEAERRNIENS
appropriate offsetting, are shown in the consolidated MR ABEE A
balance sheet:
2024 2023
—E-_MFE —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBFTT
Deferred income tax assets EEFSHIEBEE 29,490 32,390
Deferred income tax liabilities EEMBHRIEBEAGE (18,016) (18,312)
11,474 14,078
Deferred income taxation is calculated in full on BEEMSHERABEBEENEER
temporary differences under the liability method ERNEEHEEETIABETCHM
using the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted R = B
by the balance sheet date.
2024 2023
—EBEIME —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBTT
At beginning of year )| 14,078 3,350
(Charged)/credited to the (FFA)/ R ABER
consolidated income statement (Hfat12)
(Note 12) (2,291) 11,413
Exchange realignment P KR (313) (685)
At end of year N R 11,474 14,078
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

19 DEFERRED INCOME TAXATION (CONTINUED) 19 EZEFRAEHIE(E)

The movement on deferred income tax assets and BREFFESHBEERABNEZE W
liabilities are as follows: T
Withholding tax
Unrealised profits on Revaluation of on dividend for
inventories investment properties  undistributed profits Others Total
AEREREA RENEEH AOMERNRERANR it Lh
(Notg) (1)

2024 2003 2024 2023 2024 2003 2024 2023 2024 2003
ZECmE -EC-F CEIME -S--F ZECME CTo-F CECWE -E--f ZBIRE CEocEF
RMB'000  RMBOOO RMB'000  RMBOO0 RMB'000  RMB'OO0 RMB'000  RMBOOO RMB'000  RMB'OO0
ARETR ARETRT AR%TR ARETH ARETRn ARETr ARETr ARETT ARETR ARETR

At beginning of year RET 283 K707 (1825) (71400 (10486) (21659 9,048 6442 14,078 3350
(Charged)/credited to GREREF
consolidated income (GtA)/ Mk

statement (1,055) 2,366) - - 609 1,173 (1,845) 2,606 (2,291) 1,413
Exchange realignment ~ EXFE - - (313) (685) - - - - (313) (685)
Atend of year RES 06 N3 G175 O8T) (048 7208 908 11474 14078
Note: it -

Pursuant to the Detailed Implementation Regulations for
implementation of the Corporate Income Tax Law issued on 6
December 2007, withholding income tax of 10% shall be levied on the
dividends remitted by the companies established in the PRC to their
foreign investors starting from 1 January 2008. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between China and
the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. All dividends coming from the
profits generated by the PRC companies after 1 January 2008 shall
be subject to this withholding income tax. The Group did not accrue
withholding income tax for a portion of the earnings of approximately
RMB114,014,000 (2023: RMB113,881,000) of its PRC subsidiaries
because the Group does not have a plan to distribute these earnings
from its PRC subsidiaries.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to
the extent that realisation of the related tax benefits through future
taxable profits is probable. As at 29 February 2024, the Group had
unrecognised tax losses of approximately RMB237,190,000 (2023:
RMB185,237,000) to be carried forward against future taxable income.

BER-_ZEZTLFEF+_ANBBEGHLERSE
REEKEKN BT /\F—A—AL  BYH
ERBRIMNAGIMEFGIHNEEESTRHEK S
BU10% W TBME - WP HEIRIZEE T
AEEETAHEBEKRLY Al EAREREN
MME -R_ZTEZENF-—A—HEREFERA
FTEAMBORMBEREYAGNBNAEE -
HRASEEFSDEREBRRAMNBAR ZHD
AAMARARBZBENASR ZBMNOARYE
114,014,000 (= ZF — = F : A & #113,881,000
JT) °

WAERBHNEEAAEBRRERHE R
B OBHESELAESEERAEERBEELE - 1
—Z-NF-_A=-thB AEBEEAERKEE
B4 A R#237190,000C(ZE - =F: AR
#185,237,0007T) 4 & & ¥ R R ERBA T ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

foi A B 5 R M

19 DEFERRED INCOME TAXATION (CONTINUED) 19
The expiry of unrecognised tax losses are as follows:

iE 3 Fr 15 B TH (&)
AERRAEBRZINHELT

2024 2023
—EomMFE —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBFTT
Tax losses without expiry date mIEHH 2 HIBEE 202,121 153,537
Tax losses expiring in 5 years AFRNE®R 2T IEEE 35,069 31,700
237,190 185,237
20 INVENTORIES 20 #E

2024 2023
—E-NFE —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBFTT
Finished goods 2K M 203,922 230,500

Less: Provision for impairment of B FERERE
inventories (39,411) (38,124)
164,511 192,376
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER RECEIVABLES, 21 B SEWERE - HuEWEERER
AND DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS ReRBEMSKE

2024 2023

—F-ME —T-=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETRT ARETIT

Trade receivables B 5 EWHRIE 31,026 43,682

Less: loss allowance B SR (1,057) (5,674)

29,969 38,008

Other receivables H fth & Y BR 18 6,306 4,282

36,275 42,290

Deposits %2 7,961 11,822

Prepayments TE A IR 3,217 3,301

Value added tax receivables JrE W 3 B 7 B 18 22,919 26,062

70,372 83,475

Presented as non-current assets EVRIEREBEE 981 3,118

Presented as current assets EVRREBEE 69,391 80,357

70,372 83,475

The Group’s concessionaire sales through
department stores are generally collectible within 30
to 60 days. The carrying amounts of trade and other
receivables approximate their fair values. There is
no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade
receivables as the Group has a large number of
customers.

AEEREERSZHETHEENE
— RO R B ZEZHEI0E60K R UM -
B o5 EWRIE R A EWERIE 2 R
HEEEAFEHRSE BHRAEE
EPRLZ WEZEREEYEE
ERBEFRBR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 55 AR B

21

TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER RECEIVABLES,
AND DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
(CONTINUED)

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at
the end of the reporting period, and net of provision,
based on invoice date is as follows:

21

EZRWRE HMoBWERER
BEERAMNREGER)

BEHRKR BRERZEZEREEKR
ZHRERZEZAHOMET

2024 2023

—EDNFE T =F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBTT

Current to 30 days B1ER 30X 28,655 36,796
31 to 60 days 31K 260K 617 341
61 to 90 days 61X E90K 154 246
Over 90 days B iBI0K 543 625
29,969 38,008

Trade receivables are denominated in the following
currencies:

EHRBBRBEAT I E % :

2024 2023
—EopmE —E-=4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

RMB AR 29,969 37,999
HK$ BT - 9
29,969 38,008

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measuring expected credit losses which uses
a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade
receivables. The loss allowance recognised as
at 29 February 2024 amounted to approximately
RMB1,057,000 (2023: RMB5,674,000). Information
about the impairment of trade receivables and
group’s exposure to credit risk can be found in Note
3.1(b).

246 le saunda holdings Itd. Z&EHTFHER AR A7)

REBHBEBY B REERFOR
2Bl R A EBEHEEEE A
HHEESREIKEBENEMETES
EFEHEBEEE R-T_MF=
AZ+hB BRTEBEREBEOAR
1 057,000(ZE - =4F: AR
5,674,0007T) - BB S EWERIE 2
BEEMEASEBE Z2EERR &
& B M FE3.1(b) ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BR A BB R B
22 CASH AND BANK BALANCES 22 RERBITHER
2024 2023
—EDNFE T =F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR®T
Cash at bank and on hand RITBEEFHERES 113,222 98,235
Bank deposits with initial term no HIR DR =8 AR R 1777 K
more than three months (Note (a)) (K1 it (@) 222,433 210,333
Bank deposits with initial term over HifR @ =@ A IR 1T FE X
three months (Note (b)) (H1 7% (b) 29,000 63,038
Cash and bank balances Be MEITES 364,655 371,606
Less: Term deposits with initial term  J& : HAFR 8 =@ B &9 & HifE &
over three months (Note (b)) (#1 2% (b)) (29,000) (63,038)
Cash and cash equivalents RekFERRESIER 335,655 308,568

The cash and bank balances are denominated in the Be MIRITEGUT Y EE R :

following currencies:

2024 2023

—E_NFE T =F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARE®FTT

RMB AR 178,164 154,834
us$ == 123,472 112,948
HK$ BT 61,176 102,004
Other currencies HEmEt 1,843 1,820
364,655 371,606
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 55 AR B

22 CAS

Notes:

(@)

H AND BANK BALANCES (CONTINUED)

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits and
term deposits was 5.04% (2023: 4.04%) per annum; these
deposits have a maturity ranging from 7 to 91 days (2023: 7 to
91 days).

The effective interest rate on bank deposits with initial term
over three months was 1.96% (2023: 3.64%) per annum; these
deposits have a maturity ranging from 182 to 183 days (2023:
181 days).

The Group’s cash and bank balances denominated in RMB
are deposited with banks in the PRC. The conversion of these
RMB denominated balances into foreign currencies and the
remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
PRC government.

The carrying amounts of cash and bank balances approximate
their fair values.

le saunda holdings Itd. @ &7 FHER G R A A

22

BERBRITHES R

#ret

(@

RHBRTERALEHERONERI XA
FE504% (B - =4F 1 4.04%) : L5 17
REHHENF7ENH(ZZT = =F : 75201
H) -

HRA-FAANEHERANERIRAST
F1.96% (ZTEZ=F :3.64%) : X ZEF A
B H BN F182E183H (- T = =4 : 181
H) -

AEBUAARBREMNRE S RIRTHER
DEFRPENRT - RBZFEUAARE
REANBEFTRIMNEREDLPBRIRINEGA
7 R BT AR A EOSNEE SR A R AR D

RekR{THESzREEEEQAFERSE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SR B R B
23 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 23 MERERERWTE
STATEMENTS
(@) Reconciliation of loss before income tax to net @ BIEHRAIEBERASEERE
cash generated from/(used in) operations: £ (FRRIZREFRYE:
2024 2023
—E-NE S -=4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARET
Cash flow from operating KREXRETHZ
activities RERE
Loss before income tax Br TS FE AT E 18 (21,459) (53,157)
Adjustments for: T
Exchange difference (Note 6) & 5 =% (1 i76) 2,486 8,199
Depreciation of property, plant VI MBS RREITE
and equipment (Note 16) (Hfat16) 7,872 13,191
Depreciation of right-of-use FTRAEEENE
assets (Note 17) (K7 7E17) 19,528 23,623
Loss on write off/disposal of Mgy, e S R
plant and equipment (Note (b)) & 18 (H1 2 b)) 3,261 1,607
Gain on early termination of IRAMR I ERREA Y=
leases (Note 17) (Hfat17) (7,472) (356)
(Write-back of impairment)/ 2 5 FE W AR 18 Rl 8 #
impairment losses on trade B),/ BEEE  FHE
receivables, net (Note 3.1(b)) (K7 :#3.1(b)) (385) 4
Impairment losses/(write-back FEREEER
of impairment) on inventories, CRERRD)  F58
net 1,281 (3,839)
Impairment losses on property, VI WSS RERE
plant and equipment &8 (f it 16)
(Note 16) 3,010 6,069
Impairment losses on right-of FREEERBEER
use assets (Note 17) (B 7£17) 2,291 11,5655
Finance income, net (Note 8) B A - FRE
(K1 a28) (10,666) (7,065)
(253) (169)
Changes in working capital: BEESEH:
— Inventories - Rr5 26,714 (2,124)
— Trade and other receivables — B REWERE KX
H b & Y BR 18 6,462 5,980
— Deposits and prepayments — Be RFERFKIE 7,255 (968)
— Trade payables and other — BH5ENKRER
payables H b fE T BR IR 3,591 (2,797)

Net cash generated from/(used in) K& %KELX (FFH)Z
operations e FHE 43,769 (78)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 55 AR B

23 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 23 BREHRERERMET(HE)
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(b) Reconciliation of write off/disposal of plant and (o) Wl H S 2SR 2R R
equipment:
2024 2023
—F-ME —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTR ARBT
Proceeds from write off/disposal  #fi$4, H & 7 18 - —
Net book amount BREFE (3,261) (1,607)
Loss on write off/disposal of plant  #fi #4 1 & # 28
and equipment REEE (3,261) (1,607)
(¢) Analysis of changes in financing activities during ) FARMEETHEEH DN
the year:
Short-term Lease Dividend
bank loan liabilities payables Total
RE®ET
EX HERE EMKE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®Tn AR¥Tn AR%®Tn AR%T=x
At 1 March 2023 R-B-ZEZf-A - — (37,209 (508 (37,807
Cash movements: ne#
— Repayment for principal — 7 ‘fﬁ{ BRL
element of lease liabilities K& B H - 24,455 - 24,455
— Dividend paid - Bk E - - 31,796 31,796
______ —___248% 31,796 _ 56,251
Non-cash movements: EHEE
— 2023 interim special - ZTZ=FFk
dividend declared FHA I Bl B - - (31,748) (31,748)
— Additions to lease liabilities — FEGBERE - (18,286) - (18,286)
— Early termination of leases — RRATKRIFTHER L - 11,698 - 11,698
— Foreign exchange -EXESE
adjustments - (1,027) (19) (1,046)
______ —___ 7615 __ _(31,767) _ (39,382)
At 29 February 2024 RZEZMEF
~A=+thA - (20,459) (479)  (20,938)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i B s R B T
23 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 23 RERERNERM T (HE)
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
() Analysis of changes in financing activities during c FARMEBEEBEEF DN : (&)
the year: (Continued)
Short-term Lease Dividend
bank loan liabilities payables Total
RHRT
B HERE RS st

RMB'000 ~ RWMB000 ~ RMB000  RMB'000
ARBTL ARBTLT ARETR ARETR

At 1 March 2022 RZFZZF=ZF-B (0200 (@731 | (463) (67,977)
Cash movements: Re#E:
— Repayment for - REROTEREN
short-term bank loan 21,637 - - 21,637
— Repayment for principal - HEBEEHZ
element of lease liabilities e EHH - 25,214 - 25,214
— Dividend paid to - BENEERERRE
non-controlling interest — - 221 221
_o_Aassr 2214 2 AT072
Non-cash movements: ¥Re2E:
— 2022 dividend declaredto — —E=~FF )k
non-controlling interest FERERRE - - (221) (221)
— Additions to lease liabilitles — HEEERE - (17,881) - (17,881)
— Early termination of leases — AL EHEEEH) - 3,730 - 3,730
— Foreign exchange -ERER
adjustments (1,437) (1,048) (45) (2,530)
_ooasn (15199 266)  _ _ (16.902)
At 28 February 2023 R-B_=%
—RA=TNH - (37,299) (508) (37,807)
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A B S R b RE

24 TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 24 BHENKE HMESEKRER

CONTRACT LIABILITIES eHNaE
2024 2023
—E-mE T -=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TFRT ARETT
Trade payables B o5 EMNIRE 18,628 12,012
Other payables H b fE AR I8 42,684 46,483
Value added tax payables JE A-F 3 1B B 7 18 8,603 9,863
Contract liabilities (Note) B el R ) 15,905 13,397
85,820 81,755

The credit periods granted by suppliers are generally
ranged from 7 to 60 days. The ageing analysis of the

HEFREE 2EER—KRABTEC0KX
REPKR EHEMNEBEZEET

o
~

trade payables at the end of the reporting period, EEHEOBT
based on invoice date is as follows:
2024 2023
—EDNFE T =F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARS®TR AREFTT
Current to 30 days BIHR =30X 18,539 11,802
31 to 60 days 31X 260K 14 75
61 to 90 days 61X 290K - —
91 to 120 days 91K 2120k - —
Over 120 days B @120k 75 135
18,628 12,012
Note: o

The following table shows the amount of the revenue recognised in
the current reporting period relates to contract liabilities balance at
the beginning of the year.

TRETRTEARSHBRNO U REFIAL

BESBABEZESH -

2024 2023
—EB-QmEF —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBFIT
Revenue recognised that was included in the WRIWETAZFNEL
contract liabilities balance at the beginning of ~ B & # %8 2 W %
the year 1,530 1,842

252 le saunda holdings Itd. Z&EHTFHER AR A7)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

EZRENERER HMUESRER
BRNEEE
BHEMNEREREEREQFERS -
I PAF 5116 B 51 Bk

24 TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 24
CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts of trade payables approximate
their fair values and are denominated in the following

currencies:
2024 2023
“ENE —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETR AREBFTT
RMB AR 18,614 11,944
HK$ BT - 68
EURO B T 14 _
18,628 12,012
25 SHARE CAPITAL 25 BRAR
2024 2023
—2-@mF —E-=F
Share Share
Number of capital Number of capital
ordinary BA ordinary B
shares  HK$’000 shares HK$'000
ZEREE TERT SRR e 4= FHET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 & §%0.1078 7T
Authorised: ETE A :
At the beginning of year FOMRER
and at the end of year 1,000,000,000 100,000 1,000,000,000 100,000
2024 2023
—E-_mE —E-=F
Share Share
Number of capital Number of Capital
ordinary R A ordinary (RN
shares RMB’000 shares  RMB’000

EERBE ARWTR EEKRHE AR®TR

BEETRERBRAK:
FORFR

Issued and fully paid:
At the beginning of year

and at the end of year 705,895,060 59,979 705,895,060 59,979
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foi A B 5 R M

26 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The Group operates a defined benefit pension plan
in Hong Kong based on employee pensionable
remuneration and length of service.

The amounts, included in trade and other payables
(Note 24), recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet are determined as follows:

26 RIKEFEE
ANEERERERERKTINEREE
HNEBHTATENENKRSE -

BEHERNEEEERAER fTAE
A AR 1A Ko LAt B A BR TR (FfY 5£24)
ME BT

2024 2023
—E-ME 2 —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETR
Present value of defined benefit AERNETERE

obligations 275 16

Liability in the consolidated balance RirAEEBEBERNEE
sheet 275 16

The movement in the present value of defined benefit

FRA - AERNEERENE S W

obligations over the year is as follows: Ik
2024 2023
—E-NE —T-=4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®STR AR%TT
At beginning of year F9 16 19
Interest cost 8 9 —
Current service cost IR AR 7 Ak AR 20 1
Payment S - —
Actuarial losses/(gains) BEEBEECaF) 227 6)
Exchange realignment [ K & 3 2
At end of year F 275 16
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

26 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 26 BB EEE)
(CONTINUED)
The amounts recognised in the consolidated income NS EREERN SN T

statement are as follows:

2024 2023
—E-mE T -=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETTT

Interest cost included in staff costs st A B T A ZF| & 9 —
The principal actuarial assumptions used were as FTENRBEBRREAMDT:
follows:

2024 2023

—E-_MEF B =

Discount rate Priax 3.48% 1.22%
Future salary increase rate AR 2R Fr B hn b = 3.48% 2.00%
27 RESERVES 27 &
Capital ~ Exchange
Share  redemption translation  Statutory  Contributed Retained Capital Other
premium reserve reserve eserves surplus eamings reserve reserve Total

RftRE EARERE AERSEE  ERER  MABR REEAN ERBR AHER it
RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBO00  RMB0D0  RMBIOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOO  AMBOO
ARBTR  ARMTR  ARRTr  ARMTR  ARRTn ARMTR ARBTR ARBTR ARMR

//VO/&’/ (#f ﬂ}r

At1 March 2023 R-5-=EZR-H 86,982 145 (48,348) 41,145 3,076 499,719 4812 1 595,546
Comprahensive oss 2EEE

Loss for the year FREE - - - - - (23,54 - - (23,54)
Other comprehensive ncome/foss)  Ef2 A4/ (5 E)

Curency tanglation differences EREE - - 13,776 - - - - - 13,776

Retfement beneft oblgaion~—~~ RAFEF B - - - - - - - (221) (221)
Transaction wih owners HEREEAIRS

Diiend Be - - - - - P - - P
At 29 February 2024 R-E-RE-A-TAA 88,982 145 (34572) 41,145 3,076 444429 4812 (212) 553,805
Representing fx:
2024 proposed dividend “5CmEEERS kYATE]
Others £t 521,632

563,805
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 55 AR B

Statutory reserves represent enterprise expansion and general reserve
funds set up by subsidiaries established and operated in the PRC. As
stipulated by regulation in the PRC, the subsidiaries are required to
appropriate to statutory reserves an amount of not less than 5% or
10% of the amount of profit after income tax of respective the PRC
subsidiaries, calculated based on the PRC accounting standards.
Should the accumulated total of the statutory reserves reach 50% of
the registered capital of the PRC subsidiaries, the subsidiaries will not
be required to make any further appropriation. Pursuant to relevant
the PRC regulations, the general reserve fund may be used to make
up losses or to increase the capital of the corresponding subsidiaries
whilst the enterprise expansion fund may be used to expand the
corresponding subsidiaries’ production operations or to increase the
capital of the corresponding subsidiaries.

le saunda holdings Itd. % H7 fHZE %A IR A R

27 RESERVES (CONTINUED) 27 f#E(E)
Employes
Capttl Exchange Share-oased
Share Tedemption iranslation Statutory ~ Contrbuted Retained Captal  compensation Other
remium 18508 fes6e 1861168 surpls garnings fes6e 1eser1e 18N8 Total
[EERR
RiEE EREREE MEREER EERE CINH REEH BRGR B EftER i3
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
AREFT  ARETR  ARBTR ARRTR ARETR ARETn ARETn ARETn ARETR ARET:
Mot (W)
At 1 March 2022 iy 86,982 1 (38,127) 14 3076 530311 4812 19679 9 636,082
Comprehensiee loss 2EER
Loss forthe year Engg - - - - - B0 - - - B02m)
Other comprehensive income Ef2EUA
Curency ranshfon diferences ~ EXEE - - 97m9 - - - - - - 97m9
Reirement bensft obligation RIENER - - - - - - - - b 6
Transacton vith owners HEREEA RS
Share option scheme ERErs
— share option apsed - BREA - - - - - 10679 - (19,579 - -
AL 28 February 2023 it 86,982 15 18349) 414 3076 499719 4812 - 1 59,546
Representing ft%:
Others i 505,546
Note: B i# -

EERBERPERIEEENMBRBME
TR EETRE-RERBES - RPEAM
RE MBARNAREERBHR 28D
REFEESFENFESTENE QR OKAR
B M5% 10% © )% EH il RELE
Z= P BB AR FE M AR 8950% I B A RS
BAHEHERX - REFHATPERE —REFB
R BEEHERIEMERNEARNER -
MEXHRESRARIEERASHNBERRNE
EXEBHEMBBAGBEARNER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A B RS R F RE
28 COMMITMENTS 28 &I
Capital commitments BREIE
2024 2023
—E-oNE —T =4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®FTT
Contracted but not provided for, BEJETEIREE — A
in respect of — purchase of HEEYE  MRLEE
property, plant and equipment 1,672 —
29 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 29 BT EDH
2024 2023
—E-NE —T =4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®FTT
Financial assets at amortised cost: & gt & 7 15 # 12 1, 2K 51/ Ak -
Trade and other receivables B RrEWERIE K
H b & W BR 18 36,275 42,290
Deposits %2 7,961 11,822
Cash and bank balances B e MIRT1T 4 6k 364,655 371,606
408,891 425,718
2024 2023
—E-NE T =4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFTRT AR®FTT
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: & [ B 1& #& # £ 5% 7K 71/ Bk
Trade and other payables E o EMNERE R
H b fE AR IR 60,328 57,855
Lease liabilities HEBE 20,459 37,299
80,787 95,154

annual report 2024 % 2024 237



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 55 AR B

30 BANKING FACILITIES AND GUARANTEES 30 /ITHERER
The banking facilities made available to subsidiaries AIEHAEBRNWB AR SHAHWEITRE
of the Group are as follows: BREEWNT:
2024 2023
—E-UE —E-=4F

Available Facilities Available Facilities

facilities utilised facilities utilised

25A 2 & A

THEE BHE ATAREE BE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR AR TR ARBTT ARBTE

Banking facilities granted [\ A 5= [ [} /&8

to subsidiaries of the NCIE- 8l
Group MITRERE 78,604 68 40,1183 —
As at 29 February 2024, RMB68,000 of facilities were RZFE_WNF-_A=-+hLB 2%
utilised (2023: Nil). AARKES 000 THEEREE(ZT
-
31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 31 EREATIHNRS
(a) Related parties (a) BEAEAL
As at 29 February 2024, Stable Gain Holdings R-ZE-_MWME-_/F=-+HLB"
Limited held 31.94% (2023: 31.94%) equity Stable Gain Holdings Limited$F
interest in the Company as the single largest BARRQNABIM% (T - =F:
shareholder. 31.94%) IR Az BE—&
RKIEE -
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31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 31

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

(CONTINUED)

(b) Transaction with a related party

(c)

Significant transaction with a related party,
which was carried out in the normal course of

FREALNR S (&)

(b) BE—VEHAEALZXS
H-UREALETZIIER
IR ASBRAERBHET

the Group’s business, is summarised as follows: IBEaan T
2024 2023
—EBE-ME T =4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTT
Rental expenses charged by a mM—fBEBEEALIZM
related party (Note) M < (f:2) 802 628
Note: M &t

For the years ended 29 February 2024 and 28 February 2023,
the Group rented a shop located in Macau from Mr. Lee Tze
Bun, Marces, a substantial shareholder of the Company, as a
retail outlet in Macau.

TEEEEMSE

Key management compensation (c)

The directors are considered key management
of the Group.

HE_ZT-_mWF_AZ+thBRZZT==
FZAZFTNBLEFEE  AEERARQA
ZEERRETFWAARRA B AR
WIEHERRMNTEMT -

EERAAEEI T EERE -

2024 2023
—E-EF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®FTT

Salaries and other short-term FehHMEHEERT
employee benefits 3,840 3,896

Employer’s contributions to EXRIKSFEIHEK

retirement scheme 38 36
3,878 3,932
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 55 AR B

32 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE OF THE 32 KPFEEEBRNHEE
COMPANY
(a) Balance sheet of the Company (@) xAREEREGX
As at As at
29 February 28 February
2024 2023

R-ZZE-WMFE RZZT-=F
—A=+hB ZA=+NH
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR¥BTR ARBFTT

Assets BE
Non-current assets EREBEE

Interests in subsidiaries NI NCIPA 5 _ 552655 271,779
Current assets mENE E

Other receivables H e U AR 18 242 230

Cash and bank balances 2 & K IR 1T 45 £k 1,495 1,736

_____ 1,737 _____1.966

Total assets BEE 554,392 273,745
Equity =
Capital and reserves RARERFAA

attributable to the owners  JEAG A% AR [ % 1

of the Company

Share capital [N 25 59,979 59,979

Reserves {5 1 32(b) 493,258 212,615
Total equity 4 2 553237 272,594
Liabilities a8\
Current liabilities mEaE

Accruals EstE A 1,155 1,151
Total liabilities wa® 1,155 1,151
Total equity and liabilities mkBEBE 554,392 273,745
The balance sheet of the Company was ARmlz BEEBERERE
approved by the Board of Director on 27 May “HMFRAZTEREESS
2024 and was signed on its behalf. B WHTNINATHKREEE -
James Ngai Li Wing Yeung, Peter
172 5% =XxiE
Chairman Director
TE EZE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

32 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE OF THE
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

(b) Reserve movement of the Company

32 ARFEEEEREREE R

(b) ARFREEEH

Capital ~ Exchange
Share  redemption translation  Contributed Retained
premium reserve reserve surplus earnings Total
RttEE &xRERE HELERE 0Bk REEA st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AE¥Tn AR%Tn AR%Tn AR%Tn AR%Tn AR%T:n
At 1 March 2023 WZEZ=E=f-H 88,982 145 (30,475) 11,849 142,114 212,615
Comprehensive income 2EHA
Profit for the year ERfA - - - - 312,391 312,391
Transaction with owners BEREAALRD
Dividend ks - - - - (31,748) (31,748)
At 29 February 2024 RZE-ME-A-TAA 88,982 145 (30,475) 11,849 422,751 493,258
Representing; f&:
2024 proposed dividend “EIMERERE 2,173
Others it 461,085
_ a8
Employee
Ceptl  Exchange share-based
Share  redemption  tranglation  Contributed Retaned  compensation
premium feserve reserve surplus garnings Teserve Total
EERR
RikE EARORE AEASEE  HARR  REEM  HMER i
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
At 1 March 2022 W E-"E=f-H 88,962 145 (30475 11,849 184,177 19,679 224,357
Comprehensive loss 2EEE
Loss for the year EngE - - - - (1174 - (11,74
Transaction wih owners REREBALRA
Share option scheme BRERE
— share option lapsed - BRELH - - - - 19679 (19,679 -
At 28 February 2023 - Sakt a1 8982 5 @41 18 141 - 20615
Representing; fx:
Others £t 212615
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
oA

RESULTS OF THE GROUP

rEBZ¥E
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—E-NE —S-=-F —S--F —F-—&F —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR AR®TT ARETRT ARETR ARETR
Revenue g 401,428 413227 569,034 594217 736,387
Operating (loss)/profit K& (BR),/ & (32,125) (60,222 17,351 163,106 (28,164)
Finance income, net B FE 10,666 7,065 6,197 4,967 6,890
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETEE A (BE)/
gl (21,459) (53,157 23,548 168,073 (21,274)
Income tax (expense)/credit FIEM (4 /Hk (2,867) 1,890 (20,907)  (61,922) (9,046)
(Loss)/profit for the years FR(ER),/ & (24,326)  (51,267) 2,641 106,151 (30,320)
(Loss)/profit attributable to: i (B8E),/ &M :
— owners of the Company — KRR
BEA (23,542)  (50,271) 2,980 106,154 (30,519)
— non-controlling interest — FEBER (784) (996) (339) (3) 199
(24,326)  (51,267) 2,641 106,151 (30,320)
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

T4 B B ML L
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF THE GROUP
rEBZEEREE
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—E-ME —FT-=-F -—E-_F -—T--% —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

AR¥TRE ARETRT ARETT ARBTRT ARETRE

Investment properties, property, REDE W%
plant and equipment and BERZER
land use rights T fE A 86,376 87,734 85,507 83,780 129,973
Right-of-use assets FTHEEE 28,678 34,869 52,761 34,439 37,969
Long-term deposits and REgReR
prepayments B IR 981 3,118 2,624 1,485 3,421
Deferred income tax assets BEEMEHEEE 29,490 32,390 32,150 29,619 55,332
Net current assets REBEEFE 497,510 538,401 586,024 893,544 774,490
643,035 696,512 759,066 1,042,867 1,001,185
Total equity s 618,111 663,636 705,339 1,007,947 961,704
Deferred income tax liabilities EXmEREARE 18,016 18,312 28,800 24,197 24,757
Lease liabilities MEARE 6,908 14,564 24,927 10,723 14,724
643,035 696,512 759,066 1,042,867 1,001,185
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
BBV

Location Type Tenure

it Bk gz HANE

(@ Shop Nos. 5 & 6, Shop Medium lease
215 & 217 Qi Sha Road,
Block 1, Hao Jing Hua Yuan,
West District, Zhongshan,
Guangdong Province,
People’s Republic of China
RE AR AFE BE HHERAE 49
BREAH LT
79 @ I 7 B 215 %2 217 5%
= = A6 B —1&B5 K% 65%

(b) Res-Do-Chao B, Vai Son Kok, Shop Privately owned
No.26 Rua De. S. Domingos,
Macau
B P9 EE AR
AT = 7265

2k JIE B 3 T B B
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